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’ Yucaipa Valley Water District
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12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399  Phone: (909) 797-5117

Notice and Agenda of a Regular Meeting

of the Board of Directors
Tuesday, October 18, 2016 at 6:00 p.m.

VI.

CALL TO ORDER - Pledge of Allegiance
ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENTS - At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors
on matters within its jurisdiction. To provide comments on specific agenda items, please complete
a speaker’s request form and provide the completed form to the Board Secretary prior to the board
meeting.

CONSENT CALENDAR - All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered by the
Board of Directors to be routine and will be enacted in one motion. There will be no discussion of
these items prior to the time the board considers the motion unless members of the board, the
administrative staff, or the public request specific items to be discussed and/or removed from the
Consent Calendar.

A. Minutes of Meetings
1. Regular Board Meeting — October 4, 2016
2. Board Workshop — October 11, 2016
B. Payment of Bills
1. Approve/Ratify Invoices for Board Awarded Contracts
2. Ratify General Expenses for September 2016

STAFF REPORT
DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Receipt of the Audited Financial Statements for the Period Ending on June 30,
2016 [Director Memorandum No. 16-096 - Page 17 of 209]

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board receives and files the audited
financial statements.

B. Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on September 30, 2016 [Director
Memorandum No. 16-097 - Page 72 of 209]

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board receives and files the
unaudited financial report as presented.

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should contact the
District office at (909) 797-5117, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related
modification or accommodation.

Material provided to the Board of Directors after the meeting packet has been distributed will be made available for
public review during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa. Meeting
materials are also available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us
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VII.
VIII.

Consideration of Change Order Nos. 2, 3 and 4 Related to the Digester Cleaning
and Digester Steel Cover Replacement Project at the Wochholz Regional Water
Recycling Facility [Director Memorandum No. 16-098 - Page 100 of 209]

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board approves Change Order Nos.
2, 3, and 4 as presented.

Review of the Yucaipa Valley Water District's Sewer System Management Plan
[Director Memorandum No. 16-099 - Page 120 of 209]

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board receives and files the Sewer
System Management Plan.

Consideration of a Grant Opportunity with the Santa Ana Watershed Project
Authority for the Implementation of a Geographical Information System and Data
Analysis Program to Evaluate Residential Water Use Efficiency |[Director
Memorandum No. 16-100 - Page 162 of 209]

RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board authorizes the General
Manager to execute the grant contracts and related agreements with the
Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority.

Renewal of the Yucaipa Valley Water District Workers’ Compensation Insurance

Coverage [Director Memorandum No. 16-101 - Page 180 of 209]
RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the Board Contract with Edgewood
Partners Insurance Center for Furnishing Worker's Compensation
Insurance for 2016-2017 with Redwood Fire Insurance Company -
Berkshire Hathaway Homestead Companies.

BOARD REPORTS
DIRECTOR COMMENTS

ANNOUNCEMENTS

A. October 25, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop

B. November 1, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting
C. November 8, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop

D. November 15, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting
E. November 29, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop

F. December 6, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting
G. December 13, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop

H. December 20, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting
l. January 10, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop

J. January 17, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. - Regular Board Meeting
K. January 31, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. - Board Workshop
ADJOURNMENT
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MINUTES OF A REGULAR BOARD MEETING

October 4, 2016 at 6:00 P.M.

Directors Present: Staff Present:
Lonni Granlund, President Joseph Zoba, General Manager
Jay Bogh, Vice President Vicky Elisalda, Controller
Ken Munoz, Director Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager
Tom Shalhoub, Director John Hull, Public Works Manager

Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager

John Wrobel, Regulatory & Environmental Control
Manager

Matt Porras, Management Analyst

Directors Absent: Consulting Staff Present:
Bruce Granlund, Director David Wysocki, Legal Counsel

Registered Guests and Others Present:
Linda Shelton, Customer
Kevin Garcia. Customer
Leonard Stephenson, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Yucaipa Valley CALL TO ORDER
Water District was called to order by Director Lonni Granlund at 6:00

p.m. at the Administrative Office Building, 12770 Second Street,

Yucaipa, California.

Director Lonni Granlund led the pledge of allegiance. FLAG SALUTE

The roll was called with Director Jay Bogh, Director Lonni Granlund, ROLL CALL
Director Ken Munoz and Director Tom Shalhoub present. Director
Bruce Granlund was absent.

There were no public comments. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Director Jay Bogh moved to approve the consent calendar and CONSENT CALENDAR
Director Tom Shalhoub seconded the motion.

A. Minutes of Meetings
1. Regular Board Meeting — September 20, 2016
2. Board Workshop — September 27, 2016

The motion was approved by the following vote:
Director Jay Bogh — Yes
Director Bruce Granlund — Absent
Director Lonni Granlund — Yes

Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 1 of 3
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Director Ken Munoz — Yes
Director Tom Shalhoub — Yes

General Manager Joseph Zoba discussed the following items: STAFF REPORT

e The Board of Directors were introduced to the following staff
members that have been recently promoted:

0 Mike Kostelecky has been promoted from a Senior
Plant Operator to Operations Manager.

0 Matt Porras has been promoted from an Integrated
Operator Il to a Management Analyst.

e The District received a copy of the Wastewater Feasibility
Study from the City of Beaumont. The City of Beaumont is
expected to direct the City staff to expand the existing
Beaumont Wastewater Treatment Plant instead of pursuing a
regional option.

e The San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency will be conducting an
Engineering Workshop on Monday, October 10, 2016 at 4:00
pm. The purpose of this workshop is to discuss the
acquisition of additional water rights above the current State
Water Project Table A entitlement of 17,300 acre feet.

DISCUSSION ITEMS:

Following a staff presentation by General Manager Joseph Zoba, DM16-093
D|re_ctor Ken Munoz moved and Director Tom Shalhoub seconded a CONSIDERATION OF A
motion to authorize the General Manager to execute the attached JOINT
agreement. INFRASTRUCTURE
. . AGREEMENT WITH

The motion was approved by the following vote: THE CITY OF YUCAIPA
Director Jay Bogh — Yes FOR UPTOWN WATER
Director Bruce Granlund — Absent SYSTEM
Director Lonni Granlund — Yes IMPROVEMENTS

Director Ken Munoz - Yes
Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes

Following a staff presentation by General Manager Joseph Zoba, DM 16-094
Director Tom Shalhoub moved and Director Ken Munoz seconded a
motion to authorize the General Manager to execute the attached CONSIDERATION OF A

JOINT
agreement. INFRASTRUCTURE
. . AGREEMENT WITH
The motion was approved by the following vote: THE CITY OF YUCAIPA
Director Jay Bogh - Yes FOR SEWER SYSTEM
Director Bruce Granlund - Absent IMPROVEMENTS ON
Director Lonni Granlund - Yes YUCAIPA BOULEVARD
Director Ken Munoz - Yes
Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes
Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 2 of 3
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Following a staff presentation by General Manager Joseph Zoba, DM 16-095
Director Jay Bogh moved and Director Tom Shalhoub seconded a CONSIDERATION OE

motion to adopt Resolution No. 2016-24. RESOLUTION
. . NO.2016-24

The motion was approved by the following vote: ESTABLISHING
Director Jay Bogh - Yes RECYCLEDWATER
Director Bruce Granlund - Absent RATES AND FEES
D!rector Lonni Granlund - Yes FOR THE IRRIGATION
D!rector Ken Munoz - Yes OF GOLE COURSES
Director Tom Shalhoub - Yes

None. BOARD REPORTS

Director Tom Shalhoub expressed his gratitude for changing the C%m

meeting date. E—

Director Lonni Granlund called attention to the announcements listed ANNOUNCEMENTS

on the agenda.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:10 p.m. ADJOURNMENT

Respectfully submitted,

Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary
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MINUTES OF A BOARD WORKSHOP

October 11, 2016 at 4:00 P.M.

Directors Present: Staff Present:
Lonni Granlund, President Joseph Zoba, General Manager
Ken Munoz, Director Jennifer Ares, Water Resource Manager
Tom Shalhoub, Director Mike Kostelecky, Operations Manager
John Wrobel, Regulatory & Environmental Control
Manager

Vicky Elisalda, Controller

Kevin King, Operations Manager

Matt Porras, Management Analyst
John Hull, Public Works Manager
Peggy Little, Administrative Supervisor

Directors Absent: Consulting Staff Present:
Jay Bogh, Vice President David Wysocki, Legal Counsel
Bruce Granlund, Director

Registered Guests and Others Present:
Linda Shelton, Customer
Kevin Garcia, Customer
Phil White, Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company
John Jeter, San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency

l. Call to Order - 4:00 p.m.

Il. Public Comments - The following comments were provided by individuals in the audience:
e None.

M. Staff Report - General Manager Joseph Zoba discussed the following topics:

o Arecentarticle from Water Deeply was discussed regarding the high demand for water
recycling loans from the State Water Resources Control Board.

V. Presentations

A. Overview of the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ending on June
30, 2016 [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-144] - Controller Vicky Elisalda
introduced Phil White from Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company to present the audited
financial statements for the period ending June 30, 2016.

B. Overview of the California Drought and Yucaipa Valley Water District’s Action Plan
Related to the State Water Resources Control Board Water Conservation
Restrictions [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-145] - General Manager Joseph
Zoba provided an overview of the water conservation goals for the community.

C. Report on Water Quality and the State Water Project Crafton Hills Reservoir
[Workshop Memorandum No. 16-146] - General Manager Joseph Zoba provided
an update on the MIB and Geosmin data from the Crafton Hills Reservoir.

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop Minutes Page 1 of 2
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VI.

VII.

VIII.

Overview of the Planned Purchase of Additional Water Rights by the San Gorgonio
Pass Water Agency [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-147] - General Manager
Joseph Zoba provided an overview of the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency
workshop meeting held on Monday, October 10, 2016.

Operational Update

A.

Status Report on the Operation of the Yucaipa Valley Water District’'s Recycled
Water Fill Station at Crystal Creek [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-148] - Public
Works Manager John Hull provided information about the recycled water fill station.

Overview of the Draft Sanitary Sewer Management Plan [Workshop Memorandum
No. 16-149] - Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager John Wrobel provided
an overview of the draft Sanitary Sewer Management Plan.

Overview of Proposed Pretreatment Standards for Dental Facilities [Workshop
Memorandum No. 16-150] - Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager John
Wrobel provided an overview of the anticipated pretreatment requirements for
dental facilities.

Capital Improvement Projects

A.

Status Report on the Construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon Drinking Water Reservoir
R-12.4 - Calimesa [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-151] - General Manager
Joseph Zoba provided an overview of the drinking water reservoir construction
project.

Overview of Change Orders Associated with the Wochholz Regional Water
Recycling Facility Digester Cleaning and Cover Replacement Project [Workshop
Memorandum No. 16-152] - Operations Manager Kevin King provided an overview
of the digester cover project and change orders that will be presented at the next
board meeting.

Administrative Issues

A.

Overview of a Grant Opportunity with the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority
and OmniEarth/Dropcountr [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-153] - Management
Analyst Matt Porras provided an overview of a grant opportunity to quantify the
irrigation area for District parcels.

Review of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on September 30,
2016 [Workshop Memorandum No. 16-154] - Controller Vicky Elisalda provided an
overview of the unaudited financial report.

Director Comments

Director Ken Munoz requested that the District staff and Legal Counsel review the
bid line item language and requirements associated with the digester solids
treatment change order for future projects.

Adjournment - The meeting was adjourned at 4:50 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Joseph B. Zoba, Secretary
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Board Awarded Contracts

Consent Calendar Regular Meeting - October 18, 2016

Encumbered Funds - Remaining Contract Amount

Awarded Prior Pending Total Remaining General Water Sewer Recycled
Director Job Cost Contract Paymentsto  Invoice Contract Contract Percent Operating  Division Division Division
District Awarded Contracts Memorandum Job or GL # Breakdown Amount Date Amount Payments Amount  Remaining Expenses Funds Funds Funds  Other Funds
Law Office of David L. Wysocki - FY 2017 Legal Services (Operating) -- *-5-06-54107 -- -- $8,100 $6,525 $14,625
CV Strategies (W-Operating) 16-091 02-5-06-54099 -- $15,000 $0 $0 $0 $15,000 100% $15,000
Water Conservation Messaging
DDB Engineering (R-Reserves) 15-086 04-19771 -- $35,900 $18,041 $0 $18,041 $17,859 50% $17,859
Application to DDW for the Recharge at Wilson Creek Basins
Delta Partners $90,000 per year-LegislativeConsult (exp 12/18) WAS Oper 13-079 *-5-06-54109 -- $90,000 $60,000 $7,500 $67,500 $22,500 25% $22,500
Dudek (R-Operating) 15-098 04-5-06-57030 -- $59,747 $8,303 $1,689 $9,992 $49,755 83% $49,755
Install Groundwater Observation Wells near San Timoteo Creek
Fred M. Boerner Motor Co. (W/S Reserves) 16-085 **-10310 -- $167,497 $0 $0 $0 $167,497 100% $167,497
Purchase of 2017 International Workstar cab and chassis
Fred M. Boerner Motor Co. (W/S Reserves) 16-086 **.10310 -- $92,836 $0 $0 $0 $92,836 100% $92,836
Purchase of 2017 International DuraStar cab and chassis
Gateway Pacific Contractors, Inc. (Scip Funds) 14-091 SCIP funding -- $7,520,080 $6,718,977 $392,557 $7,111,534 $408,546 5% $408,546
Construction of 6.0 MG Reservoir R-12.4
Geoscience (R-Operating) 04-5-06-54109 $51,710 $40,690 $0 $40,690 $11,020 21% $11,020
Preparation of a groundwater model for the Gateway Basin 14-070 $35,320
CO #1 - preparation of groundwater model 15-010 $16,390
Geoscience (W-Operating) 02-5-06-54109 $130,236 $11,487  $10,747 $22,234 $108,002 83% $108,002
Calculation of Water Budgets for Validation of Annual Change in Storage 16-058
Harper & Associates  (W-Operating)
Engineering, Project Mgmt & Inspection Svcs for coating repairs YVRWFF 15-062 02-5-01-57040 $16,615 $16,615 $13,990 $0 $13,990 $2,625 16% $2,625
Krieger & Stewart
Initiate Design of R-12.4  (W-Reserves) 04-164 65-295 $74,900 $585,100 $465,369  $27,702 $493,071 $92,029 16% $92,029
TO#4 Revised 05-075 $600
TO#4, Amendment #2 14-014 $45,000
TO#5- Construction Mgmt Services 14-092 $482,500
TO#5, Amendment #1 - Construction Mmgt Services 16-069 $102,600
TO#5, Design R-13.4 and H-2 Reservoirs for JP Ranch 05-083 65-180 $47,400 $79,000 $50,471 $0 $50,471 $28,529 36% $28,529
60% R-13.4 and 40% H-2 (Developer Funds) 05-083 65-179 $31,600
TO#7, Design of a 24" Recycled Water Pipeline 11-091 04-9435 $220,800 $269,800 $268,707 $0 $268,707 $1,093 0% $1,093
TO#7, Amendment #1 Addtl Design Costs 14-012 $49,000
LinkoCTS (EC-Operating)
Pretreatment Software 16-061 03-5-07-54111 $36,105 $28,185 $0 $28,185 $7,920 22% $7,920
One Stop Landscape Supply FY 2017 Sludge Hauling\Reuse (Oper) -- 03-5-02-57031 -- -- $44,035  $23,083 $67,118
Pascal & Ludwig  (S-Reserves) 15-041 03-14500 $2,175,000 $2,242,347 $2,075,796 $0 $2,075,796 $166,551 7% $166,551
Cleaning & replacement of 4 digester covers at WRWRF
Additional coating repairs 16-008 03-1400 $67,347
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Board Awarded Contracts

Consent Calendar Regular Meeting - October 18, 2016

Encumbered Funds - Remaining Contract Amount

Awarded Prior Pending Total Remaining General Water Sewer Recycled
Director Job Cost Contract Paymentsto  Invoice Contract Contract Percent Operating  Division Division Division
District Awarded Contracts Memorandum Job or GL # Breakdown Amount Date Amount Payments Amount  Remaining Expenses Funds Funds Funds  Other Funds

Platinum Advisors (W\S Operating)

FY 2017 Lobbyist N-T-E per month 13-080 02-5-06-54109 -- - $10,000 $5,000 $15,000

FY 2017 Quarterly Filing & Misc. Expenses 02-5-06-54109 -- - $125 $0 $125
RMC Water & Environment

TO#25, Digester Cleaning & a Solids Process Cond Assess 12-066 88-12830 $57,730 $329,600 $344,145 $0 $344,145 ($14,545) -4% ($14,545)

TO#25, Amendment #1 (S-Reserves) 13-074 03-502-51003 $271,870

TO#26, SRF Mgmt Svcs-Calimesa Regional Recycled Pipeline (R-FCC) 14-023 04-5-06-54109 $95,692 $47,811 $0 $47,811 $47,881 50% $47,881

Dewatering Equip Pilot Testing Support Svces at WRWRF  (S-Oper) 15-044 03-5-06-54109 $45,000 $42,988 $0 $42,988 $2,012 4% $2,012

Application to DDW for the Recharge at Wilson Creek Basins (R-Resvs) 15-086 04-19771 -- $131,979 $97,481 $0 $97,481 $34,498 26% $34,498
San Bernardino Valley Water District (W-Operating) 16-092 02-5-06-54099 -- $16,195 $0 $0 $0 $16,195 100% $16,195

iEfficient Wwater Conservation Campaign
Separation Processes, Inc. (W-Reserves) 55-19200

Design & Construction Supports Servs for NF SCRAM 15-047 02-14500 $191,820 $58,172 $0 $58,172 $133,648 70% $133,648

Application to DDW for the Recharge at Wilson Creek Basins (R-Resrvs) 15-086 04-19771 -- $42,860 $20,726 $0 $20,726 $22,134 52% $22,134
Skydrop Irrigation Controllers  (W-Reserves Funds 25% Muni) 02-10310

Purchase of Wi-Fi based irrigations controllers 15-043 02-11201 $250,000 $686,029 $563,390 $0 $563,390 $122,639 18% $122,639

Purchase 500 additional controller 16-010 02-11201 $100,000

Purchase 1000 additional controllers 16-029 02-11201 $200,000

Paid from Muni (25% of set controllers) $136,029
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company (VTD)  (Operating)

FY 2016 Auditing Services $23,900 + $3,500 for Single Audit 15-106 *-5-06-54108 $23,900 $8,000 $0 $8,000 $15,900 67% $15,900

FY 2017 Auditing Services $23,900 + $3,500 for Single Audit 15-106 *-5-06-54108

FY 2018 Auditing Services $23,900 + $3,500 for Single Audit 15-106 *-5-06-54108

FY 2019 Auditing Services $23,900 + $3,500 for Single Audit 15-106 *-5-06-54108
Villalobos and Associates (W-Operating) 16-064 02-5-06-54109 -- $72,200 $0 $0 $0 $72,200 100% $72,200

Permitting of Recharge Oper at the Wilson Creek Spreading Basins

GRAND TOTALS $13,020,537  $11,070,479 $474,803  $11,545282  $1,644,323 -- | $583.462 | $348316 | $152,006 | $123.465| $437,075 |
v v v
$583,462 $623,787 $437,075

Approval of General Expenses September 2016 (Check Register Attached)
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Check Register - September 2016

Check Date Check Number Name

09/02/2016 26955 PAYROLL CHECK
09/02/2016 26956 WageWorks, Inc.

09/02/2016 26957 Public Employees' Retirement S
09/02/2016 26958 Hong Nelson

09/02/2016 26959 IBEW Local 1436

09/02/2016 26960 California State Disbursement
09/02/2016 26961 California State Disbursement
09/02/2016 26962 Department of the Treasury - |
09/06/2016 26963 State Water Resources Control
09/06/2016 26964 Ameripride Uniform Services
09/06/2016 26965 Coverall North America, Inc.
09/06/2016 26966 Fedex

09/06/2016 26967 Raiset R. Santana and Adriana
09/06/2016 26968 Kelly Services, Inc.

09/06/2016 26969 Konica Minolta Business Soluti
09/06/2016 26970 Management Action Programs Inc
09/06/2016 26971 The Gas Company

09/06/2016 26972 Brenntag Pacific, Inc
09/06/2016 26973 California Water Technologies,
09/06/2016 26974 Cemex Inc. USA

09/06/2016 26975 Center Electric

09/06/2016 26976 CHJ Consultants

09/06/2016 26977 Evoqua Water Technologies LLC
09/06/2016 26978 Fuel Equipment Services, Inc.
09/06/2016 26979 Grainger

09/06/2016 26980 Hemet Valley Tool & Supply
09/06/2016 26981 Inland Water Works Supply Co.
09/06/2016 26982 J.L. Wingert Co.

09/06/2016 26983 Johnson Power Systems
09/06/2016 26984 Lowe's Companies, Inc.
09/06/2016 26985 Nuckles Oil Company, Inc.
09/06/2016 26986 Nagem, Inc.

09/06/2016 26987 Polydyne Inc.

09/06/2016 26988 Pro-Pipe & Supply, Inc.
09/06/2016 26989 Redlands Automotive Sales, Inc
09/06/2016 26990 Steven Enterprises, Inc
09/06/2016 26991 Uline, Inc.

09/06/2016 26992 YVWD-Petty Cash

09/06/2016 26993 James Rowell

09/06/2016 26994 Standard Insurance Company
09/06/2016 26995 Anthem Blue Cross L and H
09/06/2016 26996 Standard Insurance Company
09/06/2016 26997 Standard Insurance Vision Plan
09/06/2016 26998 MetLife Small Business Center
09/06/2016 26999 Jennifer Ares

09/12/2016 27000 Ameripride Uniform Services
09/12/2016 27001 AT&T Mobility

09/12/2016 27002 Auto Care Clinic

09/12/2016 27003 Central Communications
09/12/2016 27004 Corelogic, Inc.

09/12/2016 27005 Crown Ace Hardware - Yucaipa
09/12/2016 27006 First American Data Tree, LLC
09/12/2016 27007 Dinosaur Tire Inc.

09/12/2016 27008 Fedex

09/12/2016 27009 Frontier Communications
09/12/2016 27010 Geoscience Support Services, |
09/12/2016 27011 Alan L. Grubel Automotive Inc.
09/12/2016 27012 House Of Quality, Parts Plus
09/12/2016 27013 InfoSend, Inc.
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Check Amount

2,194.27
1,462.27
24,541.55
125.00
168.00
115.38
476.30
125.00
2,923,668.75
521.73
1,021.00
24.82
64.75
440.64
935.64
3,000.00
53.05
8,262.32
4,107.10
1,747.93
377.26
4,717.00
2,960.70
272.65
154.01
232.90
3,314.25
1,866.44
580.81
101.57
2,251.54
2,085.34
5,713.20
552.22
204.02
1,021.50
82.41
270.89
264.88
2,802.84
391.56
3,280.34
680.44
544.60
83.16
533.14
1,515.90
84.19
576.71
330.00
760.22
50.00
12.50
116.94
139.40
3,297.50
15.00
1,412.15
5,119.34



Check Register - September 2016

Check Date Check Number Name

09/12/2016 27014 Kelly Services, Inc.

09/12/2016 27015 NetComp Technologies,Inc.
09/12/2016 27016 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency
09/12/2016 27017 Southern CA Emergency Medicine
09/12/2016 27018 Time Warner Cable

09/12/2016 27019 Underground Service Alert Of S
09/12/2016 27020 News Mirror Publishing, Inc.
09/12/2016 27021 Yucaipa Valley Water District
09/12/2016 27022 All American Sewer Tools
09/12/2016 27023 Brenntag Pacific, Inc
09/12/2016 27024 Emergency Power Controls, Inc.
09/12/2016 27025 Fastenal Company

09/12/2016 27026 Grainger

09/12/2016 27027 Hach Company

09/12/2016 27028 Industrial Safety Supply Corp
09/12/2016 27029 Industrial Scientific Corporat
09/12/2016 27030 Inland Water Works Supply Co.
09/12/2016 27031 J.L. Wingert Co.

09/12/2016 27032 NCL Of Wisconsin Inc
09/12/2016 27033 Office Solutions Business Prod
09/12/2016 27034 Patton Sales Corporation
09/12/2016 27035 Riverside Winnelson Company
09/12/2016 27036 Calmat Company

09/16/2016 27037 PAYROLL CHECK

09/16/2016 27038 PAYROLL CHECK

09/16/2016 27039 WageWorks, Inc.

09/16/2016 27040 Public Employees' Retirement S
09/16/2016 27041 Hong Nelson

09/16/2016 27042 California State Disbursement
09/16/2016 27043 California State Disbursement
09/16/2016 27044 Department of the Treasury - |
09/19/2016 27045 Citizens Business Bank
09/19/2016 27046 Delta Partners, LLC

09/19/2016 27047 Dudek & Associates, Inc
09/19/2016 27048 Geoscience Support Services, |
09/19/2016 27049 J. Colon Coatings, Inc.
09/19/2016 27050 Krieger & Stewart

09/19/2016 27051 One Stop Landscape Supply Inc
09/19/2016 27052 Pascal & Ludwig Constructors |
09/19/2016 27053 Platinum Advisors, LLC
09/19/2016 27054 RMC Water and Environment
09/19/2016 27055 Sacramento Bank of Commerce
09/19/2016 27056 VTD, Vavrinek, Trine, Day & CO
09/19/2016 27057 David L. Wysocki

09/19/2016 27058 PROPERTY MNGMT , HOM
09/19/2016 27059 California Water Environment A
09/19/2016 27060 Ameripride Uniform Services
09/19/2016 27061 Fedex

09/19/2016 27062 InfoSend, Inc.

09/19/2016 27063 Kelly Services, Inc.

09/19/2016 27064 Krieger & Stewart

09/19/2016 27065 RMC Water and Environment
09/19/2016 27066 San Bernardino County Dept of
09/19/2016 27067 Southern CA Emergency Medicine
09/19/2016 27068 Brenntag Pacific, Inc
09/19/2016 27069 Charles P. Crowley Company, In
09/19/2016 27070 Cal-Mesa Steel Supply, Inc.
09/19/2016 27071 Cemex Inc. USA

09/19/2016 27072 Clean Diesel Specialists So Ca
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Check Amount

1,101.60
3,650.00
26,984.97
300.00
389.99
196.50
292.25
261,884.43
2,935.61
7,545.58
5,200.00
324.62
254.58
2,398.26
476.33
911.80
2,175.83
476.10
1,576.90
407.48
119.39
367.46
2,491.12
2,025.11
189.97
1,462.27
24,548.27
125.00
115.38
476.30
125.00
1,851.00
7,500.00
2,686.23
11,487.25
9,900.00
24,046.33
22,427.50
35,150.00
5,125.00
19,681.45
7,340.00
8,000.00
3,750.00
53.73
344.00
539.63
35.13
3,407.09
1,762.56
1,884.05
1,703.25
924.81
225.00
12,906.26
114.65
289.44
640.87
14,395.46



Check Register - September 2016

Check Date Check Number Name

09/19/2016 27073 G&G Environmental Compliance, |
09/19/2016 27074 Grainger

09/19/2016 27075 Hasa, Inc.

09/19/2016 27076 Inland Water Works Supply Co.
09/19/2016 27077 Kevin E. French

09/19/2016 27078 Micro Motion, Inc.

09/19/2016 27079 Microflex Corp #774353
09/19/2016 27080 NCL Of Wisconsin Inc
09/19/2016 27081 Page Locksmith

09/19/2016 27082 RDO Equipment Co.
09/19/2016 27083 UPS Store#1504/ Mail Boxes Etc
09/19/2016 27084 American Family Life Assurance
09/19/2016 27085 Cobb's Printing, LLC
09/19/2016 27086 Rodd Greene

09/19/2016 27087 Dennis Neff

09/19/2016 27088 James Rowell

09/19/2016 27089 US Healthworks Medical Group,
09/19/2016 27090 Robert Wall

09/19/2016 27091 Western Dental Services, Inc.
09/19/2016 27092 Charlie Bailey

09/19/2016 27093 WageWorks, Inc.

09/19/2016 27094 CalPERS - HEALTH
09/26/2016 27095 Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud
09/26/2016 27096 California Water Environment A
09/26/2016 27097 Ralph C. Casas

09/26/2016 27098 AmeriGas Propane LP
09/26/2016 27099 Ameripride Uniform Services
09/26/2016 27100 Fedex

09/26/2016 27101 Frontier Communications
09/26/2016 27102 Hershey Business Products
09/26/2016 27103 Kevin E. French

09/26/2016 27104 Lorie Knudsen

09/26/2016 27105 LUZ Investment Corp.
09/26/2016 27106 McCall's Meter Sales & Service
09/26/2016 27107 NetComp Technologies,Inc.
09/26/2016 27108 VOID CHECK

09/26/2016 27109 SCE Rosemead

09/26/2016 27110 Separation Processes, Inc.
09/26/2016 27111 U.S. Telepacific Corp
09/26/2016 27112 The Counseling Team Internatio
09/26/2016 27113 Vision Internet Providers, Inc
09/26/2016 27114 Walter L. Ferar

09/26/2016 27115 Airgas, Inc.

09/26/2016 27116 All American Sewer Tools
09/26/2016 27117 BofA Credit Card

09/26/2016 27118 Bernell Hydraulics, Inc.
09/26/2016 27119 Brenntag Pacific, Inc
09/26/2016 27120 Jeanntte Wisdom

09/26/2016 27121 Charles P. Crowley Company, In
09/26/2016 27122 CHJ Consultants

09/26/2016 27123 Clinical Laboratory of San Ber
09/26/2016 27124 Victor James Valenti
09/26/2016 27125 Evoqua Water Technologies LLC
09/26/2016 27126 Frost Company

09/26/2016 27127 Grainger

09/26/2016 27128 Alan L. Grubel Automotive Inc.
09/26/2016 27129 Harper & Associates Eng., Inc.
09/26/2016 27130 Hemet Valley Tool & Supply
09/26/2016 27131 Inland Water Works Supply Co.
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Check Amount

5,372.64
610.74
11,371.39
889.92
156.00
1,414.80
1,018.97
961.95
64.80
63.84
151.68
3,794.53
66.96
624.31
565.53
264.88
319.51
575.46
306.86
542.83
212.75
65,444.45
772.42
344.00
89.70
2,024.16
533.14
30.59
145.97
398.76
10,000.00
1,529.77
531.03
2,300.00
3,567.92
0.00
251,299.77
7,023.88
4,023.64
180.00
6,930.00
227.50
259.86
2,168.33
2,302.14
435.73
23,039.30
13,475.06
343.08
2,077.00
21,199.50
4,726.36
3,196.77
2,868.00
1,015.17
387.63
7,188.00
99.51
12,802.22



Check Register - September 2016

Check Date Check Number Name Check Amount
09/26/2016 27132 Innerline Engineering 3,500.00
09/26/2016 27133 J.L. Wingert Co. 6,907.96
09/26/2016 27134 Lowe's Companies, Inc. 427.55
09/26/2016 27135 Nuckles Oil Company, Inc. 10,273.40
09/26/2016 27136 Nagem, Inc. 1,413.05
09/26/2016 27137 Nalco Company 5,176.48
09/26/2016 27138 NCL Of Wisconsin Inc 86.04
09/26/2016 27139 Office Solutions Business Prod 119.32
09/26/2016 27140 P & R Paper Supply Co., Inc. 921.08
09/26/2016 27141 Q Versa, LLC 14,620.32
09/26/2016 27142 Riverside Winnelson Company 875.80
09/26/2016 27143 Smart & Final Stores, LLC 292.80
09/26/2016 27144 Steven Enterprises, Inc 864.88
09/26/2016 27145 Tri County Pump Company 16,281.64
09/26/2016 27146 UPS Store#1504/ Mail Boxes Etc 64.71
09/26/2016 27147 ZEP Manufacturing Company 233.69
09/26/2016 27148 SB CNTY-Fire Protection Distri 2,702.00
09/30/2016 27149 PAYROLL CHECK 2,028.58
09/30/2016 27150 WageWorks, Inc. 1,385.35
09/30/2016 27151 Public Employees' Retirement S 23,821.08
09/30/2016 27152 California State Disbursement 115.38
09/30/2016 27153 California State Disbursement 476.30
09/30/2016 27154 Department of the Treasury - | 125.00
September 2016 Check Register Total 4,148,566.93
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Staff Report
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Discussion Items
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' Yucaipa Valley Water District Director Memorandum 16-096
W
Date: October 18, 2016

Prepared By: Vicky Elisalda, Controller

Subject: Receipt of the Audited Financial Statements for the Period Ending on June
30, 2016

Recommendation: That the Board receives and files the audited financial statements.

The certified public accounting firm of Vavrinek, Trine, Day and Company has completed the
financial audit for the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2016.

At the board workshop on October 11, 2016, a representative from Vavrinek, Trine, Day and
Company provided an overview of the audited financial statements and answered questions about
the report.
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12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399

Annual Financial Statements

for the

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016

Board of Directors
Kenneth P. Munoz Bruce Granlund Jay Bogh Lomni Granlund Thomas Shalhoub
Division 1 Divisions 2 Division 3 Division 4 Division 5
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Financial Audit Preparation Team: e o
%,
Administrative Engineering /0/0
Sy

Vicky Elisalda, Controller
Peggy Little, Administrative Supervisor
Erin Anton, Admimstrative Clerk IV
Sara Onate, Admimstrative Clerk IV

Tysa Baeumel, Administrative Clerk III

" 2t )
' Yucaipa Valley Water District

Linda Kilday, Engineering Technician [V /j(?

Chelsie Fogus, Engineering Technician I

Inventory Control

Joan Cadiz, Purchasing Agent

W
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Financial Statements
Audited Financial SI'Q?;S - Fiscal Year 2016
“»
INTRODUCTION O

It is my pleasure to provide the following financial report for Yucaipa Valley Water District (“ ]Ip. )
for the fiscal vear ended on June 30, 2016. The financial report was prepared by District staff fol 0‘@&5,
guidelines set forth by the Govermmental Accounting Standards Board.

d‘
The District is ultimately responsible for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and the {/6«
fairness of presentation, including all disclosures in this financial report. We believe that the daia
presented is accurate in all material respects. This report is designed in a manner that we believe
necessary to enhance your understanding of the District’s financial position and activities.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the financial statements in the form of the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section. This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.

This report is organized into the following sections: (1) Transmittal Letter and District Overview; (2)
Management Discussion & Amnalysis; (3) Audited Financial Statemenis; (4) Required Supplementary
Information. The first section provides the reader with a general overview of the District. The
Management Discussion & Analysis section offers a summary of significant financial results. The
Audited Financial Statements section includes the Independent Auditors’ Report. The Required
Supplementary section provides information and schedules to supplement the basic financial statements.

OVERVIEW OF THE DISTRICT

The Yucaipa Valley Water District is made up of a proactive and diverse group of elected officials and
employees dedicated to providing reliable water and sewer service in an efficient, cost effective manner
that provides a high level of customer satisfaction. On May 1, 2002, the Board of Directors adopted the
following misgion statement to clearly reflect the vision and principles that guide the dedicated elected
officials and employees of the District.

Yucaipa Valley Water District is committed to professionally managing the precious water, sewer
and recycled water resources of the Yucaipa Valley in a reliable, efficient and cost effective
manner in order to provide the finest service to our customers, both present and future.

We are entrusted to serve the public for the benefit of the community.

We believe in responsive, inmovative and aggressive service, and take pride in geiting the job
done right the first time.

We encourage a work environment thai fosters professionalism, creativity, teamwork and
personal accountability.

We treat our customers and one another with fairness, dignity, respect and compassion and
exhibit the utmost integrity in all we do.

We believe in enhancing the environment by following a general philosophy of eliminating waste
and maximizing recycling and reuse of our natural resources.

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Pagei
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Financial Statements
Audited Financial SI'Q?;S - Fiscal Year 2016

We are committed to vsing the following operating principles as a guide to acce‘ﬁgl{s}ﬁng our

mission:
o\,%
¢ We are proactive in our approach to issues. 7
e We are committed to integrity and consistenily high ethical standards in all our busin@/
dealings. s
e We use the strategic plamming process to focus our efforts and minimize our crisis \/(T
management mode.
We make informed, rational and objective decisions.
We aggressively pursue technological solutions to improve operations.
We are inclusive in our decision making and delegate responsibility whenever possible.
We design our services around customer wants and needs to the degree possible within our
financial and regulatory constraints.
e  We cultivate widespread commitment to common goals.

We believe our success depends on every employee knowing and sharing these values and
principles.

This financial report iz a reflection of the District’s commitment to professionally manage the precious
water, sewer and recycled water resources of the Yucaipa Valley in a reliable, efficient and cost effective
manner in order to provide the finest service to our customers, both present and fture.

To meet the mission of the District, the Board and staff members continue to proactively focus on water
quality issues, water supply issues, infrastructure deficiencies, maintenance of existing systems and
compliance with increagingly stringent regulatory requirements.

Historical Background

The District was formed as part of reorgamzation, pursuant to the Reorgamization Act of 1963, being
Divigion I of Title 6 of the Government Code of the State of California. This reorganization consisted of
the formation of the District, dissolution of the Calimesa Water District and formation of Tmprovement
District No. 1 of the District as successor-in-interest, and dissolution of Improvement District “A” of the
San Bemnardino Valley Municipal Water District and the formation of Improvement District “A” of the
District as successor-in-interest. On September 14, 1971, the Secretary of State of the State of California
certified and declared formation of the Yucaipa Valley County Water District. The District operates
under the County Water District Law, being Division 12 of the State of California Water Code (the
“Act™). Although the immediate fanction of the District was to provide water service, the District has
assumed responsibility for providing recycled water and sewer service in Yucaipa Valley.

The District is located about 70 miles east of Los Angeles and 20 miles southeast of San Bernardino in
the foothills of the San Bermnardino Mountains and provides water, sewer and recycled water services.

2%
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Financial Statements
Audited Financial S nts - Fiscal Year 2016

As of June 30, 2016, the District provided service to 12,678 water connections (17.422<mjig), 13,769
sewer commections (20,867 units) and 84 recycled water connections. O{O
I

- - Recycled
Water Utility Sewer Utility Water Utjll( 2
Customer Type Number of Number Number of Number Number of ?_)\
Connections of Units Connections of Units Connections {/

Single Family 11,524 11,524 12,808 12,808 0 G
Multiple Units 500 5,253 656 7.745 0
Commercial 266 266 255 255 0
Institutional 104 104 47 56 0
Industrial 13 13 3 3 0
Irrigation 118 118 0 0 78
Fire Detectors 130 130 0 0 0
Construction 14 14 0 0 6

Total 12,678 17,422 13,769 20,867 84

Land and Land Use

The altitude of the District rises from about 2,000 feet above sea level at the western end of the valley to
about 5,000 feet at the eastemn end, with average elevation of roughly 2,650 feet. The topography of the
area is characterized by rolling hills separated by deeply entrenched stream beds, namely, the Yucaipa
and Wilson Creeks. The District includes the incorporated cities of Yucaipa and Calimesa which are in
San Bernardino and Riverside Counties respectively.

The District expects that the undeveloped land within its boundaries will continue to be developed
consisient with the general plans as provided by the City of Yucaipa and the City of Calimesa. The
projected population of the District in the year 2030 will be approximately 94,800, which reflects build-
out of the City of Calimesa and the QOak Valley development. Although approximately 49.8% of the land
within the boundaries of the District is currently undeveloped, less than 1% of District water sales are to
agricultural water users.

Governance and Management

The District is governed by a 5-member board of directors (the “Board”), the members of which are
elected from five separaie divisions of the District for staggered 4-year terms. The cumrent Board
members, the expiration dates of their terms and their occupations are set forth below.

Member of the Division Initial Date Expiration Occupation
Board of Directors of Service of Term
Bruce Granlund, Director Two 12/23/1998 2018 Retired Senior District Attorney Investigator
Lonni Granlund, President Four 12/05/2008 2016 Property Manager/Real Estate Broker
Tay Bogh, Vice President Three 09/07/2005 2018 Building Firm Manager
Thomas Shalhoub, Director Five 12/03/2014 2018 Retired Entrepreneur
Kenneth P. Munoz, Director One 12/07/2012 2016 Equipment Company Owner
2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page iii
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A%y

@ Yucaipa Valley
Qa® Water District
12770 2wl Street, Yoeaipa, Ca 92399
Division Boundaries

June 2011

R
)

2%
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Presidents o
October 1971 to November 1973
December 1973 to November 1975

December 1975 to October 1977
November 1977 to November 1979
December 1979 to December 1983
January 1984 to December 1987
January 1988 to November 1989
November 1989 to December 1991
January 1992 to November 1993
December 1993 to December 1995
December 1995 to December 1998
January 1999 to November 2002
December 2002 to December 2006
December 2006 to December 2008
December 2008 to December 2012
January 2013 to December 2014
December 2014 to Present

Harold Lockwood
Hank Wochholz
Geno Gasponi
Eve Krafi

Pete Squires
Fred Childs
George Sardeson
Hank Wochholz
David Lesser
Conrad Nelson
Steve Copelan
Conrad Nelson
Bruce Granlund
Tom Shalhoub
Jay Bogh

Bruce Granlund
Lonni Granlund
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Day-to-day management of the District is delegated to the General Manager who works
executive team who ultimately oversee all of the District’s services and functions.

Kenneth Munoz

Bruce Granlund

Board Member
Division 2

Audited Tinancial St

Jay Bogh
Vice President

Division 3 Divisiol

Lonni Granlund
President

Financial Statements
nts - Fiscal Year 2016

e!?\' za{y with an

Thomas
Shalhoub
Board Member

Division 5

n 4

~

- Joseph Zoba B
General Manager

s

N
Jack Nelson i

A55|stant General

Manager i
d ( 4 ) N w ~
a = a ) 7 =)
Vicky Elisalda ‘ Jennifer Ares H John Hull ‘
Controller Water Resource Manager  Public Works Manager
\ 2| W Z
Accounting Resource Efficiency Maintenance of Water,
Customer Service Programs Sewer, and Recycled
Payroll Best Management Program Systems
Asset Management Implementation Environmental Control
Financial Statements Environmental Reports and Services
Compliance Facility Maintenance
Public Outreach Industrial Pretreatment
Education
) ' Kevin King R a Bob Wall ' JohnWrobel )
Brent Anton - i
E Operations Manager Operations Manager Regulatory & Environmental
ngineering Manager : Sewer Water Control Manager
P . 9

Construcﬂon Management
Project Planning
Development Planning
GIS/Modeling

Plan Check

Inspection Services

Sewar Treatment

Recycled Water Production
Regulatory Compliance

,//

Water Production

Water Treatment

Water Quality

Recycled Water Delivery
Regulatory Compliance

Sewer Collecticn System

Pretreatment Program

Brineline Operation and
Maintenance

Sewer Lift Station Operation
and Maintenance

DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY WITHIN THE DISTRICT

Facility Capacity Charges - Fiscal Year 2016

During this fiscal year, the District added 154 water connections, 155 sewer connections, and 6 recycled

water connections.

When compared to the development activity in the prior year, the District received

16.76% fewer water connections, 17.11% fewer sewer connections and 50.00% more recycled water

connections,

%
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Number of New Connections {(EDUs)
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600

Fiscal Year

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

Audited Financial S

New Water
Connections

New Sewer
Connections

222 189 23
69 67 10
41 35 1
18 17 2
86 15 1
22 32 3
57 54 9
59 18 0
185 187 4
154 155 6

Financial Statements
nts - Fiscal Year 2016

Historical Water, Sewer and Recycled Water New Connections

New Recycled
Water
Connections

500

400

300

200
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W

FY 1891
FY 1992
FY 1993
FY 1594
FY 1995
FY 1896
FY 1897
FY 1998
FY 1999
FY 2000
FY 2001
FyY 2002
FY 2003
FY 2004
FY 2005
FY 2006
FY 2007
FY 2008
FY 2009
FY 2010
FY 2011

FY 2012

E Water Division  OSewer Division  ERecycled Water Division

FY 2013

Fy 2014
FY 2015
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“»
MAJOR INITIATIVES AND CONTROLS OOA}
Sustainability Initiative /0
“0

Califormia’s water supply continues to be a concern due to projected population increases and limjted‘-’%/
capabilities to convey water throughout the state. On August 20, 2008 the Board of Directors adopteda  “¢5
Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future - The Integration and Preservation of Resources. The purpose of this
document was to document the proactive steps taken by the Yucaipa Valley Water District to improve the

social, economic and environmental sustainability of our community. These actions have included the
purchase of wvaluable watershed properties, protection of local water supplies and management of
environmental corridors. While the decisions to embark on these actions have been generally unrelated, a

look back in time indicates that the District has been progressing towards a more independent, flexible

and sustainable future.

The proactive steps taken by the District to protect and
"The Fction behaves We“l .Il'f—‘H treats Ihe na.turaf CONServe Our resources have been based on the
resources as assets which it must turn over to concepts that: (1) resources are not limitless and
the next generation increased, and no!  iherefore need to be conserved, nurtured and renewed;

impairved in vaiue " and (2) resources that are used to generate short-term
gains result in an inefficient and inequitable
- Theodore Roosevelt consumption of resources that are not beneficial for a

long-term strategy. Both of these concepts help to
guide the District to make decisions that are conservative, careful and conscious of the role we currently
play in a long-term strategy to protect the community.

The purpose of pursuing a sustainability plan is twofold. First and foremost, the sustainability plan has
been designed to establish the policies and guidelines necessary to protect and preserve the natural
resources entrusied to the District for our customers. It is our business to maximize the use of our limited
natural resources for the long-term economic growth and expansion of the local economy. In the arid
southwest, the basic fiel to create and maintain a local economy is water. Secondly, the sustainahility
policy has been designed to provide a means to measure performance of the organization. While
performance monitoring or benchmarking
is  not mnormally associated with "Sustainable development is . . . development that meets the
sustainability, this document has been needs of the present without compromising the ability of
created with the intention that the goals further generations to meet their own needs."

and reporting requirements are designed
around performance management across a World Commission on Environment and Development,

wide range of disciplines. Our Commeon Future, 1987

With the use of this document the District is better equipped to:

o Identify the key challenges over the next five decades and assess the goals to overcome these
challenges;

¢ Deal with the challenges of the future in a trangparent manner involving stakeholders;

e Ideniify and manage risk in a reasonable and prudent manner with information, data and resources
necessary to minimize the potential costs associated with certain scenarios; and

e Embark on a program to ensure that the generations that follow are provided with the necessary tools
and resources to grow the community as the prior generation has done for us.

2%
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District Page vii

W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 18, 2016 - Page 27 of 209



Director Memorandum No. 16-096 Page 12 of 55

Financial Statements
Audited Financial SI'Q?;S - Fiscal Year 2016

&
The implementation of this inmtiative will come about largely with the return of new developn*g‘ However,
the District has enacted additional measures for existing customers which largely involves the hase of
imported water to offset gronndwater production by 15% beginning in January 2010. (0}»

Internal Control Structure /0/0
District management is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the internal conirol structure d>
that ensures the assets of the District are protected from loss, thefi or misuse. The internal control G
structure also ensures adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The District’s internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are mei. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgetary Control

The District’s Board of Directors anmually adopts an operating and capital budget prior to the new fiscal
vear. The budget authorizes and provides the basis for reporting and control of financial operations and
accountability for the District’s enterprise operations and capital projects. The budget and reporting steps
taken by the Disirict are consistent with generally accepied accounting principles with monthly reporting
of public documenis for complete transparency and disclosure.

Investment Policy

The Board of Directors adopts an investment policy annually that conforms to state law, District
ordinance and resolutions, and pmdent money management. The District is extremely conservative in our
approach to investing to maximize safety and protection of public funds.

Aundit and Financial Reporting

State law and bond covenants require the District to obtain an anmual audit of its financial statements by
an independent certified public accountant. The accounting firm of Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP has
conducted the audit of the District’s financial statemenis. Their unmodified Independent Auditors' Report
is attached.

2%
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OO“’%
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Independent Auditors' Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Yucaipa Valley Water District
Yucaipa, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Water, Sewer, and Recyeled Water Enterprise
TFunds of the Yucaipa Valley Water District (District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain recasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audil procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accountling estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions O

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 1&fpects, the respective
financial position of the Water, Sewer, and Recycled Water Enterprise Funds of the District, asdf June 30, 2016,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 7o) }L

Other Matters Z 0’/
G5

Required Supplementary Information ;’(j“
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 11, the Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability on page 41 and the Schedule of Contributions on page 42 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The transmittal letter listed in the table of contents is presented
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The transmittal
letter has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also 1ssued our report dated , 2016, on
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report 1s an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 1n
considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Rancho Cucamonga, California

,2016
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Financial Statements
Audited Financ%;;ments - Fiscal Year 2016
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Manag@nt’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year 2016

This section of the Yucaipa Valley Water District's comprehensive annual financial report ﬁ% ts a discussion
and analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal years ending Junes 30, 2015 and
June 30, 2016. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report an District's
basic financial statements following this section.

Yucaipa Valley Water District’s financial statements consist of three enterprise funds: (W) water fund, (S) 5@@
fund and (R) recycled water fund. /
%@

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Based on the financial information for the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2016, the following financial highlights
are noted for the Yucaipa Valley Water District.

¥ The District’s net position increased 1.34%t0 $196,916,093.

% The District’s total revenues decreased 3.59% to $23,517,160.
¥ The District’s total expenses decreased 1.22% to 26,343,631,
P

The capital contributions to the District totaled $3,437,544 for the fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s basic
financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: Financial
Statements, Notes to the Financial Statements and Required Supplementary Information.

The District’s Basic Financial Statements are comprised of the Statement of Net Position, Statement of
Revemues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and Statement of Cash Flows.

The Sicatement of Net Position presents information on all District assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources with the difference reported as Net Position. Over time, increases or decreases
in Net Position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or
deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information showing how Net
Position changed during the fiscal vear.

The Statement of Cash Flows presents information about the cash receipts and cash payments of the District
during the fiscal year. When used with related disclosures and information in the other financial statements, the
information provided in these statements should help financial report users assess the District’s ability to generate
future net cash flows, its ability to meet its obligations as they come due and its need for external financing. It
also provides insight into the reasons for differences between operating income and associated cash receipts and
payments; and the effects on the District's financial position of its cash and its non-cash investing, capital and
related financing transactions during the year.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statementys provides additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the District's financial statements. The notes are included immediately following the
financial statements within this report.

P 2l
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’ Yuccipa Valley Water District

The following table summarizes the changes in the Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabi Deferred
Inflows of Resources and Net Pogition as of June 30, 2016. }A
Statement of Net Position /0
47,
2016 2015 Change % Change J\{/
Assets %)
Current assets - W $ 11,544,506 11318521 % 225,983 2.00%
Current assets - 3 9312148 8,756 444 555,704 6.35%
Current asgets - R 2,009,043 3,136,336 (1,147 ,493) -36.3%%
Net capital agsets - W 104,109,628 102,581,965 1,527,663 1.4%%
Net capital assets - § 126,851,770 128,206,759 (1,354,989 1.06%
Net capital assets - R 25,697,088 25,514,168 182,920 0.72%
Other assets - W 2,941 847 5967127 (3,025,280) -50.70%
Other assets - 8 893,163 873,908 19255 2.20%
Other assets - R 394,035 364,059 29,976 8.23%
Total Assets 283,753,228 286,739,487 (2,986,259) -1.04%
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred amounts related to pensions - W 350,974 370,912 180,062 48.55%
Deferred amounts related to pensions - § 411,883 277279 134,606 48.55%
Deferred amounts related to pensions - R 7.913 5,327 2,588 48.58%
Total Deferred Outflows 970,774 653,518 317,256 48.5%%
Total Assets and Deferred Ouiflows 284,724,002 257,393,005 (2,669,003) -0.93%
Liabilities
Current liabilities - W 3,302,038 4,292,996 (990,958) 23.08%
Current liabilities - S 4,077,988 3838,334 219634 5.6%%%
Current liabilities - R 25,516 73,933 4847 £5.49%
Long, term liabilities - W 34,955257 36,474,537 (1,519,280) 4.1
Long term liabilities - S 44,182 947 47152277 {2,969,330) £.30%
Long term liabilities - R 35215 40,320 (5,105) 0.00%
Total Liabilities 86,578,961 01,892,397 (5,313,436) -5.78%
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred amounts related to pensions - W 697,503 678,571 18,934 2.79%
Deferred amowunts related to pensions - § 521425 307272 14,153 2.79%
Deferred amounts related to pensions - R 10018 9,745 273 2.80%
Total Deferred Inflows 1,228,948 1,195,588 33.360 2.79%
Net Position
Net Investment in capital assets,

Net of related debt - W 71,099,483 68433170 2,666,313 3.90%

Net of related debt - S 82,109,327 80,788,980 1,320,347 1.63%

Net of related debt - R 25,697,088 25,514,168 182,920 0.72%
Restricted - W 2,941,847 5955412 (3,013,563) -50.60%
Restricted - S 893,163 873,908 19255 2.20%
Restricted - R 394035 364,059 29976 823%
Unrestrcted - W 6150825 4403 839 1,746,986 39.67%
Unrestrcted - $ 5,684,116 4933619 750,497 15.21%
Unrestricted - R 1,946,209 3,037,863 (1,091,656) -35.93%

Total Net Position 196,916,093 194,305,020 2,611,073 1.34%
Total Liabhilities, Deferred Inflows and Net
Position $ 284,724,002 287.393,005 $  (2.669,003) -0.93%
Page 6
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Manag t’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year 2016

Statement of Net Position — The District’s net position increased between fiscal years 2@15 and 2015-16,
increasing from $194,305,020 to $196,916,093. The change can be seen in the condensed S@ement of Net
Position below as a $2,611,073 increase in net position. O (O

As of July 1, 2014 and the District’s adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Mo, 68,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and B
Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date ijjlr
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. These pronouncements resulted in a restatement of the Distn'ct’{o‘
beginning net position and inclusion of several new accounts on the District’s financial statements. These new
accounts include a $4,320,667 net pension liability, $1,228,948 in deferred inflow of resources (deferred amount
on pensions) and $970,774 in deferred outflows of resources from pension contributions made after the
measuwrement date and amortization. These are further discussed in Defined Benefit Pension Plans in the

ACCOMpanying pages.

The decrease in in recycled current assets is attributed to the increased recycled expenditures and operations.

The decrease in other water assets is attributed to the new Statewide Community Infrastructure Program (SCIP),
formed to finance the construction and installation of a reservoir that will service properties located within
Community Facilities District AD-14-01. Bonds were issued by community facilities districts for construction
funding for the Reservoir 12.4. Yucaipa Valley Water District is not liable for the bonds, but is an acting agent for
the bondholders. Additional information can be found in Note 18 of the report.

P 2
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Manag@nt’s Discussgion and Analysis
Fiscal Year 2016

The following table summarizes changes in Net Position for the year ended June 30, 2016. ’{\2\

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position OQO
2016 2013 Change % Change
Operating Revenues %
Water Services 3 8,646,208 $ 9,502 880 $ (836,582) -9.01% J\/
Sewer Services 11,196 247 11316511 (120,264) -1.06% Z@“
Recycled Services 398,567 443652 (45,083) -10.16%
Interfund Services Provided 160,000 153,500 6,500 4.23%
Other Revenue 1,905 3420 (1,515) -44.30%
Total Operating Revenues 20,403,017 21,419,963 (1,016,946) -4.75%
Non-Operating Revenues
Interest Income 90,693 32373 38.320 73.16%
Property Taxes 2934343 2,791,142 143,401 3.14%
Other Tncome 88.905 129903 (41,000) -31.56%
Total Non-Operating Revenues 3.114.143 2973422 140,721 4.73%
Total Revenues 23,517,160 24,393,385 (876,225) -359%
Operating Expenses
Salaries & Benefits - W 3499728 3,662 236 (162,508) -4.44%
Salaries & Benefits - S 2624212 2 818855 (194,643) -6.91%
Salaries & Benefits - R 261,717 120819 140,898 116.62%
Operating Expenses - W 4,548 236 4,766,899 (218,643) -4.39%
Operating Expenses - S 3.608871 3,398,750 210,121 6.18%
Operating Expenses - R 433,089 277340 175,549 63.25%
Water Purchases - W 920,036 309,584 410472 80.53%
Depreciation & Amortization - W 3312043 3,287,958 24,085 0.73%
Depreciation & Amortization - $ 4,086,215 4,084,540 1,673 0.04%
Depreciation & Amortization - R 784,075 7079 6,996 0.90%
Total Operating Expenses 24,098.262 23,704,260 394,002 1.66%
Non-Operating Expenses
(Gain)/Loss on Asset Disposal 12,116 - 12,116 100.00%
Bond Issuance cost - W - 244,101 (244,101) -100.00%
Interest Expense - W 1,121,714 1,372,938 (431,224) -28.69%
Interest Expense - 8 1,111,539 1,147 493 (35,956) -3.13%
Total Non-Operating Expenses 2245 369 2964334 (719,163) -24.26%
Total Expenses 26,343,631 26,668,794 (325,163) -122%
o)
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page &
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 18, 2016 - Page 36 of 209



Director Memorandum No. 16-096 Page 21 of 55

Manag@nt’s Discussion and Analysis

{ey Fiscal Year 2016

>

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2016 2015 Change Cb% Change

Income (Loss) Before Contributions - W b (1,709,210)  § (1,624,707) % {84,503) \;?20%

Income (Loss) Before Contributions - 8 {42,615) 36,248 {98,863) 17

Income (Loss) Before Contributions - R {1,074,646) (706,950} {367,696) 32.0 )

Total Income {Loss) Before Contributions {2,826,471) (2,275,409) {551,062) 24.22% \/ o

Contributions

Capital Contributions - W 3,108,944 10,622,515 (7,513,571) -70.73%

Capital Contributions - 3 2,132,714 1,531,760 600,954 39.23%

Capital Contributions - R 195,886 93,624 102262 109.23%

5,437,544 12,247,899 {6,810,355) 77.73%

Change in Net Position - W 1,399,734 8,997,808 (7,598,074) -84.44%
Change in Net Position - § 2,090,099 1,588,008 502,091 31.62%
Change in Net Position - R (878,760) (613,326) (265434) 43.28%

Beginning Net Position 194,305,020 184,332,530 9,972,490 5.41%
Ending Net Position $  196.916,093 § 194,305,020 $ 2,611,073 1.34%

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position provides the nature and source of these
changes. As can be seen in the preceding table, the loss before capital contributions of $2,826,471 and capital
contributions of $5,437,544 were the source of the increase in Net Position of $2,611,073 in Fiscal Year 2016.

On January 17, 2014, Governor Brown issued a proclamation of a state of emergency under the California
Emergency Services Act based on drought conditions. On April 25, 2014, Governor Brown issued a proclamation
of a continued state of emergency based on continued drought. Yucaipa Valley Water District has taken steps over
the years to reduce drinking water use by implementing an extensive recycled water system and asking customers
to cut back usage, resulting in $856,582 decreased water services revenue.

The recycled water operations continues to expand resulting in increased overall expenses.

Fiscal year 2015 the Yucaipa Valley Regional Filtration Facility was shut down for four months due to extended
maintenance and drought conditions. During this time Yucaipa Valley Water District used ground water in lieu of
imported state water. Fiscal year 2016 the plant was shut down for the one month annuzl scheduled maintenance
attributing the increased water purchases.

The fiscal year 2015 water capital contributions increase was attributed to the Statewide Community
Infrastructure Program (SCIP), formed to finance the construction and installation of a reservoir that will service
properties located within Community Facilities District AD-14-01. Bonds were issued by community facilities
districts for construction funding for the Reservoir 12.4. Yucaipa Valley Water District is not liable for the bonds,
but is an acting agent for the bondholders. Additional information can be found in Note 18 of'the report.

In fiscal year 2015 bond issuance of $244,101 was the cost of the Series 2015A Refunding Bonds sold to refund
Series 2004 A Certificates of Participation, resulting in $451,224 interest savings in Fiscal Year 2016.

P 2l
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{ey Fiscal Year 2016

>

At the end of Fiscal Year 2016, the District had invested $256,658,483 in a broad range of infrastru as shown

below. }A

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT ACTIVITY

o
Schedule of Capital Assets ,/0
)%
2016 2015 Change % Change ‘/6“

Non-Depreciable Assets
Land & Easements $ 5,587,305 $ 5,587,306 $ (1) 0.00%
Water Rights 5,919,976 5,919,976 - 0.00%
Construction in Progress 15,742 545 10,845,469 4,897.076 45.15%
Total Non-Depreciable Assets 27.249.826 22,352,751 4,897.075 21.91%

Depreciable Assets

Structures & Improvements 330,304,418 326,869,552 3,434,866 1.05%
Equipment 6,101,285 6,004,449 6,336 0.11%
Total Depreciable Assets 336,405,703 332,964,001 3441702 1.03%
Less Accumulated Depreciation (106,997,046) (99,013,860) (7,983,186) 8.06%
Net Depreciable Assets 229,408,657 233,950,141 (4,541,484) -1.94%
Total Capital Assets, Net § 256,658,483 § 256,302,892 § 355591 0.14%

As of June 30, 2016, construction in progress increased $4,897,075, primarily in the water and sewer enterprise
funds with the construction the SCIP reservoir project R-12.4 and digester cleaning and cover replacement
project. The closure of infrastructure projects increased the value of structures and improvements.

Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 of this report.

F 3t )
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Manag@nt’s Discussion and Analysis

{ey Fiscal Year 2016

Long-term obligations, including cuirent portion, total $86,578,961 as of June 30, 2016, 31‘6}91,892,397 as of
June 30, 2015. The long-term obligations were comprised of compensated absences, water re e bonds and
sewer fund state revolving fund (SRF) loans for the WRWRF plant expansion, Regional Brine %Xtension,

(WISE) Wochholz Improved Salinity Effluent Project, Non-Potable Reservoir NR-10.3.1 project e Crow
Street Recycled Project. Ve
%
Schedule of Liabilities )
“
2016 2015 Change % Change
Long Term Obligations:

Compensated absences 3 869,121 3 797,172 $ 71,949 9.03%
Refunding Revenue Bonds - Water 31,980,145 33,180,510 (1,200,365) -3.62%
State Revolving Fund Loan - Sewer 42,003,486 44,742,442 (2,738,956) -6.12%
Net Pension Liability 4,320,667 4,947,010 626,343) -12.66%
Total Long Term Obligations 79,173,419 83,667,134 {4,493,715) -5.37%

Current Portion of Obligations:

Compensated Absences 429,655 390,914 38,741 9.91%
Refunding Revenue Bonds - Water 1,030,000 980,000 50,000 5.10%
State Revolving Fund Loan - Sewer 2.738.957 2675337 63,620 2.38%
Other Current Liabilities 3,206,930 4,179,012 {(972,082) -23.26%
Total Current Obligations 7,405,542 8,225,263 (819,721) -9.97%
Total Liabilities § 86,578,961 §  9L892,397 8§ (5,313,436 _5.78%

Additional information on the District’s long-term obligations can be found in Notes 4 through 12 of this report.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the financial position of the Yucaipa Valley
Water District for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.

Questions concemning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to Vicky Elisalda, Controller at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa, California 92399.

P 2l
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 2}0
JUNE 30, 2016 P
c;
Enterprise Funds 0.)‘
Water Bewer Eecyeled Water Total 7
ASSETS
Current A ssets
C'ash and investments S 2,610,008 & 7,798,477 § 1920990 % 18,330,465
Accounts recervable, net 1,217,287 1,502,576 25587 2,905,430
Tazes and assessments receivable 82,000 §2,000
Grants recervable -
Interest receivable 11,095 11,095 2466 24,656
Inventory 712,246 712,246
Prepayments and deposits 210,900 310,900
Total Current Assets 11,544,506 9,312,148 2,009,043 22,865,697
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted investments 2,541,847 893,163 394,035 4,229,045
Capital assets not being depreciated 12,174,139 9,183,555 5,892,134 27,249,928
Capital assets being depreciated, net 01,935 485 117,668,215 19,804,954 229,408,658
Total Noncurrent A ssets 107,051,475 127,744,533 26,091,123 260,887,531
TOTAL ASSETS 118,595,981 137,057,081 28,100,166 283,753,228
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 550,974 411,885 7,915 970,774
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 398,180 391,512 25,516 815208
Customer dep osits 142700 142700
Developer/construction deposits 1,060,912 1,060,912
Accrued mterest payable 427 038 761,072 1,188 110
Current portion of longterm liabilities
Compensated absences 243208 186,447 429,655
Certificates of participation 1,030,000 1,030,000
Staterevolving fund loans 2,738,957 2,738,957
Total Current Liabilities 3,302,038 4,077,988 25516 7405 542
Long-Term Liabilities:
Compensated absences 522,862 348,259 863,121
Certificates of participation 31,980,145 31,980,145
State revolving fund loans 42,003,486 42,003 486
Wet penzion liability 2452250 1,833,202 35215 4. 320,667
Total Leng-Term Liab lities 34,055 257 44,182,047 35215 79173419
TOTAL LIABILITIES 38,257 295 48,260,935 50,731 86,578 961
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amounts related to pensions 697,505 521425 10,018 1,228,948
NET POSITION
et investment in capital assets 71,009,483 82,109,327 25,697,088 178,905,898
Resatricted for:
Debt service 893,183 893,163
Capital projects 2,541,847 394,035 3,335,882
Tnrestricted 6,150,825 5.654,116€ 1,046,200 13,781,150
TOTAL NET FPOSITION 3 20,192,155 & 88686606 283037332 § 196,916,093
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these tinancial statements.
2%
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSI
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 C\O(O
7>
Enterprise Funds 0‘)‘
Water Sewer Recyeled Water Total "/
OPERATING REVENUES 6_‘
Charges for current services $ 2,646,208 § 11196247 % 398567 % 20241112
Interfund services provided 160,000 160,000
Other revenue 1,905 1,905
Total Operating Revenues 8,806,298 11,198,152 398,567 20,403,017
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits 3,499,728 2,624,212 261,717 63835657
Electrieal power 1,228,136 961,273 103,162 2292 571
Water purchases 920,056 920,056
Administrative services 781,378 390,602 56362 1,228432
Operating supplies 175,672 443,589 4,426 623,687
Maintenance and repairs 1,023 4118 710,769 68,509 1,802,696
Crystal Creek Water Treatment 757,125 T57,125
Brineline charges 150,194 150,194
Depreciation 3,312,043 4,086,215 784 075 8182333
Insurance 99,933 100,522 200455
Professional fees 355,256 529,284 199,934 1,084,474
Other 127,338 322,548 20,696 470,582
Total Operating Expenses 12,280,083 10,319,298 1,498 881 24.098.262
Operating Income (Loss) (3.473,785) 878.854 (1,100314) (3.695243)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 42332 40,695 7,668 90,695
Property taxes 2,770,043 146,500 18,000 2,934,543
Other income 86,030 2,875 88,905
Loss on disposal of assets (12,116) (12,116)
Interest expense (1,121.714) (1,111,539) (2,233 253)
Total Non-Operating Revenues
(Expenses) 1,764,575 921,469) 25 668 868,774
Income (Loss) Before Contributions (1,709,210) (42,615) (1,074,646) (2,826,471)
CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital contributions 3,108,944 2,132,714 195 886 5,437,544
Change in Net Position 1,399,734 2,090,099 (878,760) 2,611,073
Net Position, Beginning of Year 78,792,421 86,596,307 28.916,092 194,305,020
Net Position, End of Year $ 80,192,155 § 88686606 § 28037332 3 196916093
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these tinancial statements.
2%d
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

CARH FLOWS FEOM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Receipts (payments) from interfund services provided
Payments to supplisrs
Employrment related payments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASHFLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
AND RELATED FINMANCING ACTIVITIER
Capital contributions
Cash paid for capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Wet Cash ProvidedTsed)y for Capital and
Eelated Financing Activities

CASHFLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINAMNCING ACTIVITIES
Property taxes received
Other receipts
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital
Fmancing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends

et IncreasefiDecrease) i Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances, Beginning of Y ear

Balances, End of Year

Reconciliation to Statement of Met Position:
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investrments - Non-current
Total Cash and Investments

s

C
Q
“p

G

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these tinancial statements.

2%

“O
Enterprize Funds b
W ater Sewer Recycled Water Tctal 7
$ 8641720 0§ 11207067 § 379161 § 20,227,943
160,000 (160,000
(5,559,686 (3,267,036 (501,508 (9,328,228
(3,960,078 (2,955,991) (269,137 (7,185,206
(718,044 4,824,040 (391 4823 3,714,514
3,011,541 1,504,105 107,303 5,022,949
(5,723,295 (2,502,617 (878,412 (5,104,328
(980,000 (2,675,336) (3,655,336)
(1314013 (1,156,388 (2,470,401
(5,005,771} (4,430,236 (771,108 (10,207,116
2,758,504 146,500 18,000 2,623,084
86,030 2,875 88,905
2,844 614 145375 18,000 3,011,989
36,806 35,169 & 440 78415
(2,842,395) 578,348 (1,138,151) (3,402,198
14,395 240 8,113,292 3,453,176 25,961,708
$ 11,552.845 % 2,691,640 § 2315025 % 22,552.510
$ 8610998 § 7798477 § 1,920,990 $ 18330465
2,941,347 353,163 394,035 4,229,045
$ 11,552,345 § 8,691,640 $ 2315025 $ 22,559,510
Page 15
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS, Continued
PROPRIETARY FUNDS } e
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 340, 2016 O(O
7,
o,
Enterprize Funds 0.)‘
Water Sewer ERecycled Water Total 7

RECOMNCILIATION OF OPERATING Income (Loss)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Incotme (loss) $ (3,473,785) % 878,854 § (1,100,314 $ (3,695,245}
Adjustments to reconcile operating mnceme to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 3,312,043 4,088,215 764,075 8,192,333
Loss on disposal 12,118 12,118

Change in azzets and liabilities:
Receivables, net (49,927 2,915 (12,406) B04138)
Compensated absences 56,267 54.423 110,690
Prepayrnents and deposits (81,914 81,214
Developer and customer deposits 45,349 45,349
Inventory 105,726 105,726
Accounts and other payables (non-capitaly (127,302) 181,835 (48417 6,116
Net pension liability (355,489) (265749 (5,105) (626,343
Change in deferred outflows of resources related to pensions (180,062 (134 60&) (2,588) (317,236
Change in deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 18,934 14,153 273 33,360
et Cash Provided by Operating Activities 3 (718,044 § 4324040 F (391432 % 3,714,514

SUPFLEMENT AL DISCLOSURE OF NOMN-CARH
CAPITAL AND EELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Centributed capital assets $ 57,403 § 228609 § 88,583 § 414,505

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these tinancial statements.

29D
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
STATEMENT OF FIDCUIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES %
AGENCY FUND 2}
JUNE 340, 2016 OO
“p
‘@
/0
SCIPR-12.4
Reservoir < 5
Agency Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 988,193
LIABILITIES
Due to other governments $ 988,193
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these tinancial statements.
P 3 )
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Financial Statements
Audited Financ%;;ments - Fiscal Year 2016

OO“’%
0
s
%
%
Notes to the Financial Statements
2%
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %\
JUNE 30, 2016 2‘
@
%
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES }/0
L
A. Reporting Entity Qj‘

7
Yucaipa Valley Water District (the District) is a special-purpose government district providing water
distribution and sewer collection and treatment for consumers within its service area. The financial
staternents of the District have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP), as applied to enterprise funds. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles.

B. Basis of Presentation

Fund Financial Statements - The District solely operates as a Special-Purpose Government which means it is
only engaged in business-type activities, accordingly activities are reported in proprietary funds.

The District has the following major proprietary funds:

e Water — This fund accounts for the activities of the District's drinking water supply system.

e Sewer — This fund accounts for the activities of the District's sewage treatment plant, pumping
stations, and collection systems.

* Recycled Water — This fund accounts for the activities of the District's recycled water supply system.

The SCIP R-12.4 Reservoir agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of
accounting for reporting its assets and liabilities. This fund is used to account for receipts and disbursements
associated with Assessment District AD-14-01, which is administered by, but is not the liability of, the
District.

C. Basis of Accounting

Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the ecoromic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in
which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include property taxes, grants,
entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year
for which the taxes apply. Property taxes are collected for the District by the Counties of San Bernardino and
Riverside. Revenue from grants, enfitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revermes and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revermies and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
commection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
District’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses include the
costs of sales and services, the costs of employee benefits, maintenance of capital assets, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues
and expenses.

2%
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 30, 2016 f
C
%,
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continied) /0
/
D. Capital Assets OJ‘

o
G
Capital assets purchased or constructed are carried at cost. Constructed costs include labor, materials and
construction period interest expense (net of interest income, where applicable). Capitalization threshold is
$5,000. Contributed assets are stated at estimated fair market value at the time received by the District.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Structures and improvements 10 — 50 years
Equipment 4 — 10 years

E. Restricted Investments

Various resources of the District are limited as to their use by law or by debt covenants and are classified on
the balance sheet as restricted investments. Undisbursed debt proceeds are restricted for repayment of the
debt and project costs. Also, fees imposed on new real estate development are restricted by law for the
construction of capital improvements which benefit the development projects.

F. Inventory
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost, using the average cost method, or market.
G. Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and investments are held in the District's cash management pool. Therefore, for purposes of the
statement of cash flows, the District considers the entire pooled cash and investment balance to be cash and
cash equivalents.

H. Investments

Investments are reported at fair value which is the amount at which financial instruments could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties. All fair values are determined by external consultants.
Investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements are those that
Governmental Accounting Standards Board {(GASB) Statements require or permit in the statement of net
position at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on the valuation
inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable
inputs. Management reviews investments for events that might affect fair value measurements of investments
on a monthly basis. The evaluation is performed at the lowest level of identifiable unit of account.

I. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

P 2l
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 30, 2016 2} O
o{o}
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continued) /0
L
J. Uncollectible Accounts OJ‘

The District provides an allowance for doubtful accounts for all accounts deemed uncollectible. As of
June 30, 2016, this allowance was estimated at $10,546 in the Water Fund and $14,357 in the Sewer Fund.

K. Credit/IVlarket Risk

The District provides water, sewer, and recycled water services to local residential and commercial customers.
As part of normal operating practices, credit is granted to local customers, on an unsecured basis.

L. Use of Restricted Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

M. Net Position

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets reduced by accumulated depreciation and by any
outstanding debt incurred to acquire, construct, or improve those assets.

Restricted net position consists of those restricted assets reduced by liabilities related to those assets.

Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or
the restricted component of net position.

N. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s California Public
Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) plan and additions to/deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit
pavments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Q. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources until then. The government only has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is the
deferred outflow related to pensions which is the result of the implementation of GASB 68 representing the
District's pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date and change in proportion.

%)
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 30, 2016 7 e
o(o}*
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Contintied) /0
/
O. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, (Continued) 0\)‘{/
G

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources until that time. The government has only one type of item, deferred amounts related to
pensions. This item is the result of the implementation of GASB 68 representing the change in proportion
and the difference between projected and actual earnings on investments.

P. New Accounting Pronouncements

Effective in this Fiscal Year

GASB Statement No. 72 — In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and
Application. The primary objective of this statement is to define fair value and describe how fair value should
be measured, define what assets and liabilities should be measured at fair value, and determine what
information about fair value should be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Statement is
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015, or the 2015-16 fiscal year. The District implemented this
statements as of July 1, 2015.

Effective in Future Fiscal Years

GASB Statement No. 74 — In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for
Postemplovment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. The objective of the Statement is to address the
financial reports of defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet specified
criteria. The Statement requires more extensive note disclosures and RSI related to the measurement of the
OPER liabilities for which assets have been accumulated. The Statement is effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2016, orthe 2016-2017 fiscal year. The District has not determined the effect of the statement.

GASB Statement No. 75 — In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. The objective of the Statement is to replace the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 45. In addition, the Statement requires governments to report a liability
on the face of the financial statements for the OPEB provided and requires governments to present more
extensive note disclosures and required supplementary information about their OPEB liabilities. The
Statement is effective for the periods beginning June 15, 2017, or the 2017-2018 fiscal year. The District has
not determined the effect of the statement.

GASB Statement No. 77 — In August 2015, GASB issued Statement No 77, Tux Abatement Disclosures.
The Statement requires state and local governments to disclose information about tax abatement agreements.
The Statement is effective for the periods beginning after December 15, 2015, or the 2016-2017 fiscal year.
The District has not determined the effect of the statement.
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %\
JUNE 30, 2016 2‘ e
%
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (Continued) }/0
L
P. New Accounting Pronouncements, (Continued) Qj‘

ey
%
Effective in Future Fiscal Years (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 78 — In December 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through
Certain Mudtiple-Emplover Defined Benefit Pension Plans. This statement amends the scope and
applicability of Statement No. 68. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2015. The district has not determined the effect on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 80 — In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Tnterest
Agreements. The objective of this statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable
split-interest agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a
governmelr is a beneficiary of the agreement. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The district has not determined the effect on the financial
statements.

GASB Statement No. 81 — In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Tnterest
Agreements. The objective of this statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable
split-interest agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a
government is a beneficiary of the agreement. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The district has not determined the effect on the financial
statements.

GASB Statement No. 82 — In March, 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues an amendment of
GASE Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73. This statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation
of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the
treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting
purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by emplovers to satisty employee (plan member)
contribution requirements. The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of this statement for the selection of assumptions in a
circumstance in which an employer’s pension liability is measured as of a date other than the employer’s most
recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements for the selection of assumptions are effective
for the employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the pension liability is on or
after June 15, 2017.
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

“p-

7
%
Cash and investments are classified as the accompanying financial statements as follows: J‘/\/
s}
Statement of Net Position
Cash and investments $ 18,330,465
Restricted investments - Non-current 4,229,045
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 988,193
Total Cash and Investments $ 23,547,703
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016, consist of the following;:
Petty cash S 800
Cash 1,038,505
Investments 22,508,398
Total Cash and Investments § 23,547,703

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the Yucaipa Valley Water District's

Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the Yucaipa Valley Water District by the
California Government Code and the District’s policy, whichever is more restrictive. The table also identifies
certain provisions of the California Government Code that address interest rate risk and concentration of credit
risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the
provisions of debt agreements of the Yucaipa Valley Water District, rather than the general provisions of the

California Government Code.

Authorized
Investment Type

U.S. Treasury Obligations
Money Market Accounts
Local Agency Investment Fund (L. ATF)

2%
' Yucaipa Valley Water District

Maximuum M aximuum
Percentage Investment
of Portfolio in One Issuer
None None
None None
None None
Page 23
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %\
JUNE 30, 2016 2‘ O
o3
NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (Continued) }/0
L
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements Qj‘

ey
4
Investment of debt proceeds held by the bond trustee is governed by provisions of the debt agreement, rather than
the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s investment policy. The table below
identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustee. The table also identifies
certain provisions of the debt agreement that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations None None None
U.S. Agency Securities None None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Repurchase Agreements 365 days None None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit None 30% None
Money Market Mutval Funds None None None

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. One of the ways that the Yucaipa Valley Water District manages its exposure to
interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash
flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time
as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments to market interest rate fluctuations
is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District's investments by maturity:

Maturity
12 Months
Investment Type Fair Value or Less
LAIF $ 19,133,251 b 19,133,251
U.S. Treasury Bills 499,795 499,795
Money Market Funds 2,875,352 2,875,352
Total 3 22,508,398 3 22,508,398
F 3t )
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %\
JUNE 30, 2016 2‘ O
o3
NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (Continued) }/0
L
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk Qj‘

7,
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the rating as of year-end for each investment type:

S&P
Rating at
Fair Value June 30, 2016
LAIF $ 19,133,251 Unrated
U.S. Treasury Bills 499,795 AA+
Money Market Funds 2,875,352 AAAmM

Total $ 22,508,398

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for depesits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for imvestments is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code
and the Yucaipa Valley Water District's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would
limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for
deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or
local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated
under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the
collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California
law also allows financial institutions to secure deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value
of 150 percent of the secured public deposits. Bank deposits are covered by the federal depository insurance
(FDIC) for the first $250,000. As of June 30, 2016, the District has $1,172,388 of cash in excess of the FDIC
limit. The uninsured deposits were held by financial institutions, which are legally required by the California
Government Code to collateralize the District’s deposits as noted above.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (L ATF) that is regulated by California
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. LATF has a
portion of the pool invested in structured notes and asset backed securities. The fair value of the District's
investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the District's
pro-rata share of the tair value provided by LATF, for the entire L AIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost
of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by L ATF,
which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. LAIF is not registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is not rated. Deposits and withdrawals to and from L AIF are transferred on the basis of $1 and
not fair value. Accordingly, under the fair value hierarchy, L ATF is uncategorized.
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %
JUNE 30, 2016 2} O
o{o}
NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS, (Confinued) /0
L
Fair Value Hierarchy OJ‘

7
The district categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The district has the following recurring fair value measurements as of year-end.

As of June 30, 2016:
Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Investments by Fair Value Level Amaount (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U.S Treasury Bills $ 499,795 3 - $ 499,795 $ -
Total Investments by Fair Value Level $ 499,795 3 - $ 499,795 $ -
Local Agency Investment Fund 19,133,251
Money Market Funds 2,875,352
Total Investments $ 22,508,398

In determining fair value, the district’s custodians use various methods including market and income approaches.
Based on these approaches, the district’s custodians utilize certain assumptions that market participants would use
in pricing the asset or liability. The district’s custodians utilize valuation techniques that maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Various inputs are used in determining the value of the district’s investments and other financial instruments.
The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk associated
with investing in those securities. These inputs are summarized in the three broad levels: Level 1 - quoted
prices in active markets for identical investments, Level 2 - other significant observable inputs (including
quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit isk, etc.) and Level 3 - significant
unobservable inputs (including the district’s own assumptions in determining the fair value of investments).
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YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %\
JUNE 340, 2016 } O
@
NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS }T/
7>
The following tables summarize capital asset activity during 2015-2016: 0\_5‘/
‘/O“
Balance Balance
‘Water Fund June 30, 2015 Increases Decreases June 30, 2016
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and easements $ 4,111,106 8 4,111,106
Water rights 432,941 432,941
Construction in progress 4833568 § 4835654 % (2,039,130) 7,630,002
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 9,377,615 4,835,654 (2,039,130) 12,174,139
Capital assets being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 128481,254 1,875,285 (7,842) 130,348,697
Equipment 4,358,181 180,014 (176,898) 4,361,297
Total capital assets being
depreciated 132,839,435 2,055,299 (184,740) 134,709,994
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Structures and improvements (36,040,228)  (3,126,212) 7,842 (39,158,598)
Equipment (3,594.857) (185,831) 164,781 (3,615,907)
Total accumulated
depreciation (39,635,085) (3,312,043) 172,623 (42,774,505)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 93,204,350 (1,256,744) (12,117 91,935,489
Water Fund capital assets, net $102,581,965 § 3,578,910 § (2,051,247 § 104,109,628
Depreciation expense was $3,312,043 for the year ended June 30, 2016.
%>
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O%}

C
Qo
NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS, (Continued) )T/
%
Balance Balance \j‘/
Sewer Fund June 30, 2015 Increases Decreases June 30, 2016 5
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and easements $ 4,111,106 $ 4.111,106
Water rights 432,941 432,941
Construction in progress 351,097 § 2523920 $ (654,697) 2,220,320
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 7,314,332 2,523,920 (654,697) 9,183,555
Capital assets being depreciated:
Structures and improvements 173,668,697 831,758 174,500,455
Equipment 1,589,268 30,245 (26,525) 1,592,988
Total capital assets being
depreciated 175,257,965 862,003 (26,525) 176,093,443
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Structures and improvements (53,017,151) (4,052,737 (57,069,888)
Equipment (1,348,387) (33,478) 26,525 (1,355,340)
Total accurmuilated
depreciation (54,365,538) (4,086,215) 26,525 (58,425,228)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 120,892 427 (3,224,212) 117,668,215
Sewer Fund capital assets, net $ 128,206,759 § (700,292) $ (654,697) § 126,851,770
Depreciation expense was $4,086,215 for the year ended June 30, 2016.
a9
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NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS, (Continued) J':/
2>
Balance Balance 0\_)>
Recycled Water Fund June 30, 2015 Increases Decreases June 30, 2016 5
Capital assets not being depreciated
Construction in progress $ 5600804 § 882,087 & (650,757) 5,892,134
Capital assets being depreciated:
Structures and improverments 24,719,600 735665 § - 25,455,265
Equipment 147,000 - - 147,000
Total capital assets being
depreciated 24,866,600 735,665 - 25,602,265
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Structures and improvements (4,983,836) (769,373) - (5,753,211)
Equipment (29.400) {14,700) - (44,100
Total accumulated
depreciation (5,013,236) (784,075) - (5,797,311)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 19,853,364 (48410) - 19,804,954
Recycled Water Fund capital assets, net $§ 25,514,168 § 833,677 $§ (650,757) § 25,697,088

Depreciation expense was $784,075 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

NOTE 4 - REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2015 A

In 2015, the District sold certificates of participation in the amount of $30,810,000 to refund the 2004 Certificates
of Participation and to pay delivery costs of the certificates.

Certificates began maturing on September 1, 2015 with semi-annual interest payments due March 1 and
September 1 at various interest rates from 3.00 to 5.00 percent. Principal payments are due annually September 1
at various amournts from $980,000 to $2,240,000. The final principal payment of the certificates is scheduled for
September 1, 2034, See Note 12 for revenues pledged. The Bonds are recorded in the Water Fund.

2%
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NOTE 4 - REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS SERIES 2015 A, (Continued) \/0
L
Maturities of the revenue refunding bonds are as follows: OJ‘/
%
Fiscal Year 2015 Refunding Revenue Bonds Series A
Ending Principal Interest Total
2017 3 1,030,000 3 1,265,662 3 2,295,662
2018 1,065,000 1,228,912 2293912
2019 1,115,000 1,179,737 2,294,737
2020 1,170,000 1,122,612 2,292,612
2021 1,230,000 1,062,612 2,292,612
2022-2026 7,005,000 4,463,685 11,468,685
2027-2031 8,790,000 2,674,516 11,464,516
2032-2035 8,425,000 752,962 9,177,962
Total $ 29,830,000 3 13,750,698 $§ 43,580,698

NOTE 5— STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN - 2006

In August 2006, the District entered into a loan agreement with the State of California Water Resources Control
Board to provide funding for the expansion and modification of the Henty N. Wochholz Wastewater Treatment.
Plant. The maximum amount of $44,748,356 has been drawn. The loan accrues interest at a rate of 2.4 percent
armually. Principal and interest payments are due in 20 annual installments. The first payment occurred in
September 2009. The District has pledged all revenues and amounts legally available to repay the loan. The loan
is recorded in the Sewer Fund.

Fiscal Year 2006 State Revolving Fund Loan
Ending Principal Interest Total
2017 3 2147973 § 775.696 $ 2,923,669
2018 2,199,524 724,145 2,923,669
2019 2,252,313 671,356 2,923,669
2020 2,306,368 617,301 2,923,669
2021 2,361,721 561,948 2,923,669
2022-2026 12,686,525 1,931,819 14,618,344
2027-2029 8,366,252 404,755 8,771,007
Total $ 32320676 % 5,687,020 § 38,007,696
o
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NOTE 6 — STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN - 2010 J':/a
L

In June 2010, the District entered into a loan agreement with the State of California Water Resources Co@ﬂ
Board (SWRCB) to provide the funding for the construction of the Regional Brineline Extension Project. T]ﬁ/dﬁ
maximum amount of $9,752,100 has been drawn plus interest accrued during the period of construction of
$183,714. The loan accrues interest at a rate of 2.7 percent annually. Principal and interest payments are due in

20 anmual installments. In accordance with Amendment No. 1 of the loan agreement, the first payment occurred

in December 2013. The District has pledged all revenues and amounts legally available to repay the loan. The
loan is recorded in the Sewer Fund.

Fiscal Year 2010 State Revolving Fund Loan
Ending Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 412,791 % 236483 % 649,274
2018 423,936 225,337 649,273
2019 435,383 213,891 649,274
2020 447,138 202,136 649,274
2021 459,211 190,063 649,274
2022-2026 2,488,866 757,502 3,246,368
2027-2031 2,843,503 402,865 3,246,368
2032-2033 1,247,786 50,760 1,298 546
Total 3 8,758,614 § 2,279,037 $§ 11,037,651

NOTE 7—- STATE REVOLVING FUND L.OAN - 2013 (WISE)

In December 2011, the District entered into a loan agreement (Wise) with the State of California Water Resources
Control Board (SWRCB) to provide the funding for Recycled Water Fund projects. The maximum amount of the
loan iz $2,988,364. The loan accrues interest at a rate of 2.2 percent annually. Principal and interest payments are
due in 20 annual installments. The first payment occurred in March 2014, The District has pledged all revenues
and amounts legally available to repay the loan. The loan is recorded in the Sewer Fund.

Fiscal Year 2013 (Wise) State Revolving Fund Loan
Ending Principal Interest Total
2017 3 127,966 § 57285 % 185,251
2018 130,782 54,470 185,252
2019 133,659 51,592 185,251
2020 136,599 48,652 185,251
2021 139,605 45,647 185,252
2022-2026 745,466 180,790 926,256
2027-2031 831.156 95,101 926,257
2032-2033 358,625 11,876 370,501
Total 3 2,603,858 § 545413 § 3,149,271
F )
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NOTE 8 — STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN —-2013 (R-10.3) /0
/

In December 2011, the District entered into a loan agreement (R-10.3) with the State of California \R%}
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) to provide the funding for Recycled Water Fund projects. The maximii’,
amount of the loan is $871,570. The loan accrues interest at a rate of 2.2 percent anmually. Principal and interest
payments are due in 20 annual installments. The first payment occurred in March 2014, The District has pledged
all reveres and amounts legally available to repay the loan. The loan is recorded in the Sewer Fund.

Fiscal Year 2013 (R-10.3) State Revolving Fund L.oan

Ending, Principal Interest Total
2017 3 37493 3§ 15,784 § 54,277
2018 38,318 15,959 54,277
2019 39,161 15,116 54,277
2020 40,023 14,254 54,277
2021 40,903 13,374 54,277
2022-2026 218,416 52,970 271,386
2027-2031 243,522 27,864 271,386
2032-2033 105,075 3,480 108,555
Total 3 762,911 % 159801 § 922,712

NOTE 9— STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN — 2013 (CROW)

In December 2011, the District entered into a loan agreement (Crow Street) with the State of California Water
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) to provide the funding for Recycled Water Fund projects. The District
received the amount of $310,179. The loan accrues interest at a rate of 2.2 percent annually on amounts drawn.
Repayment will be made in 20 anmual installments. The first payment occurred in March 2016. The District has
pledged all revenues and amounts legally available to repay the loan. The loan is recorded in the Sewer Fund.

Fiscal Year 2013 (Crow) State Revolving Fund I.oan
Ending Principal Interest Total
2017 3 12,734 3§ 6,520 $ 19,254
2018 13,014 6,240 19,254
2019 13,300 5,954 19,254
2020 13,593 5,661 19,254
2021 13,892 5,362 19,254
2022-2026 74,181 22,091 96,272
2027-2031 82,708 13,564 96,272
2032-2035 72,962 4,056 77,018
Total 3 296,384 $ 69,418 § 365,832
o%d
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2
It is the District's policy to permit emplovees to accumulate earned but unused vacation, sick leave and c@%
time, a portion of which will be paid to employees upon separation from the District. At June 30, 2016, to 31/6
accruals for Water, Sewer and Recycled Water funds amount to $766,070, $536,706, and $0 respectively. The
District estimated, based on historical trends, that approximately $243,208, $186,447, and $0 of the Water, Sewer,
and Recycled Water balances, respectively, will come due during fiscal year 2016-2017.

NOTE 10 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

NOTE 11 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following table summarizes changes in long-term liabilities balances for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016:

Balance Balance Amount Due
June 30, 2015 Additions Repayments June 30, 2016 in2016-17
2015 Refunding Revenue Bonds $ 30,810,000 % - $ (980,000) $  29,830000 § 1030000
Unamortized preminm 3,350,510 - (170,365) 3,180,145
Total Certificates of Participation 34,160,510 - (1,150,365) 33,010,145 1,030,000
State Revolving Fund Loan - 2006 34,418,304 - (2,097,5629) 32,320,675 2,147 973
State Revolving Fund Loan - 2010 9,160,553 $ - (401,939) 8,758,614 412791
State Revolving Fund Loan - 2013 Wise 2,729,141 - (125,283) 2,603,858 127 966
State Revolving Fund Loan - 2013 R-10.3 799,602 - (36,690) 762,912 37493
State Revolving Fund Loan - 2013 Crow 310,179 - (13,795) 296,384 12,734
Total State Revolving Fund Loans 47,417,779 - (2,675,336) 44,742,443 2,738,957
Compensated absences 1,188,086 110,690 1,298,776 429 655
Net pension liability 4,947,010 (626,343) 4,320,667
Total Long-term Liabilities § 87,713,385 § 110,690 § (4,452,044) § 83,372,031 § 4,198,612

NOTE 12 - REVENUE PLEDGED

The District has pledged future water fund revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay $30,810,000 in
refunding revenue bonds (2015 bonds) issued in 2015 as disclosed in Note 4. Net revenues are defined in the
2015 bond documents as operating income, less specified operating expenses, plus specified non-operating
income. The 2015 bonds refunded the 2004 Certificates of Participation (COP). Proceeds from the COPs
provided financing for the construction of the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility (YVRWFF).
The 2015 bonds are payable through 2035. Wet revenues are anticipated to equal at least 110 percent of annual
principal and interest payments. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the 2015 bonds is
$43,580,696. Principal and interest paid for the current year and total customer net revenmes were $2,294,014 and
$5,356,963, respectively.

For the state revolving fund loans recorded in the Sewer Fund, the District has pledged all revenues and amounts
legally available to repay the loans.

P 2l
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NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN J':/a
L

Plan Description — All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Disﬁ%@,
Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan (Plan), a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension pl
administered by the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the
Plan are established by State statute and may be amended by District resolution. CalPERS issues publicly
available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and
memmbership information. These reports can be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided — CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and
death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees, and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of
credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five vears of total service are eligible
to retire at age 60 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits afier
10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit,
or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as
specified by the Public Employees® Retirement Law.

The Plan's provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows:

PEPRA -
Miscellaneous Miscellaneous

Prior to January 1, On or after January

Hire Date 2013 1,2013

Formula 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 60 62
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 2.00% 2.00%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 6.250%
Required employer contribution rates 15.915% 6.237%

Contributions — Section 20814 (c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective
on the July 1 following notice of a change in rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are determined annually on
an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary
to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially
determined rate and the contribution rates of employees. Contributions to the pension plan from the District were
$882,127 for the year ended JTune 30, 2016.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
As of June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability of $4,320,667 for its proportionate share of the collective net

pension liability.

2%
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NOTE 13 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (Continued) \/0

L
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015 and the total pension liability used to calculate
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014 rolled forward to June 30, 201
using actuarial procedures. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating employers, actuarially determined. The District’s proportion of the net collective pension liability as
of June 30, 2014 and 2015, was as follows:

Proportion - June 30, 2014 0.07950%
Proportion - June 30, 2015 0.06295%
Change - Increase (Decrease) (0.01655%)

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized a pension credit of $28,111. At June 30, 2016, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 882,127
Changes between expected and actual experience 36,869
Changes in proportion and differences between
actual contributions and proportionate share of
contributions 51,774 8 705,259
Changes in assumptions - 348,818
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 174,867

$ 970,770 $ 1,228,944

$882,127 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30,

2017 $ (378,242)
2018 (383,995)
2019 (334,348)
2020 (43,716)
$ (1,140,301)

2o%d
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NOTE 13 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (Continited) \/0
L

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations were dete
using the following actuarial assumptions. /6
Valuation Date June 30, 2014
Measurement Date June 30, 2015
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.65%

Inflation 2.75%

Projected Salary Increase Varies by entry age and service

Investment Rate of Return 7.65%

Morttality Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation
were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period of 1997 to 2011. Further
details of the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website.

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that the District’s contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between
actuarially determined contributions rates and the employee rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active
and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all period of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

2%
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NOTE 13 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN, (Continited) /0
/

In determining the long-term expected 7.65 percent rate of return on pension plan investments, CalPER S took%)b
account both short and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash ﬂows/(s«
Based on the expected benefit payments of the Public Emplovees’ Retirement Fund, CalPERS indicated that a 19
vear horizon was ideal in determining the level equivalent discount rate assumption. Using historical returns of
all the funds® asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10
years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal retumns for
both short-term and long term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate for
return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return of retumn that arrived at the same present value
of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long term returns. The expected rate of
return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one
quarter of one percent. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class are the same for each Plan. These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses and are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return Real Rate of Return
Asset Class Target Allocation Years 1-10 Years 11+

Global Equity 51% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19% 0.99 243
Inflation Sensitive 6% 0.45 3.36
Private Equity 10% 6.83 6.95
Real Estate 10%0 4.50 5.13
Infrastructure and Forestland 2% 4.50 5.09
Liquidity 2% (0.55) (1.05)

Total 100%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rafe — The following presents the District’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.65 percent, as well as what
the District’s proportionate share of the net pension Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease 6.65%
Net Pension Liability $ 7,054,835
Current Discount Rate 7.65%
Net Pension Liability 3 4,320,667
1% Increase 8.65%
Net Pension Liability $ 2,072,112

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

P 2l
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NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS 7z
0.
The District has entered into contracts for various services and projects that will require payments in future 1‘@:@,
years. The contract amounts and remaining commitments as of June 30, 2016, are summarized below: \/6
Contract Remaining

Description Amounts Commitment
Water fund and General Operating projects $ 9,683,202 $ 1,722,147
Sewer fund projects 2,571,947 190,193
Recycled Water fund projects 894,003 137,849

Total $ 13,149,152 $ 2,050,189

NOTE 15— INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Interfund Services Provided

The Sewer fund reimburses the Water fund for the expenses related to administration, accounting and general
services. The reimbursement is reflected in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as the
revenue "Interfund services provided” in the Water Fund and included in the expense " Administrative services"” in
the Sewer Fund. The amount retmbursed for these services was $160,000 as of June 30, 2016.

NOTE 16 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the vear ended June 30, 2016, the District
purchased insurance through various commercial carriers to cover these risks with various limits including the
Real Property & Business Personal Property blanket limit of $95,041,921. The District has had no seitled claims
resulting from these risks that exceeded its commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 17 - PROPERTY TAXES

Under California law, property taxes are assessed and collected by the counties up to 1 percent of assessed value,
plus other increases approved by the voters. The property taxes go into a pool, and are then allocated to entities
based on complex formulas. The property tax calendar for San Bernardino and Riverside County is as follows:

Lien date Jamiary 1

Levy date July 1

Due date November 1 and February 1

Collection dates December 10 and April 10

P M)
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NOTE 18 - ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 7z

z
The District acts in a fiduciary capacity for an assessment district that was formed to finance the construction
installation of a reservoir that will service properties located within the assessment district. The bonds issued by/G«
the assessment district are payable solely from the revenues of annual special taxes levied against land within the
district and do not constitute an indebtedness of the Yucaipa Valley Water District. Yucaipa Valley Water
District is not liable for the bonds, but acts as an agent for the bondholders. Since the District is acting in an
agency capacity, the assets and liabilities of the assessment district have been excluded from the District’s
statement of net position. The amount outstanding on the bonds at June 30, 2016 was $11,015,000.

P 3 )
' Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 39
W ”

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 18, 2016 - Page 68 of 209



Director Memorandum No. 16-096 Page 53 of 55

Financial Statements
Audited Financ%;;ments - Fiscal Year 2016

OO“’p
{7
R
%
“
Required Supplementary Information
2t
’ Yucaipa Valley Water District Page 40
W

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 18, 2016 - Page 69 of 209



Director Memorandum No. 16-096 Page 54 of 55

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT O
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION «87({\
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE }O
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY — LAST TEN YEARS* @)
AS OF THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016 (OJ;
@,
2016 2015 -,
M
Proportion of the collective net pension liability 0.06295% 0.07950%
Proportionate share of the collective net pension liability $ 4,320,667 $ 4,947,010
Covered - employee payroll $ 3,953,813 b 4,616,557
Proportionate Share of the collective net pension liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll 109.28% 107.16%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
liability 78.40% 79.82%
* . Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only two years are shown.
)
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7
2016 2015 24,
-
Actuarially determined contributions $ 550,441 3 570,529 ‘/O“
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 882,127 570,529
Contribuiion deficiency (excess) 3 (331,686) $ -
Covered-employee payroll $ 4,165,826 $ 3,953,813
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 21.18% 14.43%
* - Fiscal year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore, only two years are shown.
)
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Date: October 18, 2016

Prepared By: Vicky Elisalda, Controller
Peggy Little, Administrative Supervisor

Subject: Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on September 30, 2016

Recommendation:  That the Board receives and files the unaudited financial report as
presented.

The following unaudited financial report has been prepared by the Administrative Department for
your review. The report has been divided into six sections to clearly disseminate information
pertaining to the financial status of the District. Please remember that the following financial
information has not been audited.

Cash Fund Balance Report
[Detailed information can be found on page 5 to 6 of 28]

The Cash Fund Balance Report provides a summary of how the total amount of funds maintained
by financial institutions is distributed throughout the enterprise and non-enterprise funds of the
District. A summary of the report is as follows:

Operating Restricted Total

Fund Source Funds Funds Funds
Water Division $8,210,647.99 $411,167.15 $8,621,815.14
Sewer Division $10,663,444.26 ($7,165,992.61) $3,497,451.65
Recycled Water Division $1,692,704.88 $461,702.32 $2,154,407.20
Total  $20,566,797.13 ($6,293,123.14) $14,273,673.99

Most of the funds reflected in the Cash Fund Balance Report are designated for specific purposes
and are therefore restricted, either by law or by District policy.

Check Register
[Detailed information can be found on pages 7 to 10 of 28]

The check register lists each check processed during the month of September 2016. The District
processed 200 checks during the month of September for a total sum of $4,148,566.93. All
checks are reviewed by District staff for accuracy and completeness, and usually signed by the
General Manager and one Director, but may be signed by two Directors.

The Controller will make any check, invoice or supporting documentation available for review to
any board member upon request.
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Financial Account Information
[Detailed information can be found on pages 11 to 14 of 28]

The District currently deposits all revenue received into the Deposit Checking account. The
General Checking account is used as a sole processing account for all District checks and
electronic payroll. The Investment Checking account is used for the purchase and redemption of
US treasury notes and bills and for the transfer of LAIF funds. The US treasury notes and bills
are booked at cost.

The LAIF investment account is a pooled money account administered by the State of California.
Additional information on the LAIF account is provided below in the investment summary report.

Investment Summary
[Detailed information can be found on pages 15 to 16 of 28]

The investment summary report illustrates the District's investments in US treasury notes and bills
in addition to the investments held by the Local Agency Investment Fund or LAIF. The yields for
the treasury notes and bills are provided for each individual transaction. The historical annual
yield for funds invested with LAIF is also provided.

Separate pooled money investment reports prepared by the State of California are maintained by
the District and available for review.

Monthly Revenue Allocation
[Detailed information can be found on pages 17 to 18 of 28]

During the month of September 2016 the District's deposit checking account received a sum total

of $2,396,705.64 in revenues from the following categories:

o Atotal of $2,136,186.45 was received from 14,196 customers for utility bill payments. This is
the total amount of utility bill payments received from water, sewer and recycled services.

e A total of $4,664.00 was received for construction meter deposits, customer deposits and
internet fee payments.

e A total of $157,061.75 was received from miscellaneous water related activities (other than
utility bill charges).

e A total of $98,793.44 was received from miscellaneous sewer related activities (other than
utility bill charges).

e Atotal of $0.00 was received from miscellaneous recycled related activities (other than utility
bill charges).

Fiscal Year 2017 Budget Status
[Detailed information can be found on pages 19 to 28 of 28]

The revenue and expense budget status for the 2017 Fiscal Year is provided for your review.
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Division
Water
Sewer
Recycled Water
District Revenue

Department
Water Resources

Public works
Administration
Long Term Debt
Asset Acquisition
TOTAL

Department
Treatment

Administration
Environmental Control
Long Term Debt

Asset Acquisition-Palmer

TOTAL
Department
Administration

TOTAL

District Expenses

Summary of Revenue Budget
As of September 30, 2016 (21% of Budget Cycle)

Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
13,781,800 1,169,706 2,510,250 18.21%
12,202,227 964,462 2,224,442 18.23%

657,100 364,165 624,143 94.98%
26,641,127 2,498,333 5,358,835 20.11%
Summary of Water Budget Expenses

As of September 30, 2016 (21% of Budget Cycle)

Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
5,005,900 331,676 1,138,406 22.74%
2,569,500 251,570 622,056 24.21%
3,910,735 290,670 822,753 21.04%
2,295,665 0 1,670,556 72.77%

0 0 0 0.00%
13,781,800 873,916 4,253,771 30.87%
Summary of Sewer Budget Expenses

As of September 30, 2016 (21% of Budget Cycle)

Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
3,838,400 303,446 775,500 20.20%
3,298,095 271,161 734,347 22.27%
1,234,000 112,589 298,114 24.16%
3,831,732 2,912,558 2,923,669 76.30%

0 0 0 0.00%
12,202,227 3,599,754 4,731,630 38.78%

Summary of Recycled Water Budget Expenses

As of September 30, 2016 (21% of Budget Cycle)

Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
657,100 70,838 621,712 94.61%
657,100 70,838 621,712 94.61%

26,641,127 4,544 508 9,607,113 36.06%
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Investment Policy Disclosure

The District is currently compliant with the portfolio of its Investment Policy and State Law.
The District is using Sandy Gage with Merrill Lynch Wealth Management (Bank of America

Corporation) for Treasury investments. The District expects to meet its expenditure requirements
for the next six months.

Questions or Comments

If you have any questions about a particular budget account, please do not hesitate to contact the
Controller directly. If you need additional information, the members of the Administrative
Department would be happy to provide you with any detailed information you may desire.
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Cash Fund Balance Report - September 2016
Water Division GL# Balance
*ID 1 Construction Funds 02-10216 $ 293,145.85
*ID 2 Construction Funds 02-10217 $ 80,409.31
*FCC - Debt Service YVRWFF Phase | 02-10401 $ (2,28265215)
*FCC - Future YWRWFF Phase Il & IlI 02-10403 $ 386,924 24
*FCC - Recycled System 02-10410 $ (915,881.29)
*FCC - Booster Pumping Plants 02-10411 $ 634,728.69
*FCC - Pipeline Facilities 02-10412 $ 11,038.77
*FCC - Water Storage Reservoirs 02-10413 $ 2,203,453.73
Depreciation Reserves 02-10310 $ 1,147,826.82
Infrastructure Reserves 02-10311 $ 3,212,965.00
Sustainability Fund 02-10313 $ 780,997.96
Rate Stabilization Fund 02-10314 $ 500,209.14
Imported Water Fund - MUNI 02-10315 $ 20,802.06
Imported Water Fund - SGPWA 02-10316 3 837,324.58
Operating Funds: $ 1,710,522.43
Total Water Division $§  8,621,815.14
Sewer Division GL# Balance
*SRF Reserve Fund - Brineline 03-10218 3 637,449.00
*SRF Reserve Fund - WISE 03-10219 $ 184,928.00
*SRF Reserve Fund - R 10.3 03-10220 $ 51,531.00
*SRF Reserve Fund - Crow St 03-10221 3 19,2565.00
*FCC - Debt Service WWTP Expansion & Upgrade 03-10405 $ 1,533,806.56
*FCC - Future WWTP Expansion 03-10407 $  1,239,923.38
*FCC - Sewer Interceptors 03-10415 $ (885,885.37)
*FCC - Lift Stations 03-10416 $ 305,727.73
*FCC - Effluent Disposal Facilities 03-10417 $ (1,660,940.91)
*FCC - Salt Mitigation Facilities 03-10418 $ (8,591,787.00)
Project Fund - Encumbered 03-10215 3 249,000.00
Depreciation Reserves 03-10310 $ 32741933
Infrastructure Reserves 03-10311 $  4,161,330.00
Rate Stabilization Fund 03-10314 $  1,464,394.90
Operating Funds: $ 1,514526.05
Total Wastewater Division $  3,497,451.65
Recycled Water Division GL# Balance
*FCC - Recycled System 04-10410 $ 51,868.32
*FCC - Booster Pumping Plants 04-10411 $ 55,477.60
*FCC - Pipeline Facilities 04-10412 3 182,053.68
*FCC - Water Storage Reservoirs 04-10413 $ 172,302.72
Project Fund - Encumbered 04-10215 $ 200,000.00
Depreciation Reserves 04-10310 $ 55,089.84
Infrastructure Reserves 04-10311 $ 259,200.00
Operating Funds: $  1,178,415.04
Total Recycled Water Division $ 2,154,407.20

*=Restricted Funds
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Cash Fund Balance Report - September 2016

Pending Financial Obligations for Fiscal Year 2015/16

Term of
Due Date Fund Description Obligation Amount
08/27/2016 Water 2015A Bond Payment - YWVRWFF 2015-2034 $ 1,670,556.25
09/10/2016 Sewer SRF Payment - WRWRF 2009-2028 $ 292368875
12/31/2016 Sewer SRF Payment - Yucaipa Regional Brineline 2013-2032 $ 649,273.50
02/23/2017 Water 2015A Bond Payment - YVRWFF 2015-2034 $ 625,106.25
03/31/2017 Sewer SRF Payment - Recycled Reservoir R-10.3 2014-2033 $ 54277.31
03/31/2017 Sewer SRF Payment - Desalinization at WRWRF 2014-2033 % 185,251.30
03/31/2017 Sewer SRF Payment - Crow Street/Recycled Booster B-12.1 2016-2035 $ 19,254.37
06/01/2017 Sewer SBYMWD - Inland Empire Brineline Payment 2013-2016 $ 20,000.00
Total $ 6,147,407.73
Payment Schedule and Cash Flow Requirements
for Fiscal Year 2016-2017

$7,000,000

$6,000,000

$5,000,000

54,000,000 l

$3,000,000 l

$2,000,000 /

$1,000,000

S0 : : : : : : - . : : :
a a 3 a a a o o o 5 a o
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Check Date
09/02/2016
09/02/2016
09/02/2016
09/02/2016
09/02/2016
09/02/2016
09/02/2016
09/02/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/06/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016

Check Register - September 2016

Check Number

26955
26956
26957
26958
26959
26960
26961
26962
26963
26964
26965
26966
26967
26968
26969
26970
26971
26972
26973
26974
26975
26976
26977
26978
26979
26980
26981
26982
26983
26984
26985
26986
26987
26988
26989
26990
26991
26992
26993
26994
26995
26996
26997
26998
26999
27000
27001
27002
27003
27004
27005
27006
27007
27008
27009
27010
27011
27012
27013

Name

PAYROLL CHECK
WageWorks, Inc.

Public Employees' Retirement S
Hong Nelson

IBEW Local 1436

California State Disbursement
California State Disbursement
Department of the Treasury - I
State Water Resources Control
Ameripride Uniform Services
Coverall North America, Inc.
Fedex

Raiset R. Santana and Adriana
Kelly Services, Inc.

Konica Minolta Business Soluti
Management Action Programs Inc
The Gas Company

Brenntag Pacific, Inc

California Water Technologies,
Cemex Ine. USA

Center Electric

CHI Consultants

Evoqua Water Technologies LLC
Fuel Equipment Services, Inc.
Grainger

Hemet Valley Tool & Supply
Inland Water Works Supply Co.
I.L. Wingert Co.

Johnson Power Systems

Lowe's Companies, Inc.
Nuckles Oil Company, Inc.
Nagem, Inc.

Polydyne Inc.

Pro-Pipe & Supply, Inc.
Redlands Automotive Sales, Inc
Steven Enterprises, Inc

Uline, Inc.

Y VWD-Petty Cash

James Rowell

Standard Insurance Company
Anthem Blue Cross L and H
Standard Insurance Company
Standard Insurance Vision Plan
MetLife Small Business Center
Jennifer Ares

Ameripride Uniform Services
AT&T Mobility

Auto Care Clinic

Central Commumnications
Corelogic, Inc.

Crown Ace Hardware - Yucaipa
First American Data Tree, LLC
Dinosaur Tire Inc.

Fedex

Frontier Communications
Geoscience Support Services, [
Alan L. Grubel Automotive Inc.
House Of Quality, Parts Plus
InfoSend, Inc.

Check Amount

2,194.27
1,462.27
24,541.55
125.00
168.00
11538
476.30
125.00
2,923.668.75
521.73
1,021.00
24.82
64.75
440.64
935.64
3,000.00
53.05
8.262.32
4,107.10
1,747.93
377.26
4,717.00
2,960.70
272.65
154.01
232.90
331425
1.866.44
580.81
101.57
2.251.54
2,085.34
5,713.20
552.22
204.02
1,021.50
82.41
270.89
264.88
2.802.84
391.56
3.280.34
680.44
544.60
83.16
533.14
1,515.90
84.19
576.71
330.00
760.22
50.00
12.50
116.94
139.40
3.297.50
15.00
1,412.15
5,119.34
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Check Date
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/12/2016
09/16/2016
09/16/2016
09/16/2016
09/16/2016
09/16/2016
09/16/2016
09/16/2016
09/16/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016

Check Register - September 2016

Check Number
27014
27015
27016
27017
27018
27019
27020
27021
27022
27023
27024
27025
27026
27027
27028
27029
27030
27031
27032
27033
27034
27035
27036
27037
27038
27039
27040
27041
27042
27043
27044
27045
27046
27047
27048
27049
27050
27051
27052
27053
27054
27055
27056
27057
27058
27059
27060
27061
27062
27063
27064
27065
27066
27067
27068
27069
27070
27071
27072

Name

Kelly Services, Inc.

NetComp Technologies,Inc.

San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency
Southern CA Emergency Medicine
Time Warner Cable
Underground Service Alert Of S
News Mirror Publishing, Inc.
Yucaipa Valley Water District
All American Sewer Tools
Brenntag Pacific, Inc
Emergency Power Controls, Inc.
Fastenal Company

Grainger

Hach Company

Industrial Safety Supply Corp
Industrial Scientific Corporat
Inland Water Works Supply Co.
I.L. Wingert Co.

NCL Of Wisconsin Inc

Office Solutions Business Prod
Patton Sales Corporation
Riverside Winnelson Company
Calmat Company

PAYROLL CHECK

PAYROLL CHECK
WageWorks, Inc.

Public Employees' Retirement S
Hong Nelson

California State Disbursement
California State Disbursement
Department of the Treasury -
Citizens Business Bank

Delta Partners, LLC

Dudek & Associates, Inc
Geoscience Support Services, [
J. Colon Coatings, Inc.

Krieger & Stewart

One Stop Landscape Supply Inc
Pascal & Ludwig Constructors I
Platinum Advisors, LLC

RMC Water and Environment
Sacramento Bank of Commerce
VTD, Vavrinek, Trine, Day & CO
David L. Wysocki

PROPERTY MNGMT , HOM
California Water Environment A
Ameripride Uniform Services
Fedex

InfoSend, Inc.

Kelly Services, Inc.

Krieger & Stewart

RMC Water and Environment
San Bernardino County Dept of
Southern CA Emergency Medicine
Brenntag Pacific, Inc

Charles P. Crowley Company, In
Cal-Mesa Steel Supply, Inc.
Cemex Inc. USA

Clean Diesel Specialists So Ca

Check Amount

1,101.60
3,650.00
26,984.97
300.00
389.99
196.50
29225
261,884.43
2,935.61
7,545.58
5,200.00
324.62
254.58
2,398.26
476.33
911.80
2,175.83
476.10
1,576.90
407.48
119.39
367.46
2,491.12
2,025.11
189.97
1,462.27
24,548.27
125.00
11538
476.30
125.00
1,851.00
7,500.00
2,686.23
11,487.25
9,900.00
24,046.33
22,427.50
35,150.00
5,125.00
19,681.45
7,340.00
8,000.00
3,750.00
53.73
344.00
539.63
35.13
3,407.09
1,762.56
1,884.05
1,703.25
92481
225.00
12,906.26
114.65
289,44
640.87
14,395.46
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Check Date
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/19/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016
09/26/2016

Check Register - September 2016

Check Number

27073
27074
27075
27076
27077
27078
27079
27080
27081
27082
27083
27084
27085
27086
27087
27088
27089
27090
27091
27092
27093
27094
27095
27096
27097
27098
27099
27100
27101
27102
27103
27104
27105
27106
27107
27108
27109
27110
27111
27112
27113
27114
27115
27116
27117
27118
27119
27120
27121
27122
27123
27124
27125
27126
27127
27128
27129
27130
27131

Name

G&G Environmental Compliance,l
Grainger

Hasa, Inc.

Inland Water Works Supply Co.
Kevin E. French

Micro Motion, Inc.

Microflex Corp #774353

NCL Of Wisconsin In¢

Page Locksmith

RDO Equipment Co.

UPS Store#1504/ Mail Boxes Ete
American Family Life Assurance
Cobb's Printing, LL.C

Rodd Greene

Dennis Neff

James Rowell

US Healthworks Medical Group,
Robert Wall

Western Dental Services, Inc.
Charlie Bailey

WageWorks, Inc.

CalPERS - HEALTH

Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud
California Water Environment A
Ralph C. Casas

AmeriGas Propane LP
Ameripride Uniform Services
Fedex

Frontier Communications
Hershey Business Products
Kevin E. French

Lorie Knudsen

LUZ Investment Corp.

MeCall's Meter Sales & Service
NetComp Technologies,Inc.
VOID CHECK

SCE Rosemead

Separation Processes, Inc.

U.S. Telepacific Corp

The Counseling Team Internatio
Vision Internet Providers, Inc
Walter L. Ferar

Airgas, Inc.

All American Sewer Tools
BofA Credit Card

Bemell Hydraulics, Inc.
Brenntag Pacific, Inc

Jeanntte Wisdom

Charles P. Crowley Company, In
CHI Consultants

Clinical Laboratory of San Ber
Victor James Valenti

Evoqua Water Technologies LLC
Frost Company

Grainger

Alan L. Grubel Automotive Inc.
Harper & Associates Eng., Inc.
Hemet Valley Tool & Supply
Inland Water Works Supply Co.

Check Amount

5,372.64
610.74
11,371.39
880.02
156.00
1,414.80
101897
961.95
64.80
63.84
151.68
3,794.53
66.96
624.31
565.53
264.88
319.51
575.46
306.86
542.83
212.75
65.444.45
772.42
344.00
89.70
2,024.16
533.14
30.59
145.97
398.76
10,000.00
1,520.77
531.03
2,300.00
3,567.92
0.00
251,299.77
702388
4,023.64
180.00
6,930.00
227.50
259.86
2,168.33
2,302.14
435.73
23,039.30
13,475.06
343.08
2,077.00
21,199.50
4,726.36
3,196.77
2,868.00
101517
387.63
7,188.00
99.51
12.802.22
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Check Register - September 2016

Check Date  Check Number Name Check Amount
09/26/2016 27132 Innerline Engineering 3,500.00
09/26/2016 27133 I.L. Wingert Co. 6,907.96
09/26/2016 27134 Lowe's Companies, Inc. 427.55
09/26/2016 27135 Nuckles Oil Company, Inc. 10,273.40
09/26/2016 27136 Nagem, Inc. 1,413.05
09/26/2016 27137 Nalco Company 5,176.48
09/26/2016 27138 NCL Of Wisconsin Inc 86.04
09/26/2016 27139 Office Solutions Business Prod 119.32
09/26/2016 27140 P & R Paper Supply Co., Inc. 021.08
09/26/2016 27141 Q Versa, LLC 14,620.32
09/26/2016 27142 Riverside Winnelson Company 875.80
09/26/2016 27143 Smart & Final Stores, LLC 292.80
09/26/2016 27144 Steven Enterprises, Inc 864.88
09/26/2016 27145 Tri County Pump Company 16,281.64
09/26/2016 27146 UPS Store#1504/ Mail Boxes Etc 64.71
09/26/2016 27147 ZEP Manufacturing Company 233.69
09/26/2016 27148 SB CNTY-Fire Protection Distri 2,702.00
09/30/2016 27149 PAYROLL CHECK 2,028.58
09/30/2016 27150 WageWorks, Inc. 1,385.35
09/30/2016 27151 Public Employees' Retirement S 23,821.08
09/30/2016 27152 California State Disbursement 115.38
09/30/2016 27153 California State Disbursement 476.30
09/30/2016 27154 Department of the Treasury - I 125.00

September 2016 Check Register Total 4.148,566.93
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Financial Account Information - September 2016

DATE DESCRIPTION Deposit General Investment Treasuries LAIF TOTAL
Checking Checking Checking at cost Invest. Fund ACTIVITY

08/31/2016 bal forward 2,962,764.62 30,000.00 29,790.64 504,189.69 13,157,905.95 16,684,650.90
8/31 |revrefained in MM (4,394.74) (4,394.74)
09/01/2016 |Deposit 27,552.90 27,552.90
Credit Card-8/31 416.74 416.74

Credit Card-9/1 2,666.77 2,666.77

Electronic 21,571.47 21,571.47

Website-9/1 5,078.64 5,078.64

Website-9/2 1,570.42 1,570.42

9/2/16-PR  |Federal Taxes (51,267.59) (51,267.59)
9/2/16-PR  |State Taxes (8,539.14) (8,539.14)
9/2/16-PR  |PR Direct Deposit (120,389.21) (120,389.21)
9/2/16-PR |VOYA 457 (6,677.21) (6,677.21)
9/2/16-PR  |CalPERS 457 (19,215.36) (19,215.36)
Ck#26955-26962 (29,207.77) (29,207.77)

TRF#1454- AP & PR (235,296.28) 235,296.28 0.00

09/02/2016 |Deposit 33,669.20 33,669.20
Credit Card-9/1 190.36 190.36

Credit Card-9/2 5,023.17 5,023.17

Electronic 31,087.04 31,087.04

Website-9/2 4,574.22 4,574.22

Website-9/3 3,657.46 3,657.46

Website-9/4 100.00 100.00

Website-9/4 1,864.13 1,864.13

Website-9/5 2,676.30 2,676.30

Website-9/6 90.00 90.00

Website-9/8 1,277.18 1,277.18
ETS Fees (2,028.41) (2,028.41)
ETS Fees (1,783.03) (1,783.03)

09/06/2016 |Deposit 98,758.05 98,758.05
Credit Card-9/2 436.92 436.92

Credit Card-9/6 4,744.83 4,744.83

Electronic 36,837.12 36,637.12

Website-9/6 5,453.76 5,453.76

Website-9/7 388.25 388.25

Website-9/7 2,575.97 2,575.97

ACH pymts 67,540.90 67,540.90

09/07/2016 |Deposit 18,551.46 18,551.46
Credit Card-9/6 911.12 911.12

Credit Card-9/7 11,131.51 11,131.51

Electronic 30,821.47 30,821.47

Website-9/7 3,338.74 3,338.74

Website-9/8 63.23 63.23

Website-9/8 165.44 165.44
Ck#26963 (2,923,668.75) (2,923,668.75)

TRF#1455- ck# 26963 (2,923,668.75)] 2,923,668.75 0.00

09/08/2016 |Deposit 6,279.85 6,279.85
Credit Card-9/7 905.63 905.63

Credit Card-9/8 2,813.90 2,813.90

Electronic 14,232.29 14,232.29

Website-9/8 1,678.59 1,678.59

Website-9/9 1,198.88 1,198.88
Ck#26964-26999 (54,985.51) (54,985.51)

TRF#1456- AP (54,985.51) 54,985.51 0.00
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Financial Account Information - September 2016

DATE DESCRIPTION Deposit General Investment Treasuries LAIF TOTAL
Checking Checking Checking at cost Invest. Fund ACTIVITY
08/31/2016 bal forward 2,962,764.62 30,000.00 29,790.64 504,189.69 13,157,905.95 16,684,650.90
09/09/2016 |Deposit 60,603.58 60,603.58
Deposit - MC 55,666.88 55,666.88
Credit Card-9/8 446.29 446.39
Credit Card-9/9 3,336.19 3,336.19
Electronic 16,066.99 16,066.99
Website-9/9 3,259.86 3,259.86
Website-9/10 389.34 389.34
Website-9/10 1,685.70 1,685.70
Website-9/11 2,066.77 2,066.77
Website-9/12 214 .45 214.45
Website-9/12 438.23 438.23
09/12/2016 |Deposit 116,071.37 116,071.37
Credit Card-9/9 458.54 459.54
Credit Card-9/12 3,906.53 3,906.53
Electronic 17,724 .60 17,724.60
Website-9/12 6,571.52 6,571.52
Website-9/13 334.32 334.32
Website-9/13 309.62 309.62
ACH pymts 74,667.01 74,667.01
09/13/2016 |Deposit 8,976.20 8,976.30
Credit Card-9/12 1,118.63 1,118.63
Credit Card-9/13 1,817.59 1,817.59
Electronic 18,242.00 18,242.00
Website-9/13 4,344 .52 4,344.52
Website-9/14 336.92 336.92
Website-9/14 1,304.48 1,304.48
09/14/2016 |Deposit 17,263.33 17,263.33
Credit Card-9/13 1,932.00 1,932.00
Credit Card-9/14 3,930.96 3,930.96
Electronic 16,825.97 16,825.97
Website-9/14 2,726.60 2,726.60
Website-9/15 1,260.39 1,260.39
9/16/16-PR  |Federal Taxes (52,925.17) (52,925.17)
9/16/16-PR  |State Taxes (8,717.01) (8,717.01)
9/16/16-PR  |PR Direct Deposit (124,724 .15) (124,724.15)
9/16/16-PR  |VOYA 457 (6,677.21) (6,677.21)
9/16/16-FPR  |CalPERS 457 (21,694.10) (21,694.10)
Ck#27000-27044 (365,491.09) (365,491.09)
TRF#1457- AP & PR (580,228.73) 580,228.73 0.00
09/15/2016 |Deposit 28,758.87 28,758.87
Credit Card-9/14 2,197.25 2,197.25
Credit Card-9/15 2,793.07 2,793.07
Electronic 16,515.23 16,515.23
Website-9/15 2,823.55 2,823.55
Website-9/16 520.25 520.25
ACH pmts §5,803.21 85,803.21
09/16/2016 |Deposit 21,147 .85 21,147.85
Credit Card-9/15 1,071.56 1,071.56
Credit Card-9/16 2,112.09 2,112.09
Electronic 23,691.38 23,691.38
Website-9/16 3,110.93 3,110.93
Website-9/17 151.53 151.53
Website-9/17 2,187 .40 2,187.40
Website-9/18 2,706.85 2,706.85
Website-9/19 395.51 395.51
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Financial Account Information - September 2016

DATE DESCRIPTION Deposit General Investment Treasuries LAIF TOTAL
Checking Checking Checking at cost Invest. Fund ACTIVITY
08/31/2016 bal forward 2,962,764.62 30,000.00 29,790.64 504,189.69 13,157,905.95 16,684,650.90
09/19/2016 |Deposit 348,735.08 348,735.08
Credit Card-9/16 1,512.04 1,512.04
Credit Card-9/19 4,747.05 4,747.05
Electronic 17,290.63 17,290.63
Website-9/19 4,080.15 4,080.15
Website-9/20 77.00 77.00
Website-9/20 634.69 634.69
08/20/2016 |Deposit 8,561.55 8,561.55
Credit Card-9/19 1,306.42 1,306.42
Credit Card-9/20 3,056.56 3,056.56
Electronic 27,785.64 27,785.64
Website-9/20 3,508.00 3,508.00
Website-9/21 449.95 449,95
Website-9/21 402.70 402.70
ACH pymts 44 825.61 44,825.61
Ck#27045-27094 (292,965.49) (292,965.49)
TRF#1458 - AP (292,965.49) 292,965.49 0.00
08/21/2016 |Deposit 65,678.10 65,678.10
Credit Card-9/20 1,598.28 1,598.28
Credit Card-9/21 6,924.33 6,924.23
Electronic 13,667.06 13,667.06
Website-9/21 3,513.41 3,513.41
Website-9/22 358.97 358.97
Website-9/22 945.43 94543
08/22/2016 |Deposit 27,427 .44 27,427.44
Credit Card-9/21 3,954.55 3,954.55
Credit Card-9/22 3,239.47 3,23947
Electronic 11,693.76 11,693.76
Website-9/22 2,471.48 2,471.48
Website-9/23 1,187.41 1,187.41
08/23/2016 |Deposit 34,040.30 34,040.20
Deposit - MC 3,847.07 3,847.07
Credit Card-9/22 806.71 806.71
Credit Card-9/23 3,557.22 3,557.22
Electronic 21,471.51 21,471.51
Website-9/23 2,544.42 2,544.42
Website-9/24 42.43 4243
Website-9/24 1,981.82 1,981.82
Website-9/25 2,746.10 2,746.10
Website-9/26 566.03 566.03
Website-9/26 554.79 554.79
09/26/2016 |Deposit 63,697.20 63,697.20
Deposit - Tract#26811 195,636.00 195,636.00
Credit Card-9/23 1,503.45 1,503.45
Credit Card-9/26 3,219.67 3,219.67
Electronic 19,151.89 19,151.89
Website-9/26 3,516.04 3,516.04
Website-9/27 287.51 287.51
Website-9/27 418.26 418.26
ACH pymts 100,873.18 100,873.18

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 18, 2016 - Page 84 of 209



Director Memorandum No. 16-097

Page 14 of 28

Financial Account Information - September 2016

DATE DESCRIPTION Deposit General Investment Treasuries LAIF TOTAL
Checking Checking Checking at cost Invest. Fund ACTIVITY

08/31/2016 bal forward 2,962,764.62 30,000.00 29,790.64  504,189.69 13,157,905.95 16,684,650.90
09/27/2016 |Deposit 8,581.39 8,581.39
Credit Card-8/26 1,347.47 1,347.47

Credit Card-8/27 2,386.48 2,386.48

Electronic 20,500.84 20,500.84

Website-9/27 2,812.94 2,812.94

Website-9/28 141.60 141.60

Website-9/28 1,444.06 1,444.06

09/28/2016 |Deposit 40,892.33 40,892.33
Credit Card-8/27 985.23 965.23

Credit Card-5/28 6,689.60 6,689.60

Electronic 12,086.56 12,066.56

Website-9/28 2,518.11 2,518.11

Website-9/29 602.83 602.83
9/28/16-PR  |Federal Taxes (60,263.93) (60,263.93)
9/28/16-PR  |State Taxes (10,909.15) (10,909.15)
9/28/16-PR  |PR Direct Deposit (132,767.25) (132,767.25)
928/16-PR  |VOYA 457 (5,329.37) (5,329.37)
9/28/16-PR  |CalPERS 457 (25,208.37) (25,208.37)
Ck#27085-27154 (482,248.32) (482,248.32)

TRF#1459 - AP & PR (716,726.39) 716,726.39 0.00

09/29/2016 |Deposit 43,070.37 43,070.37
Deposit - MC 597.13 597.13

Credit Card-8/28 2,524.73 2,524.73

Credit Card-8/29 1,496.48 1,496.49

Electronic 21,200.03 21,200.03

Website-9/29 1,577.36 1,577.36

Website-9/30 1,962.48 1,962.48

09/30/2016 |Deposit 20,169.01 20,169.01
Credit Card-8/29 398.92 398.92

Credit Card-8/30 3,434.36 3,434.36

Electronic 22,246.05 22,246.05

Website-9/30 3,967.35 3,967.35

Website-10/1 5,026.12 5,026.12

Website-10/2 5,122.09 5,122.09

Website-10/3 1,866.68 1,866.68
September '16 NSF's (976.35) (976.35)

9/30 |refained in MM 4,394.78 4,394.78
14,273,673.99

TOTALS 551,787.67 30,000.00 29,790.64 504,189.73 13,157,905.95 14,273,673.99
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Investment Summary - September 2016

U.S. TREASURIES

Quantity Description Cusip Maturity Date Yield Cost of Purchase Market Value
496,000 US Treasury Note | 912828WP1 June 15, 2017 0.875% 499,794 95 406,947 .36
496,000 Total Values 499,794.95 496,947.36
Money Market Account Activity-Beginning Balance 4,394.74
9/30/16 - Dividend/Interest 0.04
Income 0.04
Intra-Bank Transfers toffrom Investment Checking 0.00
Fund Transfers 0.00
Cusip Maturity 0.00
Redemptions 0.00
Cusip Purchase 0.00
Purchases 0.00
Ending Balance - Money Market 4,394.78
US Treasury Securities Investment Principal 499,794.95

Total Assets 504,189.73
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Investment Summary - September 2016

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND

TOTAL WITHDRAWAL TOTAL DEPOSIT ACCRUED INTEREST

PERIOD AMOUNT AMOUNT (QUARTERLY) ENDING BALANCE
July 31, 2016 ($3,000,000.00) $0.00 $24,655.18 $16,157,905.95
August 31, 2016 ($3,000,000.00) $0.00 $0.00 $13,157,905.95
September 30, 2016 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,157,905.95
October 31, 2016 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,157,905.95
November 30, 2016 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,157,905.95
December 31, 2016 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,157,905.95
January 31, 2017 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,157,905.95
February 28, 2017 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,157,905.95
March 31, 2017 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,157,905.95
April 30, 2017 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,157,905.95
May 31, 2017 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,157,905.95
June 30, 2017 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,157,905.95

L.A.l.F. INCOME SUMMARY CURRENT QUARTER FY YEAR-TO-DATE

INCOME RECEIVED $24,655.18 $24,655.18

Effective Yield of the LAIF Pooled Money Investment Account

5.00%
4.00%
3.00%
2.00%
1.00%

__f

000% +—————
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Director Memorandum No. 16-097

Monthly Revenue Allocation - September 2016
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Monthly Revenue Allocation - September 2016
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Director Memorandum No. 16-097

FY 2017 - Water Revenue
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FY 2017 - Water Expenses
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Director Memorandum No. 16-097

FY 2017 - Sewer Expenses
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Director Memorandum No. 16-097

FY 2017 - Recycled Expenses
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' Yucaipa Valley Water District Director Memorandum 16-098

W
Date: October 18, 2016
Prepared By: Kevin King, Operations Manager
Subject: Consideration of Change Order Nos. 2, 3 and 4 Related to the Digester

Cleaning and Digester Steel Cover Replacement Project at the Wochholz
Regional Water Recycling Facility

Recommendation:  That the Board approves Change Order Nos. 2, 3, and 4 as presented.

The Yucaipa Valley Water District operates and maintains four anaerobic digesters for sludge
conditioning, each with a diameter of 45 feet and a side water depth of 22 feet, yielding a working
capacity of approximately 262,000 gallons per digester. The digesters treat sludge drawn from
both the primary clarifiers and from the dissolved air flotation thickeners. Digested sludge flows
by gravity and can be stored temporarily in a sludge holding tank before being conveyed to the
belt presses for dewatering. To keep the digesters functioning properly they should be cleaned
every 8-10 years in order to remove the accumulated build-up of sand, grit, and other debris.

Construction
o Summary of Work
Timeline

e Construction of Digester Nos. 1 and 2 and
1976-design appurtenant equipment, (e.g. heaters)
1984-constr e« Digester No. 1 equipped with a fixed cover and

Digester No. 2 equipped with a floating cover

Wastewater Treatment Plant

* Construction of Digester Nos. 3 and 4
Stage | Expansion Project 1992 * Both Digester No. 3 and Digester No. 4 equipped
with fixed covers

Digester No. 2 Cover * Digester No. 2 cover converted from floating to
e 1994 ) ) .

Modifications fixed configuration

Digester Cleaning 2004 e Digester Nos. 1-4 Cleaning

Digester Coating 2005 e Digester Nos. 1-4 Coating of Cover

Digester and Sludge Holding 2005 * Digester Nos. 1-4 and Digester Holding Tank
Tank Modifications Project Pump Mix System installation

When the digesters were cleaned in 2005, the District staff assessed the condition of the digesters
and related equipment. Based on corrosion identified at this time, the District made a decision to
replace at least two covers the next time the digesters were scheduled to be cleaned.

In 2015, the District staff worked with RMC to develop a construction bid schedule that included
a series of construction alternatives for cleaning and/or replacement of the digester covers. After
carefully evaluating the cleaning/construction bids received for this project, the Board of Directors

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 18, 2016 - Page 100 of 209



Director Memorandum No. 16-098 Page 2 of 20

decided to award a construction contract to Pascal & Ludwig for the cleaning and replacement of
four digester covers for a sum not to exceed $2,175,000. [DM 15-041]

On January 12, 2016, the Board of Directors approved Change Order No. 1 in the amount of
$67,347 for sand blasting and epoxy coating on the interior of the domes instead of a polyurethane
coating [Director Memorandum No. 16-008].

Additional Project Change Orders

Change Order No. 2 - After the completion of the cleaning of Digesters No. 3 and 4, the District
staff and the contractor identified spalling on the digester walls that required addition work to
repair. Pascal and Ludwig conducted the repairs on the digester walls pursuant to the District
staff direction to maintain the schedule for the project. The total cost for Change Order No. 2 is
$3,319.60.

Change Order No. 3 - After the completion of the cleaning of Digesters No. 3 and 4, the District
staff and the contractor found the digesters had circular joints on the digester floors which were
not the same as the floors in Digesters No. 1 and 2. The circular joints required extra material
and labor to properly seal which were authorized by District staff to maintain the schedule for the
project. The total cost for Change Order No. 3 is $4,757.55.

Change Order No. 4 - The original bid anticipated the need to process 349,322 gallons of sludge
from all digesters during the construction project. Due to the quality of the sludge it was necessary
to process an additional 166,869 gallons of sludge. The original bid allowed a processing fee of
$0.60 per gallon of additional sludge plus a %15 mark up for Pascal and Ludwig. The total cost
for Change Order No. 4 is $115,139.61.

Percentage Change

Contract Contract from Original Bid

Changes Amount Amount Reference
Original Bid Amount $2,175,000.00 -- DM 15-041
Change Order No. 1 $67,347.00 $2,242,347.00 3.10% increase DM 16-008
Change Order No. 2 $3,319.60 $2,245,666.60 0.02% increase DM 16-098
Change Order No. 3 $4,757.55 $2,250,424.15 0.02% increase DM 16-098
Change Order No. 4  $115,139.61 $2,365,563.76 5.29% increase DM 16-098

The total change orders (Nos. 1 to 4) for this project increased the project cost by $190,563.76,
or 8.76%.
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Supporting Documentation for
Change Order No. 2

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 18, 2016 - Page 102 of 209



Director Memorandum No. 16-098 Page 4 of 20

PASCAL & LUDWIG CONSTRUCTORS A (AELEPHONE:
2049 EAST FRANCIS STREET /Z UOWIC FAX: (909) 947-4722

ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA 91761

September 12, 2016

Yucaipa Valley Water District

12770 Second Street

Yucaipa, CA 92399

Attention:  Kevin King

Reference: WRWRF Digester Cleaning and Cover Replacement Project
Subject: Spall Repair Change Order Request

Gentlemen:

We have completed the Spall Repairs in Digesters 3 and 4, as directed. Find attached Daily Record of
Extra Work for the repairs. The total cost for the repairs are:

Labor: $1,732.78
Equipment: $377.30
Materials: $701.19
Subtotal: $2,811.27
Markup: $508.33
Total: $3,319.60

Please contact me if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,
PASCAL & LUDWIG CONSTRUCTORS

Nl

Rob Temple
President

MIVOHOCTAHMWZOO ® VIMMZ—-O=m
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PASCAL & LUDWIG CONSTRUCTORS eLEONE

2043 CAST FRANCIS STRFFT (808) 9474631
ONTARIO, CA 81761

FEL.'AL

DAILY RECORD OF EXTRA WORK

WORK PERFORMED FOR! YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT JOB NO.. 3169
DESCRIFTION OF WORK; POURED CONCRETE FOR PATCHING ON SIDE LOCATION. WRFWF DIGESTER CLEANING
DIGESTER. STRIPED FORMS, RAISED PIPE SUPPORTS AFTER PAINTED DATE! 8/23/16

REPORT NO. | OF |

TOTAL HOURLY EXTENDED
LABOR HOURS RATE AMOUNT
CARFPENTER FOREMAN - D. WILLIAMS 6.00| %6289 $377.34
CARPENTER - R. HICKS 6.00| $60.88 $365.28
$742.62
TOTAL HOURLY EXTENDED
SUBCONTRACTOR HOURS RATE AMOUNT
TOTAL SUBCONTRACT: $0.00
NO HOURLY EXTENDED
EQUIF. NO.|  EQUIPMENT (COMPLETE DESCRIPTION} HRS DAY/ HR RATE AMOUNT
1132|12'F-350 DIESEL SERVICE BODY & HRLY $26.95 $161.70
TOTAL EQUIPMENT: $161.70
EXTENDED
MATERIALS LNIT QUAN, RATE AMOUNT
HUB - SIKA MATERIALS INV #B0O60 15856 [ $270.63
_I——
TOTAL MATERIALS W/ DELIVERY./TAXES!] $270.63
COMMENT. SUBTOTAL: %1,174.95
OVERHEAD/FROFIT/BOND:
TOTAL COST: $1,174.95
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e 7 =
ASLCAL

Z
- L OWIG

PASCAL & LUDWIG CONSTRUCTORS TELEPHONE

2049 EAST FRANCIS STREET (909) 947-4631
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA 91761

DAILY RECORD OF EXTRA WORK

Work Performed far \-19 NOAYE Ui} Job No. 31 bq
Description of work £ CU /L4 7 7, ©  Location JULAIDA
AL INSIPE DIGESTES  STRIPAED [RMN . pae B0l
RAISE PIPE SuiprokTS AFrER.  FAINTED Report No. Zz o 2D
LABOR (cLassIFv) NUMBER | OTAL iy 4ad %ﬂs
| LAROEERS T—t=th—
Adisae Letnms | ) L
KReer Hices L |6
. [S——
TOTAL LABOR Is I
EQUIP. NO. EQUIPMENT (COMPLETE DESCRIPTION) NUMBER | OomAL | HOURLY |

[132- | “J ek W oS

ToTAL EauPENT

MATERIALS UNIT QUAN. RATE
MHom ~ Siwm '?4573_@&\"& ] LS [27.65

TOTAL MATERIALS w/delivery/taxes |$ 2 7o, &=

Comment: SUBTOTAL |

OVERHEAD/PROFIT/BOND:
TOTAL COST $

By A<=\ By

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 18, 2016 - Page 106 of 209



8 of 20
Director Memorandum No. 16-098 Page

S

— (-

[ Yo7 L r——

AATIRRER

San-Bernardi,u
Oaldand = -

California - 2013, 2014 & 2015

*DELIVERY * HUB SAN BERNARDINO RETAlI  CHARGE SALE
379 SOUTH | STREET

M San Bernardino, CA 92410
Phn:(908)379-2100 Fax:(909)885-0983 Mgr:Randy Cooper

Page: 01

omtario Sl Miriiata Santa-Ana
- Bakersfield -

Nationel Citp =

San Marcos Long BeachiParamount
; . Rascho Cordova Glendale Loke Heva Az MubFsbrcaton L
A PASCAL & LUDWIG ENGR 'J | HENRY H WOCHOLZ PLANT
C 2049 E FRANCIS ST (O ‘ 880 W.COUNTY LINE ROAD
C |ONTARIO CA 91761 B | *25 MPH THRU RESIDENTAL*
T | ' Yucaipa CA 92399
‘ | (909)706-7689 ) |
| Job Number | Order | Customer | SLM | Ship Via ShipDate | Cust P.O Purchased By |
031609 [560488\000603 }_Oﬂ WILL CALL| 8-23-16 13169 ) | DANTEL WILLIAMS
SKU TDescription Qty Ord. | Qty Backord | Qty Shipped Tx? Unit Price | UoM Ext.Amount
|
560170 SIKATOP 111 (BAG & JU 4 0 4|Y 50.00 | EACH 200.00
560173 SIKATOP 123 (BAG & JU 1 0 1Y 50.00 |EACH 50.00
Job Site Phone: (909)706-7689 TAX |@| 8.25%: 20.63
Time:07:47am | *TOTAL: 270,63
NOTE: ALL CLAIMS FOR SHORTAGES MUST BE MADE AT TIME OF | DELIVERY
! ALL RETURNS SUBJECT TO RESTOCKING (HARGE
|
| .
,/’7 ///‘// ’Z [
Z S = A
5. LA 7 /R
Print;
For the latest pg'oduct information, please refer to
Fo - manufacturer's website or contact the manufacturer directly.
rint and Sign Name........, -

Sale is subject to additional Te
***Emergency Response / MSDS Information - Call (800) 535-5053#*x

rms and Conditions as stated at www. hubhasit.com

Notice: Sale of Used Equipment or Muterial is made 'As Is'
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WORK PERFORMED FOR!

DESCRIFTION OF WORK,

DAILY RECORD OF EXTRA WORK

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

SO NO.

CLEAN DIGESTER AFTER PAINTING, REGRIND JOINTS

PASCAL & LUDWIG CONSTRUCTORS

2049 EAST FRANCIS STREET
ONTARIO, CA 91761

3169

TELEPHONE
(209) G474631

LOCATION. WRFWF DIGESTER CLEANING

FOR KITSON TO REMOVE FAINT

DATE!

8/24/16

REPORTNO. ] OF |

TOTAL HOURLY EXTENDED
LABOR HOURS RATE AMOUNT
CARPENTER FOREMAN - D. WILLIAMS 3.00| $6289 $188.67
CARPENTER - R. HICKS 3.00| $60.88 $182.64
~$371.37 ]
TOTAL HOURLY EXTENDED
SUBCONTRACTOR HOURS RATE AMOUNT
TOTAL SUBCONTRACT £0.00
NO HOURLY EXTENDED
EQUIP. NO.| EQUIPMENT fCOMF'LEIE DESCRIFTION) HRS DAYASHR RATE AMOUNT
1132|12'F350 DIESEL SERVICEﬁODY 3 HRELY $26.95 $80.85
TOTAL EQUIPMENT* $80.85
EXTENDED
MATERIALS UNIT QUAN. RATE AMOUNT
TOTAL Mm W/ DELIVERY./ TAXES: $0.00
COMMENT: SUBTOTAL: $452. 16
OVERHEAD/PROFIT/BOND:
TOTAL COST: 52.16
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RSl PASCAL & LUDWIG CONSTRUCTORS TELEPHONE
/Zuaiws 2049 EAST FRANCIS STREET (909) 947-4631

ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA 81761

DAILY RECORD OF EXTRA WORK
Work Performed for “TJK / wiD JobNo. 3/69

Description of work CLEAMN Do ESTER  NALFER Location )/IA A PA

inrga_s; LEGRIND oINS  fok  KirsoN  pae R-2.5-70
7O READVE PRIN 7 Report No. 5 of '3

LABOR (CLASSIFY) numeen | JOTAL | FOURLY mﬁ
| LAafoAses 2t
N asiel ol inaS I =
BTt ([hok s { Z
TOTAL LABOR B
EQUIP. NO. EQUIPMENT (COMPLETE DESCRIPTION) NumBer | oTAL | HOURLY

TOTAL EQUIPWENT

MATERIALS UNIT QUAN. RATE

TOTAL MATERIALS w/delivery/taxes |$
SUBTOTAL

OVERHEAD/PROFIT/BOND:
TOTAL COST $

Comment:

——
By !/’ N‘\Q’ By
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PASCAL & LUDWIG CONSTRUCTORS S

2049 EAST FRANCIS STREET (909 9473631
ONTARIO, CA 91761

DAILY RECORD OF EXTRA WORK

WORK PERFORMED FOR: YUCAIFPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT JOB NO.. 3169
DESCRIPTION OF WORK; FORMING FOR CONCRETE PATCHING ON DIGESTERS LOCATION. WRFWF DIGESTER CLEANING
AND INSTALLING REBAR DATE! 8s22/16

REPORTNO. 1 OF 1

TOTAL HOURLY EXTENDED
LABOR HOURS RATE AMOUNT
CARPENTER FOREMAN - D. WILLIAMS 5.00 $62.89 $314.45
CARFENTER - R. HICKS 5.00| %6088 $304.40
$618.65]
TOTAL HOURLY EXTENDED
SUBCONTRACTOR HOURS RATE AMOUNT
TOTAL SUBCONTRACT: $0.00
NO HOURLY EXTENDED
EQUIP. NO, EQUIPMENT (r_l::_MFLHE DESCRIPTION) HRS DAY/ HR RATE AMOUNT
1132|12' F-350 DIESEL SERVICE BODY 5 HRLY $26.95 $134.75
TOTAL EQUIPMENT: $134.75
EXTENDED
MATERIALS LN CQUAN. RATE AMOUNT
HUB - SIKA MATERIALS INV #B060 15868 LS $430.56
TOTAL MATERIALS W/ DELIVERY TAXES ] $130.56 |
COMMENT: SUBTOTAL: $1,184.16
OVERHEAD FPROFITBOND:
TOTAL COST: $1,184.16
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/7 PASCAL & LUDWIG CONSTRUCTORS TELEPHONE
/.uai')wa 2049 EAST FRANCIS STREET (909) 947-4631

ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA 91761

DAILY RECORD OF EXTRA WORK

Work Performed for ‘*_Pu D Job No. 2104
Description of work FOLMING  Fot.  CoN(.p eTE Location YUCA/PA
LAICHING 61 DIGESTERS  INSTALLING REDAR.  pae £ -23~]6
Report No. [ of 2
LABOR (cLASSIFY) e I Al
| fALDELT =0

;Qamal_ L0y Cunmd / <
\-&Bm:r Haeles o=

o

TOTAL LABOR l$ I

EQUIP. NO. EQUIPMENT (COMPLETE DESCRIPTION) NUMBER ,Igﬂ‘;'é "%‘?E”
) — —
(B2 " lisck m//,/ Teets &

TOTAL EQUIPMENT IS I

MATERIALS UNIT QUAN. RATE
t""\p'é_ — $§ YA 11/] O ] / 3 .1'3!5‘ 56

TOTAL MATERIALS w/delivery/taxes I$ ';t 2. b I

SUBTOTAL
OVERHEAD/PROFIT/BOND:
TOTAL COST $
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) O
~+ D+

Crleteating (vr 54~ Saadurtrary

*DELIVERY* HUB SAN BERNARDINO RETAI CHARGE SALE
: 379 SOUTH | STREET

AN SIHAERY an Semardno, CA 92410 Page: 01

Phn:(809)379-2100 Fax:(909)885-0983 Mgr:Randy Cooper

“;_Sm_g:-cmm:.‘u Ak “indio i Mispritia: L BentaAna oo Nationed City San Marcos Ling Bench/Pararount -
 Qakland Bakecsiielt - Fresno - ' Ranche Gordova S glendate Lako HavesuwAZ . Hob Fabrication S
A PASCAL & LUDWIG ENGR 'J | HENRY H WOCHOLZ PL
C |2049 E FRANCIS ST O | 880 W.COUNTY LINE ROAD
C ONTARIO CA 91761 B | *25 MPH THRU RESIDENTAL*
' Yucaipa CA 92399
| 1(909)947-4631 | ]
Job Number | Order Customer | SLM | Ship Via | Ship Date [ P.O | Purchased By
03169 5594951000603 [290 WILL CALL 8-22-16 3169 EVERY ORDER (90
SKU Description Qty Ord. | Qty Backord | Qty Shipped Tx?|  UnitPrice | UOM  Ext.A |
750060 MIXING PADDLE 1 0 1y 31.75|EACH 31.75
170200 ARMATEC 110 1.65CGAL K 1 0 1 Y: 166.0U|EACH 166.00
|
560170 SIKATOP 111 (BAG & JU 3 0 3|y 50.00 EACH 150.00
560173 SIKATOP 123 (BAG & JU 1 0 1|y 50.00 EACH 50.00
[ [
| |
| .
|
| ‘ '
| I | | |
| | .
|
| ! ] |
i i Job Site Phone: (909)947-4631 TAX |@| 8.25%: | 32.81
| | Time:08:20am *TOTAL: 430.56
| I .
| |
| IFJOTE: ALL CLAIMS FOR SHORTAGES MUST BE MADE AT TIME OQOF DELIVERY
| ! ALL RETURNS SUBJECT TO RESTOCKING CHARGE
|
|

| ) > .z .

‘ Print; ) _ |

For the latest product information, please refer to
. = = manufacturer's website or contact the manufacturer directly,
Print and Sign Name.........

Sale is subject to additional Terms and Conditions as stated at www, Aubhasit.com

***Emergency Response / MSDS Information - Call (800) 535-5053%**  Notice: Sale of Used Equipment or Material is made 'As Is'
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Supporting Documentation for
Change Order No. 3
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PASCAL & LUDWIG CONSTRUCTORS

WITO-HOCT-WMZO0O0O & VIMMZ—OZmMm

2049 EAST FRANCIS STREET
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA 91761

August 2, 2016

Yucaipa Valley Water District
12770 Second Street
Yucaipa, CA 92399

Attention:  Kevin King

TELEPHONE:
(909) 947-4631
FAX: (909) 947-4722

RECEIVED

YUCAIPA VALLEY
WATER DISTRICT

Reference: WRWRF Digester Cleaning and Cover Replacement Project

Subject: Kitson Change Order Request

Gentlemen:

In response to direction given in RFl #7 Kitson is requesting a change order in the amount of
$4,137.00 to seal the circular joints in Digesters 3 and 4. If this is acceptable please issue a change
order for $4,137.00 plus 15% markup for a total of $4,757.55.

Please contact me if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,
PASCAL & LUDWIG CONSTRUCTORS

Rob Temple
President
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Change Order Request

There is a changed condition in joint configuration. We have discovered that there are two
circular joints approx 21’ each (1 per tank). The installation will require installing pie shaped
pieces cut to fit with a heat welded piece to seam together. This will be a time consuming
process as well as use a considerable amount of material:

Total Cost of Change Order $4137.90

Rob Mayes

Kitson Contracting Inc.

(626) 441-2372 Fax (626) 441-2381
Cell# (562) 229-2642

E-mail: rmayes@Kitsoncontracting.com

Visit our web page at: www.KitsonContracting.com

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This electronic mail message is intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed
and may contain information that Is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If the reader of this message is
not the intended recipient you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 2150, et seq. If you have received this communication in error, please immediately delete it and notify the sender
by phone at (562) 941-1949.
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Supporting Documentation for
Change Order No. 4
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PASCAL & LUDWIG CONSTRUCTORS

NITOHOCT~VWZ00 @ HIMMZ—O0O=Zm

2049 EAST FRANCIS STREET
ONTARIO, CALIFORNIA 91761

August 2, 2016

Yucaipa Valley Water District
12770 Second Street
Yucaipa, CA 92399

Attention: Kevin King

TELEPHONE:
(909) 947-4631
FAX: (909) 947-4722

/74.'5&4{

fee L/OW/ G

RECEI VED

YUCAIPA VALL g
. EY
WATER DISTRICT

Reference: WRWRF Digester Cleaning and Cover Replacement Project

Subject: Synagro Change Order Request

Gentlemen:

Per the attached, Synagro is requesting a change order for additional volume of materials removed
from the digesters in excess of the volumes stated in the Contract Documents. The total volume
removed was 516,191 gallons which is 166,869 gallons in excess of the amount given in Section
13200. The additional fee requested, as allowed in Section 13200, is as follows:

Synagro fee: 166,869 gallons @ $0.60/gallon = $100,121.40. Pascal & Ludwig markup @ 15% =
$15,018.21. Total amount requested for this change is $115,139.61

I have attached a copy of Synagro’s quote which shows the $0.60/gallon cost is independent of their
mobilization and demobilization cost. Please contact me if you have any questions or need additional

information.

Sincerely,
PASCAL & LUDWIG CONSTRUCTORS

Rob Temple
President
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SYNAGRO G oroe For

DATE: _July 25, 2016

Customer Legal Name

"

3 Pascal & Ludwig Constructors
? Street Address
...@ | 880W County Line Road
™
E City / Town County State Zip Code
R Calimesa San Bernardino CA92320
[+ Synagro Legal Name
.. _ | Synagro WWT, Inc.
N
T | Street Address
: 435 Williams Court, Suite 100
$ City / Town State Zip Code
o Baltimore MD 21220
R

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/ SCOPE OF SERVICE(S):

CLEAN DIGESTERS 1 THROUGH 4 IN THE FOLLOWING SEQUENCE, 2015 — CLEAN DIGESTERS 1 AND 2, 2016 CLEAN
DIGESTERS 3 AND 4, SEPARATE MOBILIZATION FOR SETS 1-2 AND 3-4.PER CONTRACT DATED MAY 20, 2015 BETWEEN
SYNAGRO WWT, INC. AND PACSCAL AND LUDWIG CONSGRUCTORS.

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY:

Total gallons removed are in excess of the stated volume in the contract of 349,322. Actual volume removed was 516, 191 for a
difference of 166,689 gallons. Gallons removed per digester are as follows:

Digester#1 143,475

Digester #2 48,749

Digester #3 - 129,805

Digester#4 194,162

Total 516,191
Total Value of base contract $279,559.20
Value of ChangeOrder Request #1:
166,869 gallons( in excess of contract stated amount of 349,322) @ $0.60 per gallon $100,121.40
Total Value of Contract — as proposed $379,680.60
CHANGE ORDER ACCEPTANCE
CUSTOMER SIGNATURE: CONTRACTOR NAME:
PRINTED NAME: PRINTED NAME:
DATE: DATE:
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-At completion, an insignificant amount of clean liquid is.expected to be on floor/sump of aeration
basins. ~

-Proposal is based on a maximum filtrate return flow of 200GPM

-Sufficient plant water shail be made available, both in PS! and total GPM

Customer to Provide:

Certification: Certification that material is non-hazardous according to all applicable local, state, federal
regulatory authorities and/or entities.

Access: Ingress to and Egress from worksite. 5 days/week, transporting trips limited to 7am to 4pm,
work hours may vary.

Work Space: Sufficient laydown are for digester cleaning equipment (BFP’s, mix tank, generator,
transportation equipment, conveyors)

Water Source:  Source of hydrant pressure water at no cost to Synagro for purposes of washing the interior
of tanks and/or dilution.

Sampling: Owner to provide analytical results for the purpose of landfill profiling and/or alternate
disposal
Pricing
| Service Provided Volume (not to exceed) Price ]
Clean Digesters 1&2 87,333 gallons per digester | $104,799.60
Clean Digesters 3&4 87,333 gallons per digester | $104,799.60
Mobilization/Demob Two mob/demob $70,000 ($35k each trip)
Total $279,599.20 |

Should you have any questions or wish to discuss this estimate further, please feel free to contact me
at (909) 289-3350. Thank you for your consideration and we look forward to working with you on this
project and any possible future projects.

Very truly yours,
BriowvVoss

Brian Voss
Business Development Manager
Synagro Technologies, Inc.

*Please nale that this proposal is based on Synagro’s sfandard terms and conditions and shall be strictly non-
binding upon Synagro until the parties negotiate and execute a binding contract. This proposal shall not obligate
Synagro to negotiate an agreement and any of the terms of the contract shall be subject to Synagro’s approval, at
its discretion.

34761 Boros Blvd., Beaumont, CA 92223
Phone: 809-289-3350 ¢ Fax: 951-755-8931
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’ Yucaipa Valley Water District Director Memorandum 16-099
W
Date: October 18, 2016
Prepared By: John Wrobel, Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager
Subject: Review of the Yucaipa Valley Water District's Sewer System Management
Plan

Recommendation:  That the Board receives and files the Sewer System Management Plan.

Typically, the operation and management of a sewer collection system includes the following
activities:

e Maintaining or improving the condition of the collection system infrastructure in order to
provide reliable service into the future;

o Cost-effectively minimizing infiltration/inflow and providing adequate sewer capacity; and
e Minimizing the number and impact of sanitary sewer overflows that occur.
In order to achieve the above goals, sewer collection agencies develop and implement a Sewer
System Management Plan, also called a SSMP, to document and describe the procedures used

to effectively manage a sewer collection system.

The attached update of the District's SSMP was presented and discussed at the board workshop
on October 4, 2016.
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%)
' Yucaipa Valley Water District

W

SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN

2
' Yucaipa Valley Water District
P D

Developed By:
Pl Ll
COMPLIANCE, INC.
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YVWD Sewer System Management Plan
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INTRODUCTION

This Sewer System Management Plan has been developed by the Yucaipa Valley Water District (District)
to comply with California State Water Resources Control Board Order No. 2006-0003-DWQ -Statewide
General Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems (WDRs), and its recent amendment
Order No. WQ 2013-0058-EXEC. On May 2, 2006, the State Water Resources Control Board adopted the
WDRs requiring owners and operators of sanitary sewer systems greater than one mile in length that
collect or convey untreated or partially treated wastewater to a Publicly Owned Treatment Facility, to
apply for coverage and abide by its provisions and prohibitions. Its purpose is to prevent Sanitary Sewer
Overtlows and establish uniform procedures for monitoring and reporting.

On June 26, 2006 the District applied for coverage under this order by submitting a Notice of Intent
(NOQI) to the State Water Board. On November 16, 2006, the District obtained an account on the State of
California Sanitary Sewer Overflow Database (California Integrated Water Quality System [CTWQS]). This
provides the District with a mechanism to report Sanitary Sewer Overflows in accordance with the WDRs.
The WDRs also require the development and implementation of a Sewer System Management Plan. A
Sewer System Management Plan must include provisions to provide proper and efficient management,
operation, and maintenance of sanitary sewer systems, while taking into consideration risk management and
cost benefit analysis. Additionally, a Sewer System Management Plan must contain a spill response
plan that establishes standard procedures for immediate response to an Sanitary Sewer Overflow in a
mamner designed to minimize water quality impacts and potential nuisance conditions.

System Description

The District owns and operates a sanitary sewer collection system (collection system) consisting of
approximately 225 miles of gravity draining sewer lines ranging in sizes, with the majority being 8 inches
in diameter. The District also has 5 pump stations located throughout the District area providing service to
those arcas of geographic need. Treatment is provided at the Wochholz Regional Water Recyeling Facility
(WRWRI), which provides preliminary, primary, secondary, and tertiary treatments, as well as solids
removal handling, for a rated capacity of approximately 8 million gallons per day (mgd).

Document Organization

To fulfill the requirements of the WDRs, this Sewer System Management Plan contains 11 elements which
detail the management, operation, and maintenance of all parts of the sanitary sewer system.

Goal

Organization

Legal Authority

Operations and Maintenance Program

Design and Performance Provisions

Overflow Emergency Response Plan

Fats, Qils, and Grease Control Program

System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan

O e A
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Introduction

9. Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications
10. Sewer System Management Plan Program Audits
11. Communication Program

At the beginning of each elemental section the required contents (as defined in the WDRs) are outlined to
inform the reader of the section contents. Following this introduction, cach section contains the policies,
practices, descriptions, and references used to address clement requirements.
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DEFINITIONS

Best Management Practices (BMP): Refers to the procedures employed in commercial kitchens to minimize
the quantity of grease that is discharged to the sanitary sewer system. Examples include scraping food scraps
into a garbage can and dry wiping dishes and utensils prior to washing.

California Integrated Water Quality System (CIWQS): Refers to the State Water Resources Control Board
online electronic reporting system that is used to report Sanitary Sewer Overflows, certify completion of the
Sewer System Management Plan, and provide information on the sanitary sewer system.

California Water Environment Association (CWEA): Means the California Water Environment
Association, which is a recognized voluntary certification program for wastewater personnel in several
disciplinary areas including collection system, environmental compliance inspection, laboratory, and
industrial pretreatment operators.

Capital Assurance Plan (CAP): Means a plan that addresses current and future anticipated sewer capacity
needs based upon general planning documents, growth projections, etc.

Capital Improvement Plan (CIP): Refers to the document that identifies future capital improvements to the
District’s sanitary sewer system.

Category 1 SSO: A Discharge of untreated or partially treated wastewater of any volume resulting from a
sanitary sewer system failure or flow condition that:
a. Reach surface water and/or reach a drainage channel tributary to a surface water; or
b. Reach a MS4 and are not fully captured and returned to the sanitary sewer system or not otherwise
captured and disposed of properly. Any volume of wastewater not recovered from the MS4 is
considered to have reached surface water unless the storm drain system discharges to a dedicated
storm water or groundwater infiltration basin (e.g., infiltration pit, percolation pond).

Category 2 SSO: A Discharges of untreated or partially treated wastewater greater than or equal to 1,000
gallons resulting from a sanitary sewer system failure or flow condition that does not reach a surface water,
a drainage channel, or the MS4 unless the entire SSO volume discharged to the storm drain system is fully
recovered and disposed of properly.

Category 3 SSO: All other discharges of untreated or partially treated wastewater resulting from a sanitary
sewer system failure or flow condition.

Closed Circuit Television (CCTV): Refers to the process and equipment that is used to internally inspect the
condition of gravity sewers.

Corrective Maintenance (CM): Is a term that refers to reactive maintenance (i.e., respond to equipment
failure) rather than preventative or predictive type maintenance.

District: Refers to the Yucaipa Valley Water District (Y VWD),
Enforcement Response Plan (ERP): Refers to the District’s procedures for responding to wastewater

Ordinance and/or Wastewater Permit violations. The responses are designed to induce compliance in a timely
manner and to protect the POTW.
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Definitions

Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG): Refers to fats, oils, and grease typically associated with food preparation and
cooking activities that can cause blockages in the sanitary sewer system.

Food Service Establishment (FSE): Refers to commercial or industrial facilities where food is
handled/prepared/served that discharge to the sanitary sewer system.

Full-time Equivalent (FTE): Refers to the equivalent of 2,080 paid labor hours per year by a regular,
temporary, or contract employee.

General Waste Discharge Requirements (GWDR): Refers to the State Water Resources Control Board
Order No. 2006-0003, Statewide General Waste Discharge Requirements for Sanitary Sewer Systems, dated
May 2, 2006.

Infiltration/Inflow (I/I): Refers to water that enters the sanitary sewer system from storm water and
groundwater that increases the quantity of flow. Infiltration enters through defects in the sanitary sewer system
after flowing through the soil. Inflow enters the sanitary sewer without flowing through the soil. Typical points
of inflow are holes in manhole lids and direct connections to the sanitary sewer (e.g. storm drains, area drains,
and roof leaders).

Lateral: Refers to the piping that conveys sewage from a building to the District’s sewer system. Also referred
to as a private lateral because the ownership and responsibility for maintaining belongs to the private party
(resident or commercial property owner) rather than the District.

Legally Responsible Official (LRO): Refers to the individual who has the authority and accountability for
certifying regulatory reports and other actions that are submitted through the State’s electronic reporting
database, CIWQS.

Monitoring and Reporting Program (MRP): Refers to the section of the WDR that contains the regulatory
requirements for monitoring and reporting activities and wastewater quality to document compliance.

National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES): Refers to the federal permitting system that
contains general and specific monitoring and reporting requirements related to water discharges from
identified sources that are directed to waters of the US.

Office of Emergency Services (OES): Refers to the California State Governor’s Office of Emergency
Services.

Private Lateral Sewage Discharges (PL.SD): Sewage discharges that are caused by blockages or other
problems within privately owned laterals or collection systems, which are tributary to the District’s sanitary
sewer system. The District on a voluntary basis submits reports of these events. This type of sewage discharge

1s the responsibility of the private lateral or collection system owner.

Preventative Maintenance (PM): Refers to maintenance activities intended to prevent failures of the sanitary
sewer system facilities (e.g. cleaning, CCTV, repair).

Regional Water Recyeling Facility: Refers to the Henry N. Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility.

Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCBY): Refers to the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality
Control Board, which is Region 8 of the State Water Resources Control Board.
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Definitions

Sanitary Sewer Overflow Response Plan (SSORP): Synonymous with the District’s Overflow Emergency
Response Plan, which is the element of this SSMP that addresses the District’s response to SSO events.

Sanitary Sewer Overflow (S80): A Sanitary Sewer Overflow 1s any overflow, spill, release, discharge or
diversion of wastewater from a sanitary sewer system. This includes:

o Overflows or releases of untreated or partially treated wastewater that reach waters of the United
States;

o Overflows or releases of wastewater that do not reach waters of the United States; and,

o  Wastewater backups into buildings and on private property that are caused by blockages or flow
conditions in a sanitary sewer system, other than a building lateral. Wastewater backups into buildings
caused by a blockage or other malfunction of a building lateral that is privately owned is a SSO when
sewage is discharged off a private property into streets, storm drains, or waters of the State.

Sanitary Sewer System: Any system of pipes, lift stations, sewer lines, etc., used to collect and convey
sewage to a treatment plant. Temporary storage and conveyance facilities (such as vaults, temporary piping,
construction trenches, wet wells, impoundments, tanks, highlights, etc.) are considered part of the sanitary
sewer system, and discharges of sewage to these facilities are not SSOs.

Sewage: Shall mean any liquid waste and water borne solid waste resulting from residential, commercial,
industrial, or institutional activities or uses.

Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP): A written plan that provides the necessary guidelines,
procedures, and policies to effectively operate and maintain a sewer collection system in a publicly and
environmentally responsible manner both now and in the future.

State of California Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB): Refers to the State Water Resources
Control Board and stafl responsible for protecting the State’s water resources.

Surface Waters: All waters of the United States as defined in 40 CFR 122.2 such as navigable waters, rivers,
streams, lakes, natural ponds, wetlands, ete. SSOs to storm drains tributary to surface waters shall be reported
as discharges to surface waters.

Unavoidable Overflows: SSOs from the collection system are deemed unavoidable if they meet the criteria
listed below.

1. The discharge resulted from a temporary, exceptional incident that was:
e Necessary to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe property damage, or
¢ Beyond the reasonable control of the operator. Incidents beyond the reasonable control of the
operator would include:
o exceptional acts of nature;
o third party actions that could not be reasonably prevented; including vandalism that could not
be avoided by reasonable measures;
o blockages that could not be avoided by reasonable measures, and
o unforeseeable sudden structural, mechanical, or electrical failure that could not be avoided by
reasonable measures.
2. There was no feasible alternative to the discharge.
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Definitions

3. The discharge was not caused by any of the following:

Operational error;

Improperly designed or constructed collection system facilities;
Inadequate collection system facilities or components;

Lack of appropriate preventive maintenance; or

Careless or improper oversight.

Waste Discharge Requirements (WDR): Means a conditional use permit that contains regulatory
requirements related to the discharge of water to streets, recycled water ponds, or other locations that do not
require an NPDES Permit.
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GOAL

The goal of the SSMP is to provide a plan and schedule to properly manage, operate, and
maintain all parts of the sanitary sewer system owned by the Enrollee. This will help reduce
and prevent S850s, as well as mitigate any SSOs that do occur.

The District’s mission is to provide water supply, wastewater disposal, and water resource management to the
public in a safe, reliable, financially responsible, and environmentally sensitive manner. As such, the District
is committed to the goal of maintaining a Sewer System Management Plan to properly manage, operate, and
maintain all aspects of its sanitary sewer system to help reduce and prevent Sanitary Sewer Overflows, as well
as mitigate the impacts of any that may occur.

This Sewer System Management Plan has been developed and is implemented with the intent of properly
managing, operating, and maintaining all parts of the District’s sanitary sewer system. The District has
identified specific goals that it believes achievable through the implementation of the contents of this plan.
With this regard, the Sewer System Management Plan establishes the following goals:

e To effectively manage, operate, maintain, and improve the District’s wastewater collection
system,
To provide adequate capacity to convey peak flows;
To provide notifications and reports to all required regulatory agencies in a timely manner;
To minimize the frequencies of preventable Sanitary Sewer Overflows throughout the District’s
collection system;
To effectively mitigate the effects of any Sanitary Sewer Overflow that may occur; and
To provide public education to increase awareness of Fats, O1l and Grease issues and how they
can affect the collection system.
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ORGANIZATION

The SSMP must identify:

a) The name of the responsible or authorized representative as described in Section J of
Order No. 2006-0003-DWQ — Statewide General WDR For Wastewater Collection
Agencies.

b) The names and telephone numbers for management, administrative, and maintenance
positions responsible for implementing specific measures in the SSMP program. The
SSMP rust identify lines of authority through an organization chart or similar
document with a narrative explanation; and

¢) The chain of communication for reporting SSOs, from receipt of a complaint or
other information, including the person responsible for reporting 850s to the State
and Regional Water Board and other agencies if applicable (such as County Health
Officer, County Environmental Health Agency, Regional Water Board, and/or).

***NOTE: Reporting requirement has been amended. Notification is only required fo the
Office of Emergency Services (OES). ***

The administration and implementation of the Sewer System Management Figure 1 - Organization
Plan is directed through the Public Works Department. The Department’s
offices are located at:

Board of
Directors

Yucaipa Valley Water District
12770 Second Street
Yucaipa, CA 92399

Phone: (909) 797-5117, Fax: (951) 351-6267 General
Manager
Authorized Representatives *
The District has authorized certain individuals to serve as Authorized Regulatory &
Representatives for all sanitary sewer related issues in the City and within Environmental
the District boundary. These representatives are authorized to sign and Control Manager
certify all reports required by the State WDRs and other information *
required by the State or Regional Water Board. These individuals are also <
?Fl;th(;.rtllzed ffot ;:lect@:ll.m.acllly 1s1gn z.md certify reports made through CTWQS. Public Works
¢ titles of these individuals are: Manager
« (eneral Manager
e Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager +
« Public Works Manager Public Works
« Public Works Supervisor Supervisor

The names and contact information of the individuals listed above can be
found at the beginning of this document on page 1.
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Administrative and Maintenance Personnel

Organization

The Public Works Department employs adequate staff to manage, operate, maintain, and improve the
sewer system. Within the Public Works Department is the Environmental Control Section, which is headed
by Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager (REC Manager) who provides immediate oversight over all
sanitary sewer related issues in the District. Figure 1 above describes the organization by which the Public
Works Manager receives direction from the General Manager and District Board members. Tables 1 and 2
below give the names and phone numbers of positions responsible for implementing the Sewer System

Management Plan and the positions responsible for implementing specific elements of the Sewer System
Management Plan, respectively. These Tables are key components to the proper implementation of the Sewer

System Management Plan and its effectiveness. A complete organizational chart identifying lines of authority

for all District employees can be found here:

http://documents. yvwd. dst.ca.us/personnel/organizationalchart. pdf

Table 1 - Responsible Positions

Position Name Phone Number | Mobile Number

General Manager Joe Zoba 909-797-5119 909-208-6425
Engineering Manager Brent Anton 909-797-5118 909-322-3934
Operations Manager Kevin King 909-795-2491 909-208-5918
Senior Plant Operator Kevin Lee 909-795-2491 909-208-9783
Public Works Manager John Hull 909-797-5117 909-322-3932
Regulatory & Environmental | John Wrobel 909-797-5117 909-208-6347
Control Manager

Public Works Supervisor Ryan Janisch 909-797-5117 951-902-7579

Pretreatment/Fats, Oil &
Grease Program

Consultants: G&G

Environmental Compliance, Inc.

951-683-3538

951-858-1453
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Table 2 - Responsible Staff for Sewer System Management Plan Elements

Element Responsible Staff
L Goals + General Manager .
+ Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager
II. Organization « General Manager
. : * Regulatory & Envi tal Control M
a. Name of the Responsible or authori zed cearaty HVIrermen onirel Managet
—— « Public Works Manager
B e I B T il e » Consultants (G&G Environmental Compliance, Inc.)
administrative, and maintenance positions + Operations Manager
¢. Chain of communication for reporting Sanitary
Sewer Overflowss
II1. Legal Authority + General Manager
a. Preventillicit discharges to the collection system * Regqlatory & Environmental Conrol Manager
b. Require that sewers and laterals be properly » Public Works Manager. .
designed and constructed « Consultants (G&G Environmental Compliance, Inc.)
c. Ensure access to the collection system O RN bk s
d. Limit discharge of Fats, Oil & Grease and other
debris that may cause blockages
e. Enforcement of Ordinance
IV. Operations and Maintenance Program
o . + General Manager
a. Maintain current map of collection system and » Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager
storm_dram SYStem . ) « Public Works Manager
b. De§cnbe routine and p.reventatlve operation and « Consultants (G&G Environmental Compliance, Inc.)
maintenance of (?qlleQUOH system » Operations Manager
¢. Developa ret.lablhtatlon and .replacement plan. « Public Works Supervisors
d. Deve.lop and implement a (raining program « Plant Operators
e. Provide equipment and training parts inventories o Utility Service Workers
V. Designand Performance - General Manager
a. Design, construction and specification standards « Engineering Manager
for installation and rehabilitation of new and » Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager
existing sewers. ¢ Public Works Manager
b. Procedures and standards for the inspection of « Operations Manager
new or rehabilitated sewers and appurtenances.
VI. Overflow Emergency Response Plan + General Manager
a. Notification procedures for regulatory agencies * Regqlatory & Environmental Control Manager
b. Response and mitigation procedures » Public Works Manager
¢. Staff and contractor training « Consultants (G&G Environmental Compliance, Inc.)
d. Emergency operations J Opemﬁons Manager _
e. Containment and monitoring plans s Public Works Supervisors
« Plant Operators
« Utility Service Workers
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Element

Responsible Staff

VII. Fats, Oils, and Grease Control Program
a. ldentification of "hot spot" areas of collection
system
b. Identification of food service businesses in "hot
spot" areas of collection system
c. Administrative controls (permits) for potential
grease dischargers
d. Requirement to install grease removal equipment
e. Encouragement to use BMPs to reduce grease
discharges
f. Penodicinspections
. Enforcement actions
. Public Education

= e

* Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager

« Public Works Manager

« Consultants (G&G Environmental Compliance, Inc.)
+ Operations Manager

« Public Works Supervisors

« Plant Operators

o Utility Service Workers

VIII. System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance
Plan
a. Capacityevaluation
b. Identification of capacity needs
¢.  Project schedule

+ Engineering Manager

« Engineering Technicians

+ Public Works Manager

+ Operations Manager

« Public Works Supervisors

« Plant Operators

« Utility Service Workers

« Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager

IX. Monitoring, Measurement, and Plant
Modifications

a. Maintain records and data

b. Monitorimplementation of Sewer System
Management Plan

c. Assess the success of preventive maintenance
program

d. Update program elements

e. Identify and track Sanitary Sewer Overflow trends

+ Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager

« Public Works Manager

+ Consultants (G&G Environmental Compliance, Inc.)
« Operations Manager

« Public Works Supervisors

« Plant Operators

« Utility Service Workers

. Sewer System Management Plan Program Audits
a. Personresponsible for the Audit
b. Scope of the Audit
¢. Audit work product
d. Schedule for the Audit, minimum every two years

» Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager
Consultants (G&G Environmental Compliance, Inc.)

XI. Communication Program

a. Notification that a Sewer System Management Plan
is being prepared.
b. Website use is suggested

« Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager
» Consultants (G&G Enviroenmental Compliance, Inc.)

12
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Organization

Sanitary Sewer Overflow Chain of Communication

The District utilizes a systematic approach to Sanitary Sewer Overflow response and notification. From
receipt of a complaint or observation to cleanup of a verified spill, various positions are responsible to
ensure that proper procedures are followed. A complete description of spill response is found in the
Overflow Emergency Response Plan maintained by the District. In summary, Sanitary Sewer Overflow
communication begins with a call to the District front desk, who then gathers all the pertinent information
related to the Sanitary Sewer Overflow then dispatches a staff member from the Environmental Control
Section to respond. Upon arrival, the staff member will relay all information back to the Environmental
Control Section who will send out notifications to responsible positions as defined in this section.
Notifications to various other agencies are made by dispatch as required depending on the nature of the
Sanitary Sewer Overflow. One of the Authorized Representatives may perform other notifications for
Category 1 Sanitary Sewer Overflows.

13
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LEGAL AUTHORITY

Each Enrollee must demonstrate, through sanitary sewer system use ordinances, service
agreements, or other legally binding procedures, that it possesses the necessary legal
authority to:

a) Prevent illicit discharges into its sanitary sewer system (examples may include U1,
stormwater, chemical dumping, unauthorized debris and cut roots, ete);

b) Require that sewers and connections be properly designed and constructed;

¢) Ensure access for maintenance, inspection, or repairs for portions of the lateral
owned or maintained by the Public Agency;

d) Limit the discharge of fats, oils, and grease and other debris that may cause
blockages, and

e) Enforce any violation of its sewer ordinances.

The District’s legal authority is comprised of several documents and codes that enable the District to protect
its sewer system from harmful discharges and activities. Among the documents and codes used are the
District’s Sewer Ordinance, the District’s Developer Handbook, Greenbook Standard Specifications for
Public Works Construction, Uniform Plumbing Code, and the District’s easement policies. The following
summarizes the District’s legal authority:

Illicit Discharges

The most current District Sewer Ordinance provides legal authority to prevent illicit discharges to the sewer
system. The District Sewer Ordinance includes prohibitions against the discharge of any material or waste
that could harm the collection system, Wastewater Treatment Facility, or jeopardize the safety of the
District’s collection system personnel and provides the District with the legal authority to enforce non-
compliance activities.

Design and Construction

Sewers and sewer connections are required to meet the criteria contained in the Engineering
Department’s Developer Handbook, Greenbook Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction,
latest edition, and the latest edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code. The District Sewer Ordinance provides
design and construction criteria for interceptors installed within the District. These drawings include the
following:

Typical Plan layout Sewer Systems

Typical Pipe Bedding Vitrified Clay Pipe Extra Strength
Sewer Lateral “Normal Cut”

Sewer Lateral “Deep Cut”

Precast Concrete Manhole

Sewer Precast Conerete Inspection Chamber

Drop manhole

Sewer Clean Out & Terminus Manhole

14
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Legal Authority

Manhole Cover & Frame

Connection to Existing Main

5" Diameter with Cast in Place Base
Shallow Manhole

4 and 6” Sewer Cut-In Wye Connections
Sewer On-Site Cleanout

Sewer Sample Wye

Access

The District has secured sewer casements to ensure access for maintenance, inspection, or repairs of
District owned collection systems on private property and for portions of the lateral owned or maintained by
the District. The District has a variety of methods for obtaining easements to construct and maintain
sewer lines through private property by:

1. Acquisition of the easement through voluntary purchase from the owner

2. Acquisition through condemnation for a sewer line easement

3. As a condition of development, the property owner is requested to dedicate or grant an
casement to the City for sewer line installation

These easements permit the District to conduct periodic and scheduled sewer line cleaning to prevent
Sanitary Sewer Overflows. If there is a problem in a sewer line in an area where the District has been
unable to acquire a sewer easement, the District will work closely with the City of Yucaipa and the property
owner to resolve the easement issue.

Fats, Oil & Grease Discharge

District Ordinance has several sections that contribute to the limitation of discharges of fats, oils,
greases and other debris that may cause blockages in the collection system. These include:

GENERAL DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS

SPECIFIC DISCHARGE PROHIBITIONS

INTERFERENCE WITH DISTICT EQUIPMENT OR FACILITIES
PRETREATMENT OF INDUSTRIAL WASTE

GRAVITY SEPARATION INTERCEPTORS

The District’s Ordinance, in its entirety, can be found here:

http://www.vyvwd.dst.ca.us/services/pretreatment

Enforcement

The Environmental Control Section enforces the Ordinance through its federally approved pretreatment
inspection program. This program helps reduce illicit discharges including discharges of Fats, Oils, and
Grease. Other Public Works personnel ensure that sewers are properly designed, constructed, and that access
to the sewer system is available.

15
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OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

The SSMP must include those elements listed below that are appropriate and applicable to
the Enrollee’s system:

a) Maintain an up-to-date map of the sanitary sewer system, showing all gravity line
segments and manholes, pumping facilities, pressure pipes and valves, and
applicable stormwater conveyance facilities;

b) Describe routine preventive operation and maintenance activities by staff and
contractors, including a system for scheduling regular maintenance and cleaning of
the sanitary sewer system with more frequent cleaning and maintenance targeted at
known problem areas. The Preventative Maintenance (PM) program should have a
system to document scheduled and conducted activities, such as work orders;

¢} Develop a rehabilitation and replacement plan to identify and priorifize system
deficiencies and implement short-term and long-term rehabilitation actions to address
each deficiency. The program should include regular visual and TV inspections of
manholes and sewer pipes, and a system for ranking the condition of sewer pipes and
scheduling rehabilitation. Rehabilitation and replacement should focus on sewer pipes
that are at risk of collapse or prone to more frequent blockages due to pipe defects.
Finally, the rehabilitation and replacement plan should include a capital improvement
plan that addresses proper management and protection of the infrastructiure assets.
The plan shall include a time schedule for implementing the short- and long-term plans
plus a schedule for developing the funds needed for the capital improvement plan;

d) Provide training on a regular basis for staff in sanitary sewer system operations and
maintenance, and require contractors to be appropriately trained; and

¢} Provide equipment and replucement part inventories, including identification of
critical replacement parts.

Operation and maintenance activities in the District are performed regularly and are enabled through
technology. The District maintains a detailed database containing information on all aspects of the
sewer system. Hach manhole, pump, line segment, etc. is designated as an asset and assigned an
identification number (asset ID). This information is used to aide operations and maintenance staff in their
efforts to obtain the goal of cleaning the entire sewer system every 18 months.

In addition to regular cleaning, the City maintains up-to-date maps and a rchabilitation and replacement
plan. It also provides regular training for staff and maintains equipment and replacement part inventories.
All of these are components of the operations and maintenance program and help ensure a properly
maintained sewer system.

Sewer Maps

The District maintainsg a GIS based mapping system that provides up-to-date maps of the sanitary sewer
system showing all gravity line segments and manhcles, pumping facilities, pressure pipes and valves,

16

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 18, 2016 - Page 139 of 209



Director Memorandum No. 16-099 Page 21 of 42

Operations and Maintenance Progran

and other conveyance facilities features. This system has the functionality to access all information related
to any sewer asset and can be used to make printed maps as necessary. This is maintained by the District’s
Engineering Department.

The Public Works Department has access to the ArcGIS, which is an online database system that provides
up to date information of the collection system. This program has many data “layers™ that can be applied to
a single map request, including sewer line location, type, size, and length. When the collection crews
discover differences with the field conditions and the computer information, the differences are recorded
and a work order submitted to revise the computer record.

Past maps, including architectural, engineering, and construction drawings (blucprints) are stored
electronically on a central computer system. This includes historical blueprints that have been scanned
and new construction submittals.

Preventative Maintenance

Collections System staff perform a variety of operations and maintenance activities to ensure the reliable
performance of the collection system. Sewer lines are cleaned of roots, debris, grease, ctc. at varying
intervals. Sewer cleaning is performed by using high pressure hydro-jetting equipment, specialized root
cutters, and other equipment. As cleaning is performed, Collections System staff also perform visual
inspections of manholes to check for evidence of surcharge, vandalism, structural damage, and other
conditions of concern. The Collection System’s goal is to clean the entire system every 18 months.

Collection System cleaning is accomplished through the implementation of a work order based system
which provides staff a daily scheduled cleaning route. Afler a section has been cleaned, collections crews
complete a cleaning record which includes the following information:

« Date and time of cleaning

« Method of cleaning

« Names of collections workers

= Location and cause of any blockage

¢ Recommendation of necessary further actions

The District also tracks the following collection system maintenance area:

+ Routine cleaning

+ Preventative cleaning and maintenance

+ Repairs

« High frequency cleaning and maintenance
o Roach control

e Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

Upon completion of the day’s activities, all cleaning information and work orders are entered into
the District’s Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS). The CMMS enables timely
maintenance scheduling, adequate parts inventories, and easy tracking of trends to assist in predicting and
therefore preventing many of the events that could contribute to system failures and potential Sanitary Sewer
Overflows.
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Another integral part of the District’s preventive maintenance program involves regularly inspecting each
of the District’s sewer pump stations. Each pump station is monitored daily through SCADA. In addition,
on- site inspections are being performed regularly, which allow District staff to visually check for any
signs of abnormal activity and respond accordingly.

Any abnormalities are reported and addressed in a timely manner. Portable generators are used when power
outages occur. In all instances, if power 1s lost and the station(s) cannot pump the wastewater, then several
vacuum truck companies are called to pump the lift station(s) wet well until the stations are operational.
Operation logs are maintained for all of the stations.

The District also has an active program to inspect manholes as part of the preventative maintenance plan. If
deficiencies are found, then a work order is created to correct the problem. All manholes are inspected every
2 years. When the manholes and the sewer lines are inspected, the following observations are recorded:

Conditions of the manhole frame and cover

Evidence of surcharge Offsets or misalignments

Details of the primary cause of cracks or breaks in the manhole or pipe, including blockages
Presence of corrosion (only if extreme)

If repairs are necessary

Manhole identifying number and location

Wastewater flow only if surcharged or backed up

Presence of infiltration, location, and estimated quantity

Accumulations of grease, debris, grit or pests

The District conducts CCTV on a frequent basis and contracts sewer line video inspections CCTV work to
Innerline Engineering. The video inspections address the following:

Pipe size, type, length, and joint spacing

Distances are recorded

Structural deficiencies

Corrosion

Inflow/Infiltration

Illegal connections

Results of the video inspection

CCTYV operator name

Cleanliness of the line

Location and identification of the line and manholes being examined

Once the CCTV examination is completed, the sewer line is rated based upon the defects discovered during
the video examination.

CCTV work is critical in the predictive maintenance area and helps establish priorities for future collection
system maintenance scheduling.

Operations and Maintenance Program

18
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Rehabilitation and Replacement Plan

The Sewer Rehabilitation and Replacement Program 1s one component of the District’s overall Capital
Improvement Plan (CIP). Regular visual and CCTV inspections of manholes and sewer pipes throughout
the District’s sewer system is used to verify and/or update rehabilitation or replacement priority areas.

The District contracted with Water 3 Engineering, Inc. to complete a Sewer Master Plan (November 2001),
which includes a flow capacity model for the District’s entire collection system. The Sewer Master Plan
provides the District with a planning document that will outline the potential service arca boundaries,
available capacity of existing facilities, location and sizing of future sewer conveyance facilities, and costs
and potential connection fees for capital cost recovery. The District is in the process of updating this Plan.

The District’s Environmental Control crews are constantly inspecting and evaluating the District’s sewer
system as part of their daily work routine. While cleaning and video inspecting the sewer system, problems
can be discovered that aid in the rehabilitation and replacement program. The problems detected can include
cracked pipes, structural failure, blockages (roots, oil/grease) and surcharge conditions. Most problems are
handled directly through the Environmental Control Section. The more severe issues or problems are
reported to the District’s Engineering group and tracked for future, rehabilitation and/or replacement and
inclusion in the District’s CIP project list.

Training

Collections systems personnel receive several trainings to enhance their job knowledge, skills, and abilities.
These trainings include:

e Sanitary Sewer Overflow/Emergency Response
« Sewer Cleaning

= Forklift Operation

« HAZWOPER Training

« Lockout/Tagout Procedures

« Confined Space Entry and Rescue

* General Safety — PPE

e Traffic Control

= Pipe Repair

« Public Relations

« Pump Station Operations and Maintenance
« CCTV and trench shoring

All training is recorded in a training database maintained by the District.
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Operations and Maintenance Program

Equipment and Replacement Parts

The Collection Systems Section utilizes several vehicles and equipment to maintain the sewer system.
Among the vehicles in operation are:

e One—U.S. Jetter

o Two — Aquatechs

e One— 6" Gorman Rupp Pump
e Two — 2 ton dump trucks

¢ One — 6 ton dump truck

¢ Four — Stake-bed Utility Trucks
¢ Three — Backhoes

¢ One —Loader

e One — Spill Response Trailer

¢ One —Push Camera

A variety of replacement parts are retained for collections equipment. These parts include nozzles, whip
hoses, reel hose, and high pressure valves. Certain collections crew members are trained to perform high
pressure hose repairs. All other repairs are performed at the District’s vehicle maintenance facility, including
scheduled preventive maintenance.
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DESIGN AND PERFORMANCE PROVISIONS

a) Design and construction standards and specifications for the installation of new
sanitary sewer systems, pump stations and other appurtenances;, and for the
rehabilitation and repair of existing sanitary sewer systems; and

b) Procedures and standards for inspecting and testing the installation of new sewers,
pumps, and other appurtenances and for rehabilitation and repair projects.

Design Criteria and Standard Construction Design

The District’s Engineering Department is responsible for capital sewer projects that include repair,
replacement, and new installation of sanitary sewer systems, pump stations, and other appurtenances. All
design and construction is subject to the approval of the District’s Engineer. To facilitate and streamline
the approval process, the District has developed design guidelines for construction of sewer projects which
are contained in the District’s Developer Handbook & Standard Drawings. In addition to these standard
drawings, the District uses the Greenbook Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction and the
Uniform Plumbing Code for guidance on sewer design.

In addition to specific design guidelines, the District’s Ordinance and Sewer Master Plan provides general
direction on where and how sewer lines should be installed. These documents and guidelines set forth
various sewer construction requirements that ensure the proper function of the sewer system. When plans
are submitted to engineering staff, they are closely reviewed for sewer line sizing, depth, clearances,
manhole spacing, ete. As the review process progresses, plans meeting all required specifications will
be approved for project construction. When construction is not approved, affected parties are notified of
the plan discrepancies.

Inspection and Testing

While installing new sewers, pumps, and other appurtenances, testing and imspection of the new sewer system
is performed to ensure quality installation. The District’s procedures and standards for inspecting and testing
the installation of new sewers, pumps and other appurtenances for rehabilitation are outlined in District’s
“Developer Handbook & Standard Drawings.”

The District contracts out the inspection duties to Krieger & Stewart (K&S). K&S personnel inspect all of
the sewer construction projects, both during and after the construction are completed.

New manholes that are installed are visually inspected to determine if there are any conditions of inflow or
infiltration. This activity is particularly important in arcas with traditionally shallow groundwater tables and
if groundwater is detected in the construction trenches during the project life.

All new sewer projects are Close Circuit Television (CCTV) inspected after completion. This includes all
private sewer systems in commercial projects. The video inspection and inclinometer testing is quite useful
to determine if the private sewer systems were built according to design and that all construction debris has
been removed from the sewer line(s).
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Each Enrollee shall develop and implement an overflow emergency response plan that
identifies measures to protect public health and the environment. At a minimum, this plan
must include the following:

a) Proper notification procedures so that the primary responders and regulatory agencies
are informed of all SSOs in a timely manner;

b) A program to ensure an appropriate response to all overflows;

c) Procedures to ensure prompt nofification to appropriate regulatory agencies and
other potentially affected entities (e.g. health agencies, Regional Water Boards, water
suppliers, etc.) of all SSOs that potentially affect public health or reach the waters
of the State in accordance with the MRP. All S80s shall be reported in accordance
with this MRP, the California Water Code, other State Law, and other applicable
Regional Water Board WDRs or NPDES permit requirements. The SSMP should
identify the officials who will receive immediate notification;

d) Procedures to ensure that appropriate staff and contractor personnel are aware of
and follow the Emergency Response Plan and are appropriately trained;

e) Procedures to address emergency operations, such as traffic and crowd control and
other necessary response activities; and

A program to ensure that all reasonable steps are taken fo contain and prevent the
discharge of untreated and partially treated wastewater to waters of the United States
and to minimize or correct any adverse impact on the environment resulting from
the SSOs, including such accelerated or additional monitoring as may be necessary
to determine the nature and impact of the discharge.

The District has created several documents to ensure it utilizes a systematic approach to Sanitary Sewer
Overtlow response and notification procedures. All District staff continually review these documents in
an effort to constantly improve public and environmental health.

The Goals of the Sanitary Sewer Overflow Response Plan are to:

Ensure all reported Sanitary Sewer Overflows are responded to immediately,

Identify and allocate adequate resources needed in the response;

Provide timely and adequate training, equipment and qualified staff to ensure effective response; and,
Ensure all Sanitary Sewer Overflows are accurately reported and any Sanitary Sewer Overflow trends
are identified and used to provide opportunities for continuous improvement.

The objectives of the Sanitary Sewer Overflow Response Plan are to:

Reduce the occurrence and the magnitude of Sanitary Sewer Overflow,

Protect the collection system, wastewater treatment facilities, and all appurtenances;
Protect public and private property;

Protect water quality; and

Protect Public Health, Safety, environment and property from Sanitary Sewer Overflows.
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Prevent the discharge of sewage into surface waters.
Contain the sewage discharged to the maximum extent possible.

¢ Establish perimeters and control zones to control public access to Sanitary Sewer Overflow arca.
¢ Prompt notification of spill information and potential impacts.

Sanitary Sewer Overflow can occur in any of the three (3) areas of the collection/treatment system:

1. Collection System (main line or laterals)
2. Lift Station
3. Wastewater Treatment Plant

The response procedures for Sanitary Sewer Overflows are determined by the classification and location.
While the objectives of the response remain the same, the coordination and personnel chain of
communication is slightly different. The following summarizes response actions for Sanitary Sewer
Overflows in the three (3) areas:

Collection System Sanitary Sewer Overflow:

If the District receives a reported Sanitary Sewer Overflow during regular business hours (8:00 am — 4:00
pm), a representative from the Environmental Control Section is assigned to investigate the report. Sanitary
Sewer Overflows reported after hours are received by the District’s answering service. The answering service
routes the information to the on-call representative from the Public Works Department. The on-call person
will evaluate the situation, determine an appropriate response and contact the applicable supervisory level
staff for additional direction, as needed.

Sanitary Sewer Overflows observed by District personnel in the course of performing their normal duties are
to be reported immediately to the Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager, or their designee. The
Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager records and prepares the necessary reports with the relevant
overflow information, and dispatches additional resources as necessary. The Regulatory & Environmental
Control Manager (or designee) shall confirm the sanitary sewer overflow.

For Private Property Sanitary Sewer Overflows, the District will respond to all Sanitary Sewer Overflows
within their service area. If determined that a Sanitary Sewer Overflow originated from a sewer lateral or
septic system on private property, the District will assist in the control and containment to ensure that the
wastewater does not enter into storm drains, spillways, etc. The property owner will be informed of the
blockage, and will be responsible to remove the blockage. If the Sanitary Sewer Overflow was a result of
the sewer trunk-line, the response crew will correct the problem. In cach case, the District will report the spill
in accordance with this Plan.

The Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager shall complete a Sanitary Sewer Overtflow Report Form
and submit within the State required timeframe. See Attachment A for a copy of the Sanitary Sewer Overflow
Report Form.
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Lift Station Overflow/Bypass:

If the District receives notification regarding an overflow/bypass of a lift station during regular business hours
(8:00 am — 4:00 pm), a representative from the Environmental Control Section and the Wastewater Treatment
Plant Department will be contacted to investigate the report. An overflow/bypass of a lift station after hours
will be received by the District’s answering service and forwarded to the on-call representative from the
Public Works Department. The District employee contacted will evaluate the situation and contact the
applicable personnel from the Environmental Control Section and Wastewater Treatment Department for
review.

Wastewater Treatment Plant Overflow/Bypass:

The treatment plant is monitored both physically and remotely 24-hrs a day, therefore, most overflows will
be reported by plant personnel. Overflows/bypasses occurring within the confines of a treatment plant are
repoited to the shift supervisor. Most if not all overflows/bypasses will be contained onsite within the storm
water detention basin. The Operations Manager at the Wastewater Treatment Plant makes operational
decisions regarding the containment, recovery, clean up, documentation, OES notification, and reporting of
the spill. All documentation and reporting of the spill (Sanitary Sewer Overflow Report Form) is performed
by the Wastewater Treatment Plant Department Operations Manager or their designee.

Every effort will be made to ensure that all reported Sanitary Sewer Overflows are responded to within the
first hour of notification of the Sanitary Sewer Overflow.

Initial Sanitary Sewer Overflow Response Procedures:

When a call of a potential Sanitary Sewer Overflow is received, all relevant information (e.g., time and date
call was received, specific location, description of problem, time possible Sanitary Sewer Overflow occurred,
caller’s name and telephone number, any other observations made by the caller, etc.) is collected by the
District. Information is relayed to statf member(s) who is (are) dispatched to the location. Staff notifications
are made by telephone or mobile radio. The Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager (or designee)
will receive information from the responding staff and decide if additional crews, materials, equipment and
supplies are needed.

The primary responsibilities of each employee in the Spill Response Team are shown in Table 3 below.

Assessment, Containment, Traffic Control, Clean-up, and Monitoring Procedures:

All of the Districts employees are responsible for minimizing the effects of any Sanitary Sewer Overtlow.
The following steps provide guidance in the event of a Sanitary Sewer Overflow.

Preliminary Assessment

The first person at the scene gathers pertinent information and determines if the spill 1s a Sanitary Sewer
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Overflow. Once determined to be a Sanitary Sewer Overflow, a determination is made regarding the
classification of spill. Regardless of the classification, all Sanitary Sewer Overflows will be contained and
cleaned up before it reaches the storm drains. Photographs will also be taken as supporting documentation
of the spill, and the proper procedures used for containment and cleanup. The first person on the scene,
along with the first person who received the call should complete the Reportable Incident Notification Log.

Containment

After the initial assessment, all reasonable efforts will be made to contain the Sanitary Sewer Overflow (e.g.,
install plugs, sandbags, sand/rock, etc.).

Traffic Control

The traffic and crowd control used for the Sanitary Sewer Overflow situations can be summarized as
follows:

Spills (less than 1.000 gallons):

s Setup traffic cones to direct traffic from spill arca.
o  Use staff personnel to control traffic and pedestrians.

Spills (1,000 to 10,000 gallong):

« Contact Mutual Aid Contract cities as nesded.

« Perform lane closures as needed.

« Close any affected entrances or exits from all public and private facilities.

« Place proper signage for any lane closures including contaminated area signs.
« Use caution tape and barricades to protect pedestrians from contaminated area.

Spills (= 10.000 gallons):

«  Assess spill situation.

« Contact Mutual Aid contract cities as needed.

+ Inform local police and sheriff’s department of any law enforcement needed road closures and
traffic control.

« Delegate the responsibilities to Mutual Aid team members to inform public of hazards also use
signage to inform public of potential hazards to public health and safety.

« Block public access to hazard using barricades, cones and caution tape.

Initial Estimate of Flow Volume

Initial estimates of flow volumes are through on-site observations using best professional judgment and
guidelines established by recognized engineering firms and other municipal agencies. Final numbers are
confirmed during cleanup and recovery efforts based upon volumes returned to the sewer and estimates of
unrecovered volumes.
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Clean-up

All Sanitary Sewer Overflow sites are to be thoroughly cleaned (i.e., no readily identifiable residue is to
remain) using the following procedures:

e  Where practical the area is thoroughly flushed and cleaned of any sewage using high-pressure
water hose or Vactor truck. Solids and debris are flushed, picked-up and hauled away. All flush
water will be contained and collected for proper disposal.

¢ The Sanitary Sewer Overflow site is secured to prevent contact by members of the public until
the site has been thoroughly cleaned. Posting of signs, if required, concerning public health and
safety will be undertaken pursuant to District guideline.

¢ The Sanitary Sewer Overflow site should be disinfected and deodorized using liquid bleach
(sodium hypochlorite), etc. Caution needs to be used to ensure that any disinfection chemicals
used, do not contribute to or cause violations of other NPDES Permit requirements related to
chlorine levels in waterways.

¢ Ensure proper contact time for proper disinfection.

Where sewage has resulted in pooling, pump dry and remove all residues.
If sewage has discharged into a body of water that may contain fish or other aquatic life, do not
disinfect, contact appropriate agency for further instructions.

Monitoring

For Surface Water Sanitary Sewer Overflow:

Water quality samples must be taken in the event sewage enters surface water.

Samples must be taken upstream and downstream of any surface water.

The sample location and time will need to be logged on the chain of custody form.

A map of the sample location(s) should be made so that follow-up testing is performed at the same

location(s).

o The employee taking the samples will start at point of entry. When taking the sample, submerge
the bottle below the surface of the water with the cap on. Once the bottle is under the surface,
remove the cap and fill the bottle. Gloves will be worn while sampling to avoid infecting any
open wounds.

o  Spills should be analyzed, at a minimum for:

o pH

E/C

Ammonia Nitrogen

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD)

Dissolved Oxygen (DO)

Total Fecal Coliform

Total Suspended Solids (TSS); and

Any other constituents as directed by the RWQCB or by the District’s Environmental

Control Section.

o 0 0 0 0 0 0

For Non-surface Sanitary Sewer Overflow:

» Sanitary Sewer Overflows to the ground that do not reach surface waters are monitored in
accordance with any requirements stipulated by the Regional Water Quality Control Board
(RWQCRB).
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Notification and Response Procedures

Sanitary Sewer Overflow Communication follows a defined procedure to ensure that all Sanitary Sewer
Overflows are reported and responded to in an appropriate manner. Within this process, primary
responders (usually a collection systems or operations crew member) are notified of potential spills and
respond to the location in question. Upon arrival, the staff member will relay information back to Dispatch
who will send cut email notifications to responsible positions as defined in this section. Notifications to
various other agencies are made by dispatch as required depending on the nature of the Sanitary Sewer
Overflow.

One of the Authorized Representatives may perform other notifications for Category 1 Sanitary Sewer
Overflows. Concurrent with notification procedures, primary responders work to correct the problem and

minimize its affects.

Table 3 - Spill Response Team and Responsibility

Position Responsibility Contact Numbers

e Provide initial evaluation of spill severity
Call emergency services, as required
s Notify Regulatory & Environmental Control Manager
e Stop spill and secure area as instructed by Public Works
Superintendent

s Direct First Responder in initial actions to control spill and
prevent public exposures to spill

+ Evaluate spill and determine actions to control and cleanup

¢ Mobilize District personnel/equipment to respond to spill

s Contact and direct outside services, as required, to respond

Regulatory & to spill

Environmental Control | « Will ensure/or complete the Sanitary Sewer Overflow P - (909) 797-5117

Manager Response Report and provide agency notifications

¢ Communicate with General Manager, and other Executive C -(909) 208-6347
Management as directed.

¢ Ensure adequate response to Sanitary Sewer Overflow

s Certify all regulatory reports related to the Sanitary Sewer
Overflow

+ Evaluate resources and response procedures to determine if
response to Sanitary Sewer Overflow followed prescribed

P —(909) 797-5117
First Responder

process
Fats, Oil & Grease P -(951) 683-3538
Cont.rol Program & Determine required sampling for spill and initiate C-(951) 858-1453
Services (Consultant) investigation of possible commercial sources. & (951) 858-1542

& Authorize additional District resources to respond to spill
Public Works Manager | e Activate ERN.LE if needed for additional resources P - (909) 797-5117

C - (909) 208-6436

27

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 18, 2016 - Page 150 of 209



Director Memorandum No. 16-099 Page 32 of 42

Overflow and Emergency Response Plan

Training

The District provides regular training on the Overflow Emergency Response Plan for all personnel involved
in overflow response. The District utilizes several different types of training exercises. In each of these
trainings, the Sewer System Management Plan is reviewed and discussed to ensure proper procedures are
understood. Real life experiences and scenarios are shared and reviewed to enhance training sessions. The

Training exercises include:

¢ Orientation Exercise: The orientation exercise is an exercise consisting of a brief lecture; overview
of the requirements; and past experiences. The training orients District Wastewater Collection staff
regarding Sanitary Sewer Overflow response requirements.

¢ Tabletop Exercise: Sanitary Sewer Overflow is simulated, without actual deployment of equipment
or resources. Staff participates through discussion and the use of a facilitator. Exercise effectiveness
is determined by the feedback from participants and impact on revisions to plans, procedures and
systems.

¢ Functional Full Scale Exercise: A spill event is simulated during the exercise. Staff actions are
monitored and observations are recorded. The exercise provides an opportunity to evaluate the
Sanitary Sewer Overflow Plan’s objectives. It will also test equipment, response time, training,
resources and work foree capabilities. Records of training and event participation will be recorded and
maintained. At this time, no certification requirements have been imposed, but those requirements
may be imposed, if required later by the RWQCB.

Emergency Operations

Aside from those emergency procedures outlined in the preceding, other procedures such as traffic control
and crowd control may be necessary in the event of a major sewer overflow. Collections systems crews
are equipped with traffic cones, barricades, caution tape and other items that enable the control of traffic and
crowds during minor events. In the event of a major spill, other Public Works crews, law enforcement,
and fire personnel may be contacted to assist in emergency operations. These crews are experienced in
closing lanes or streets, establishing detour routes, crowd control, and other emergency operations.

Minimize Impacts

The Overflow and Emergency Response Plan is designed to ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to
contain and prevent the discharge of sewer overflows to waters of the United States. While the proper
implementation of this plan will prevent most discharges to waters of the United States, there are
situations when these waters become affected. Should this occur and if receiving water monitoring is
necessary, the receiving water is evaluated and sampled in accordance with District’s Water Quality
Monitoring Program.
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Fats, Oil & Grease Control Program

Each Enrollee shall evaluate its service area to determine whether a FOG control program is
needed. If an Enrollee determines that a FOG program is not needed, the Enrollee must
provide justification for why it is not needed. If FOG is found to be a problem, the Enrollee
must prepare and implement a FOG source control program to reduce the amount of these
substances discharged to the sanitary sewer system. This plan shall include the following as
appropriate:

a)  An implementation plan and schedule for a public education outreach program that
promotes proper disposal of FOG;

b) A plan and schedule for the disposal of FOG generated within the sanitary sewer
system service areqa. This may include a list of acceptable disposal fucilities and/or
additional facilities needed to adequately dispose of FOG generated within a sanitary
sewer system service area;

o) The legal authority to prohibit discharges to the system and identify measures to prevent
SS50s and blockages caused by FOG;

d) Requirements to install grease removal devices (such as traps or inferceptors), design
standards for the removal devices, maintenance requirements, BMP requirements,
record keeping and reporting requirements;

&) Authority to inspect grease producing facilities, enforcement authorities, and whether
the Enrollee has sufficient staff to inspect and enforce the FOG ordinance;

D An identification of sanitary sewer system sections subject to FOG blockages and
establishment of a cleaning maintenance schedule for each section; and

g) Development and implementation of source control measures for all sources of FOG
discharged to the sanitary sewer system for each section identified in (f) above.

The District has determined it benefits from a Fats, Oil, & Grease Source Control Program and has
implemented various policies and practices in an attempt to limit Fats, Oil & Grease disturbances to the
sewer system. This program is administered by the Environmental Control Section and the Pretreatment
Program Consultant (G&G Environmental Compliance, Inc.).

Public Education

Public education and outreach is performed through a variety of activities primarily performed by the
Environmental Control Section. This Section participates in local events each year sponsored by other
agencies to educate the public about Fats, Oil & Grease and other sewer related issues. While the
general public receives education through local events, the District’s Consultant who conducts inspections
on behalf of the District, also educates business owners and restaurants on the requirements and the
importance of the District’s Fats, Oil & Grease Source Control Program during the inspection. The
Environmental Control Consultant conducts inspections at all restaurants in the District area on a regular
basis. During these inspections, they check drains, grease interceptors, waste oil containers, records,
etc. to verify compliance with local ordinances. These activities provide an opportunity to educate
business owners about Fats, Oil & Grease and its effect on the sewer system.
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Topics discussed during these inspections include:

Product usage and substitution,
Good housekeeping practices,
Grease interceptor evaluation,
Ordinance overview, and
District permit requirements

A e o

Throughout all of the Environmental Control Section’s interactions, a variety of promotional items are
available for distribution. The District also includes informational inserts in residents’ sewer bills.

Fats, Oil & Grease Disposal

As mentioned above, Environmental Control Consultant Inspectors visit restaurants, kitchens, and other
known Fats, Oil & Grease producing facilities on a regular basis to verify compliance with the District’s
Ordinance. During these visits, facility records including waste o1l disposal and grease interceptor
maintenance are checked to ensure proper disposal of Fats, Oil & Grease. In addition, the Environmental
Control Section Consultant Inspectors provide education and offer educational materials that inform on
how to properly dispose of Fats, Oil & Grease.

Legal Authority

The District has established legal authority to prohibit discharges of Fats, Oil & Grease to the sanitary sewer
system. This is accomplished through the District’s Ordinance, which explicitly prohibits grease and other
viscous materials from entering the sewer system.

In addition to these prohibitions, the Ordinance requires users to separate Fats, Oil & Grease to the
maximum extent practicable for off-site disposal. This section alse requires restaurants seek a determination
from the Environmental Control Section on whether or not a grease interceptor must be installed. Finally,
this section requires users to properly maintain their interceptors utilizing the 25% rule and establishing other
standards to the regular interceptor cleaning process.

Requirements for Grease Removal Devices

The District’s Ordinance, states “BEach User discharging wastewater containing quantities of Oil and
Grease and/or Suspended Solids that could exceed the District standards set for the in Articles 4 and 5
herein shall install and maintain a gravity separation interceptor (interceptor) designed to retain all Oil
and Grease that will float and any Suspended Solids that will settle.” All food processing facilities,
including restaurants shall meet the design and installation requirements of a gravity separation
interceptor in accordance with the District’s Ordinance and current version of the Uniform Plumbing
Code.
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Additional interceptor requirements including accessibility tee, and sample box requirements are found
in the Districts most current Ordinance. It also describes the maintenance requirements. An interceptor is
not considered to be properly maintained, if for any reason the interceptor is not i good working
condition or if the operational fluid capacity has been reduced by more than twenty-five percent by
the accumulation of floating material, sediment, oil, grease, or other liquids that have limited or no
solubility in water.

The Districts Ordinance requires users to keep records of waste hauling, reclamations, wastewater
pretreatment, monitoring device recording charts and calibration reports, effluent flow, and sample
analysis data, on the site and to make them available for review and copying, upon request.  Records must
be kept onsite for a minimum of three years.

Authority to Inspect

The Districts Ordinance provides the authority to inspect businesses in order to ascertain if all municipal
code requirements are being met. It requires users to provide access and have personnel available who are
knowledgeable of all facility processes. The Environmental Control Section administers the Fats, Oil &
Grease inspection program through its Consultant.

Fats, Oil & Grease Problem Areas and Maintenance Schedule

Several areas throughout the District have been identified as being subject to Fats, O1l & Grease blockages.
These arcas are maintained on an aggressive schedule. To help prevent sewer line blockages in these
areas, operations and maintenance crews clean these lines every month. This enhanced cleaning schedule
helps to keep these sewer sections properly maintained.

As detailed in this element, the District’s nulti-faceted source control program consists of inspections, public
education and other activities. When problems in commercial/retail arcas are identified, the Environmental
Control staff and/or Consultant staff increase efforts in these areas in an attempt to locate specific causes of
the problem.
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SYSTEM EVALUATION AND CAPACITY
ASSURANCE PLAN

The Enrollee shall prepare and implement a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) that will
provide hydraulic capacity of key sanitary sewer system elements for dry weather peak flow
conditions, as well as the appropriate design storm or wet weather event. At a minimum, the
plan must include:

a) Evaluation: Actions needed to evaluate those portions of the sanitary sewer system
that are experiencing or contributing to an SSO discharge caused by hydraulic
deficiency. The evaluation must provide estimates of peak flows (including flows
from SSOs that escape from the system) associated with conditions similar to those
causing overflow events, estimates of the capacity of key system components, hydraulic
deficiencies (including components of the system with Lmiting capacity) and the
major sources that contribute to the peak flows associated with overflow events;

b) Design Criterin: Where design criterin do not exist or are deficient, undertake the
evaluation identified in (a) above to establish appropriate design criteria; and

¢) Capacity Enhancement Measures: The steps needed to establish a short- and long-
term CIP to address identified hydraulic deficiencies, including priorvitization,
alternatives analysis, and schedules. The CIP may include increases in pipe size, Il
reduction programs, increases and redundancy in pumping capacity, and storage
Juacilities. The CIP shall include an implementation schedule and shall identify: sources

of funding.

d) Schedule: The Enrollee shall develop a schedule of completion dutes for all portions
of the capital improvement program developed in (a)-(c) above. This schedule shall
be reviewed and updated consistent with the SSMP review and update requirements
as described in Section D. 14.

In 2009, the District prepared a planning document for facility planning for its conveyance system and
Wastewater Treatment Facilities called the District’s Wastewater Master Plan (Plan). This plan was
developed to continue to reliably provide wastewater treatment to the District arca as wastewater flows and
the community’s population continue to grow. This Plan identifies and plans for expansion and
replacement needs through the year 2020.

The Plan consists of the following:

Evaluation:

The portions of the collection system, which could experience or contribute to a Sanitary Sewer Overflow
discharge caused by hydraulic deficiency, have been identified. Included in the evaluation are estimates of
peak flows (including from Sanitary Sewer Overflows that escape from the system) associated with
conditions similar to those causing overflow events, estimates of the capacity of key system components,
hydraulic deficiencies (including components of the system with limiting capacity), and the major sources
that contribute to the peak flows associated with overflow events.

System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan
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Design Criteria:

Facility design criteria fall into one of the following wastewater facility components:

o Conveyance Facilities
o Wastewater Treatment Facilities

Each of these components is discussed in detail in the District’s Wastewater Master Plan.

Capacity Enhancement Measures:

The District has established steps to establish the short and long-term capital improvement programs (CIP)
to address identified hydraulic deficiencies. The CIP includes project cost estimates, project prioritization,
alternatives analysis, and construction schedules. These can be found in The District’s Wastewater Master
Plan.

Plan Updates and Schedules:

This CAP will be updated annually. The updates will describe any significant changes in proposed actions
and/or implementation schedules, and will include information on the performance of measures that have
been implemented. The District has design standards and guidelines to ensure adequate capacity. The
District’s CAP assures that older facilities are upgraded as needed to ensure adequate capacity through the
system. These programs are formally addressed and described more extensively in the Wastewater Master
Plan as Appendix G. Included in the Wastewater Master Plan are schedules for all portions of the CIP and
CAP.

The District works under annual and long-range plans that have proven effective and the District is not
currently experiencing capacity-related problems. Indications of possible capacity problems seen by the
Environmental Control Section are brought to the attention of the Engineering Department for further
evaluation.
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MONITORING, MEASUREMENT, AND
PROGRAM MODIFICATIONS

The Enrollee shall:
@) Maintain relevant information that can be used to establish and prioritize
appropriate SSM P activities;
b)  Monitor the implementation and, where appropriate, measure the effectiveness of
each element of the SSMP;

¢} Assess the success of the preventative maintenance program;

d) Update program elements, as appropriate, based on monitoring or performance
evaluations, and

&) ldentify and illustrate SSO trends, including: frequency, location, and volume.

The Sewer System Management Plan and the programs described therein are continually reviewed to
monitor and measure the performance of the sewer system. This review, in conjunction with the Sewer
System Management Plan Program Audits element, is used to identify the strengths and weaknesses of
current programs and modify them as found necessary.

Maintain Information

To monitor and measure the Sewer System Management Plan’s effectiveness, the District maintains
detailed records of the sewer system and its maintenance. Records of line cleaning, televising, Sanitary
Sewer Overflows, and other pertinent information provide the necessary data required to identify areas of
concern. Among the data tracked are:

= Miles of sewer line cleaned

« Miles of sewer line inspected

«  Number of service requests completed
«  Number of Sanitary Sewer Overflows
« Causes of Sanitary Sewer Overflows

» Locations of Sanitary Sewer Overflows
¢ Quantity spilled

= Repair replacement of sewer lines

e Public Education events/activities

Detailed information relevant to specific sewer lines, manholes, or other assets is also maintained. Databases
enable quick access to CCTV videos, Sanitary Sewer Overflow details, dates of specific line cleanings, and
much more.
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Monitor Implementation of Sewer System Management Plan

The District’s robust database management system facilitates the process by which each clement of
the Sewer System Management Plan is measured for its effectiveness in fulfilling the goals of this Plan.
This process is performed in conjunction with the biannual audit. Key statistics for a designated time
period are reviewed and compared to various sewer issues including Sanitary Sewer Overflows. Further
detail of this process is shown in the proceeding sections.

Assessment of Preventive Maintenance Program

As outlined in the Operations and Maintenance Program Element, the preventive maintenance program is
a critical component of the Sewer System Management Plan on which its effectiveness is dependent. The
processes described in that element are tracked and recorded as outlined in the preceding. When the
necessary data is gathered and reviewed, it is then used to assess the success of the preventative maintenance
program. This assessment is primarily done in conjunction with the biannual program audit. The audit is
described in the following Sewer System Management Plan element and includes both quantitative and
qualitative analysis of the program elements.

Program Elements

Program audits evaluate the Sewer System Management Plan’s effectiveness and explore opportunities which
can lead to improvement of the sewer system. When an opportunity for improvement is found and it is
determined there will be limited negative impact on other aspects of the sewer system, then the
corresponding Sewer System Management Plan element is updated with the changes. Recommendations on
program changes are included in the audits.

Sanitary Sewer Overflow Trends

Identifying trends in Sanitary Sewer Overflows can be extremely valuable and help to identify problem
arcas. The District’s database includes detailed information about Sanitary Sewer Overflows including their
location, volume, cause, response time, notifications, etc. Through analysis of the database as well as
analysis using GIS mapping software, Sanitary Sewer Overtlow trends can be identified that can uncover
unknown issues with the sewer system. Much of this analysis is described and detailed in program audits.
When trends are found, changes in practices including revisions to the operations and maintenance schedule
can be made to reduce future Sanitary Sewer Overflows.
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Sewer System Management Plan Program
Audits

As part of the SSMP, the Enrollee shall conduct periodic internal audits, appropriate to the
size of the system and the number of SSOs. At a minimum, these audits must occur every two
years and a report must be prepared and kept on file. This audit shall focus on evaluating
the effectiveness of the SSMP and the Enrollee’s compliance with the SSMP requirements
identified in this subsection (D.13), including identification of any deficiencies in the SSMP
and steps to correct them.

The use of program audits is a valuable tool to assess the performance of the Sewer System Management
Plan and to determine if any improvements or changes must be made. Audits are conducted at a minimum

cvery two years.
Audits

The use of program audits is a valuable tool to assess the performance of the elements of the Sewer system
Management Plan and to determine if any improvements or changes must be made.

The scope of the audit will focus on each of the major elements of the Sewer System Management Plan and
the achievement, year to date (Y'TD) of established goals: line cleaning, video inspections, service requests,
work orders, and Sanitary Sewer Overflow responses, mitigation and reporting.

A Sewer System Management Plan Audit Checklist is used and the information collected as part of an audit
will be used to imitiate any program and/or procedures revisions necessary to improve the program’s
performance.

The District will audit its implementation and compliance with the provisions of this Sewer System
Management Plan on an annual basis. The audit process allows for corrections and improvements to ensure
that the annual goals are achieved.

The final work product derived from the audit process is a summary of organization changes, aperations
and maintenance activities, Fats, Oil and Grease inspections, Capital Improvement Projects, public education
events, and other pertinent activities and systematic changes. This summary consists of narrative, graphical,
and cartographic descriptions and information as well as recommendations on further progress.

Sewer System Management Plan Updates

The District will determine the need to update its Sewer System Management Plan based on the results of the
audit and the performance of its wastewater collection system based on information from the Monitoring and
Measuring program Modifications Element of the Plan. In the event that the District decides that an update
is warranted, the process to complete the update will be identified. The District will complete the update
within one year of completion of the audit.

COMMUNICATION PROGRAM
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The Enrollee shall communicate on a regular basis with the public on the development,
implementation, and performance of its SSMPFP. The communication system shall provide the
public the opportunity to provide input to the Enrollee as the program is developed and
implemented.

The Enrollee shall also create a plan of communication with systems that are tributary
and/or satellite to the Enrollee’s sanitary sewer system.

The District utilizes an informative communication program designed to provide the public with information
and enable them to comment on all facets of the sewer system. This is accomplished through the publication
of various sewer system documents on the District’s website, including the Sewer System Management
Plan. These can be found at http:/www.yvwd.dst.ca.us/ . Viewers of any sewer related information can
contact the Sewer Division by phone or email and ask questions and provide feedback on any aspect of the

sewer system.

The Sewer Division alse offers tours of the Wastewater Treatment Plant where treatment plant processes
are shown and information is shared about other aspects of the collection system. These tours also allow the
general public to ask questions and comment on any aspect of the sewer system.

Public education and outreach is performed through a variety of activities primarily performed by the
Environmental Control Section. This Section participates in local events each year sponsored by other
agencies to educate the public about Fats, Oil & Grease and other sewer related issues. While the
general public receives education through local events, the District’s Consultant who conducts inspections
on behalf of the District, also educates business owners and restaurants on the requirements and the
importance of the District’s Fats, Oil & Grease Source Control Program during the inspection. The
Environmental Control Consultant conducts inspections at all restaurants in the District area on a regular
basis. During these inspections, they check drains, grease interceptors, waste oil containers, records,
ctc. to verify compliance with local ordinances. These activities provide an opportunity to educate
business owners about Fats, Oil & Grease and its effect on the sewer system.

The District communicates with other sewerage agencies on a regular basis. The District regularly meets
and communicates with the City of Yucaipa, as well as other neighboring cities to discuss issues concerning
wastewater, pretreatment, Fats, O1l & Grease and other Sewer System Management Plan related topics. All
of these agencies are invited to view the City’s website and documents found there and ask questions or
provide comments through phone or email.
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ATTACHMENT “A”

Sanitary Sewer Overflow Report Form
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' Yucaipa Valley Water District Director Memorandum 16-100
W

Date: October 18, 2016
Prepared By: Matthew Porras, Management Analyst
Subject: Consideration of a Grant Opportunity with the Santa Ana Watershed Project

Authority for the Implementation of a Geographical Information System and
Data Analysis Program to Evaluate Residential Water Use Efficiency

Recommendation:  That the Board authorizes the General Manager to execute the grant
contracts and related agreements with the Santa Ana Watershed Project
Authority.

The Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority is offering a grant opportunity to assist water
agencies calculate and evaluate outdoor irrigation usage. This geographical information system
and data analysis program uses aerial images to differentiate between irrigated areas and non-
irrigated areas for every parcel within the District's service area.

The District staff anticipates
that the cost to the Yucaipa
Valley Water District will be a
participation fee of $5,000
plus staff time to collect the
data and related information.

This item was discussed at
the board workshop on
October 11, 2016 [Workshop
Memorandum No. 16-153].
The presentation slides from
the workshop are attached to
this memorandum.
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Automatically Identify Which Homes
Have the Most Potential to Save Water

With lawrmakers, requiators and the media focused on the effects of the drought, many
states have issued mandates to reduce water consumption, with water agencies under
constant pressure to meet strict conseneation targets. OrmiEarth's scalable, cloud-based
Water Resource Management platform helps water resource managers guickly identity
which consumers have the greatest potential to save water and conduct cost-effective
consenation outreach campaigns to meet state-rmandated water consenation fargets.

TARGET INEFFICIENT USERS IN 30 DAYS OR LESS

By autorratically comnparing ideal veater alocations with actual water usage, OmniEarth's
proprietary, eficiency-based anaitics platform combines physically-verfiable data, such
as satellite and aeral imagery, with parcel boondaries and water usage data to provide
wiater districts with sciertific, accurate and defensible land cover classifications and
wiater allocations parcel by parcel to target inefficient water Users in 30 days o less.

PRIORITIZE CONSERVATION EFFORTS ON OVER-USERS

armniEarth helps water agencies prioritize conservation eforts without wasting tirme and
resources chasing consumers who are already super-saiers and are less likely to reduce
water consmption. OmniEarth's easy-to-use dashboards provide detailed water Usage by
parcel, savings across the water district and the encompassing region, as well as water
alloeation surnmaries for required monthly monitoring to manage cons e ation effors.

A am iy T

e R ] -

dmniEami's shud-based solimon combines satellite and sefal Imagery Pafal doundaries and
water meter dats fo Nefp water rasolrcs Manaqers Masimire consarvaion outresc i

BENEFITS

Calculate a conaistent and equitable
water allocation for all consumers

Automatically identify inefficient users
with the most potential to save water

[dentity under-users to locate
Non-revenLe water

Focus water consenvation outreach
efforts to meet conservation goals

FEATURES

Patent-pending, etficiency-based
water allocation analysis

Automatic land cower classification
and water budget datasets

Cuantified savings potential
identified in every home

Cost-affective targeted outreach for
real water savings

@ OmniEarth

Quantity & Changing world™
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How OmniEarth Analytics
Help Water Agencies
Reduce Consumption

Traditional social narming-based approaches only reduce
water consurnption behavior oy five percent on average by
eomparing household weater usagewith neighbors. OmniEarth's
gfficiency-nased anatics platform allows water districts to
autoratically identify and selectively target consumers with
the greatest potential to save the most water,

By COMIpAring actual water meter Usaoe data with
seientifically-deried water allocations for each consumer,
omniEarth helps retail water agencies prioritize consenation
outreach efforts oninefficient consumers. Our targeted salution
allmrs agencies to achisve 30-A0% usage reductions, typically
through improvements in irrigation practices.

This approach allones weater districts to focus on cost-effective
ouUtreach campaigns targeting consumers with a [ouer lifestye
impact who can more easily reduee water consumption. These
consumers (right) provide [ouer-cost, higher-retums than
higher-cost conservation targets {left) who provide diminishing
returne and require more drastic cuts to achieve savings.

1209

1000

8O0

B00

400

Mamnber of Hooseholds

200

%0 240
Anmus Use Bodgat (Thousands of Gallons)

OmaiEarth helps water disiricts Targar naffziem consumars To oftain
fihar raturns and sdentify unaer-usars for potelial aon-rerenae warter

INPUTS @ Omnikarth

/

Water Meter Machine-Learning
Data Algorithms

EFFICIENCY-BASED METHODOLOGY

omniEarth's efficiency-based methodology provides water
agencies with 4 consistent, scientific, accurate and defensible
method for calculating individual wiater allocations and
eificiency ratings, OmniEarth combines parcel boundaries,
satellite and aerial imagery with water meter data to

generate outdoor and indoor water allocations and efficiency
calculations to help optimize agency outreach.

QUTDOOR ALLOCATION

omniEarth generates accurate outdoor wiater alincations by
incorporating elimate, parcel size and state-specific legislation
rettics with proprigtary, patent-pending, machine-learning
algorithms. This fast, scalable process analyzes satellite and
aerial imagery and automaticaly classifies land cower per
parcel, including grass, trees and shrubs, non-irrigated, man-
made surfaces, pools, natural water bodies and antificial furf,
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ANALYTICS OUTPUTS

\

IntLitive
Dashboards

Water Budget
/ by Parcel

Landscaped Area
Water Llze

Land Cover Heawy-Llzer
Classification [dentification

INDOOR ALLOCATION

arnnikarth calculates anindoor water allocation for each
account using household occupancy numbers derved from
gxisting dernographic data or the latest U.5. Census, OmniEarth
combines this data with agency-specific Gallons Per Capita Daily
IGPCDY walues and Advanced Metering Infrastructure (&M data
where available to determing the propartion of indoor to autdoar
use, enabling precize parcel water usage estimates,

EFFICIENCY CALCULATION

ormniEarththen determines the efficiency of gach consurmer
by comparing the total combined indoor and outdoor water
allocation budget with the actual water meter data from the
same billing period, This efficiency -based approach idertifies
the rmasirmurn potertial weater savings achieable for gach
aceount and ilustrates how each individual potential savings
contributes tothe overall conseniation goalks of the water district

Easily Manage and
Monitor Ongoing Water
Conservation Progress

SCALABLE, CLOUD-BASED PLATFORM

omnikarth's sealable, cloud-based Water Resource
Management platformis capable of analyzing large imagery
data sets in as litthe 35 5 days to rapidly complete water
allocations and is delvered as a secure, monthly subscription
senvice, accessible on a laptop, desktop or mobile device:.

INTUITIVE ANALYTICS DASHBOARD

The OrniEarth dashboard is designed to help water managers
rmeet all of their state reporting needs. Managers can easily
filter any data to gain instart insight into trends related to
water consumption and conservation, as well a3 view per
parcel and agoregate statistics over their entire service area.

DETAILED MONTHLY REPORTING
OmniEarth's online dashboard helps ease the hassles of
monthly and yearby reporting, providing water districts

with agaregate production/usage tatals, potential sawings
caleulations, progress towards consenvation goals, residential
uzage estimates and other insights.

Odmnikamh analyzes satelife and aorkal imagery To amomatically classiy
land Sse By cover Types, sUGH &5 grass, Trees oF Man-made surfaces.
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PROVEN SOLUTION FOR CALIFORNIAWATER AGENCIES

ornniEarth has been implemented throughout California in response 1o the historic drooght
in orderto reet state-mandated conservation targets of 20-36%. OrmniEanh custoners
include the East Bay Municipal Water District, the City of Folsomn, the Inland Ernpire Utility
Agency and seven of e retail agencies. The Santa Ana Watershed Project Athority (SAAPAD
als0 selected OrmniEarth to support its digital wiat e consensation outreach for over 75 retail
water agencies through Californials Emergency Drought Grant program.

CONTINUOUS COMPLIANGE WITH STATE REGULATIONS

arnniEarh tracks ongoing changes to legislative standards and state requlations to ensure
retail agency customers are autormatically in corpliance with state legislation. GrmniEarth's
proprietany algorithrns were developed directly from calculations defined in California

5B x7-7 and AR 18581 and are cortinuousky updated to rapidly reflect policy changes

and address new standards, such as EO-B-26-15, the Model Water Efficient Landscape
Ordinance (WMAELD), the Ermergency Drought Grant Program guiddines or Prop 84

BUILT BY LEADERS IN EFFICIENCY-BASED ANALYTICS

armniEanth is 4 leader in efficiency-based analetics comprised of & rapidly growing and
agile tearn of doctoral-lev el sciertists, phwsicists, engineers and GIS product experts
with significant experience providing olobal-seale gecspatial analytics. The tearn's early
wiork on MASA missions, combined with ts recent work onthe California drought, makes
arrniEarth uniquely capable of balancing data quality with cost— providing data-driven
insights to weter districts as they face challenging wter resource decisions,

About OmniEarth

OriniBarth is an innovative Barth obeeneation and ¢ hange-detection analvtics firrm focused on urning the
“bigdata" of global imaging intoactionable intelligence for unsersed and undersered markels . We impove
our sube ribers a bil ity b0 wis ualize the wwaorldamund them by enhancing their ability © see, arabzeand mact
tochanoein nesr mal tirme, Thmogha corstant stearmof geoinformatics, OmniBarth subscribers abeys ke
artess foimageny and demved- information products fomany location on Barth —ondemandand over fime.

OmniBarth prowides nest-genemtion, cloud-tesed gecs patial intelligence and ana htics for gowemment and
deferseanencies andcormmenial enterpizes in thewater, agricuttue, trns porkation and enemgy industries.
OmniBarth leverages a vandy of saellite and s2rial imagery 10 provide s ubseription- kased maon toring of
defined amas of interest. Change-detection algorithrrs idertify differences inthe Barth's suface each day,
prowiding customers with up-to-date information 10 assess, manmage and predict the world amund the them,

INLAND EMPIRE
UTILITIES AGENCY

"OmniEarth provides a more
afficient, cost-effective and
accurate approach for [ELA to

help our retall agencies target
waler conservation efforts to the
right customers to meet state-
mandated conservation goals Their
technology is & win-win solution for
state and local water providers that
wasn't possible before OmniEarth.”

Tarm Ash,

Senior Environmental Planners

Water Use Efficiency

Inland Empire Utilitizs Agency, California

CITY OF FOLSOM

"The City of Folsom 1z always
looking for ways to reduce water
waste and OmniEarth's Analytics
platform uses GIS technology

and data science to determine
consumption measured against an
estimated water budget "

Don Srith,

Water Management Coordinator,
City of Folsom, Califarmia

&) OmniEarth

Quantify & Chanaing wiorld™

251 16th Street South, Suite 630
Arlington, Virginia 22202

Office: BEE-838-6318

Ermall: sales@ornniearth.met
Wehzlie: waterormnigarth. net

& OrmniBarth, Inc., 2015, All ights Eserved.
Informe ion is subect o change without notice.
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Working with OmniEarth
Congratulations on choosing the OmniEarth Water Resource Management platform, the
most comprehensive and accurate source for water budget information. All of our water
budgets are physically verifiable via satellite or aerial imagery, and provide the most in
depth view of the water budget and water consumption in your region. Please find an
outline of expected timelines and contributions for the project below. Our
Implementation Team looks forward to working with you, and if you have any questions
throughout the process, please contact one of our team members.

What Am | Receiving from OmniEarth?
OmniEarth’s web-based Water Resource Management Retailer Application includes:
e Data Integration: OmniEarth normally ingests 3 main datasets:
o Parcel data
o Aerial or Satellite Imagery*
o Water Meter data
¢ Ongoing, automatic updates of water budget data: See your analysis results
automatically update each month
Logins for 5+ Users
System Security: Control over who can view and administer your system
Dashboards: Up to 5 dashboard views, depending on the product level your
agency has selected for residential accounts.

Custom Analytics Results datasets, including:

e Water budget dataset by parcel or region: Tells you how much water this
parcel or regicn should use, based on MWELO standards, local ET rates, and
indoor water usage standard.

e Indoor water budget attribute calculated using one of the following
methods (SAWPA preference)

o The information about lifestyle and use captured through the Dropcountr
mabile application (where available)

o 55 GPCD, multiplied by one the average household members by
residence type, determined by the census average of the agency’s region

e Agency Conservation Analysis: Shows you which users have the greatest
potential savings in GPCD, and how their individual savings can contribute to

3420 Bristol St #502, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 | (888) 838-6318 | www.omniearth.net
© Copyright 2015 OmniEarth, Inc. All Rights Reserved. OmniEarth Confidential Information.
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Omnikarth

your agency’s overall conservation target (if water meter data is provided by
participating agency)
General Support, including:
e Training Sessions: in-person half-day sessions (locations to be determined by
SAWPA)
¢ Help documentation
e Support: Phone and email service and support for duration of your subscription

Implementation Timeline

Phase

Includes:

Duration

(Weeks)

Phase [: Project
Initiation

Prior to kick-off:
e Pre-sales support
e Opt-in
e Signed contracts and non-
disclosure agreement (if
applicable)
e Data and system configuration
consultation
Kick-off meeting

Prior to project
start

Phase I: System
Configuration

Platform configuration
Initial dataset ingestion
Setup of initial logins

Phase IlI: Analysis Generation of parcel-level water budget | 2

and Platform Generation of agency-level summaries

Delivery Dashboard delivery

Phase 1V: Training Platform Training 1

and Handoff Customer Review

Post- Support for the duration of your Ongoing

Implementation subscription during
Automated updating of your data subscription

Assumptions:

3420 Bristol St #502, Costa Mesa, CA 82626 | (888) 838-6318 | www.omniearth.net
© Copyright 2015 OmniEarth, Inc. All Rights Reserved. OmniEarth Confidential Information.
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e All districts will follow same application template per product level (same result datasets, same
attributes, same dashboards)

e All meetings include prep time and meeting time for 2 individuals (a project lead and technical
lead)

What Do | Need to Contribute?
Data and Information
e List of Beta Access Users
o Must include: User Name, Email Address
m .csv or.xls is preferred.

o [Ideally project stakeholders will provide login information at kickoff
meeting

o These users will be given administrator access at the end of
implementation, and wilf have the capability to add additional users

Time (in Hours)
e Data Prep and Delivery time (varies)
e 4 hours (total) of individual agency meetings:
o Project Kickoff Meeting
o Data Discovery and System Configuration Meeting: Review the quirks
of your meter data with technical leads, and discussion of any
organizational requirements for the system configuration.
Update Meeting: Let us fill you in on where we are!
Delivery Meeting: OmniEarth turns over the product for review and
feedback
e Training (1 hour)

Want More?
Additionally, you have the option to upgrade your Water Resource Management
Application to OmniEarth’s Plus product. As a Plus customer, OmniEarth will ingest
your water meter data to provide the following insights and visualizations:
e Water Efficiency by Parcel: Compares actual usage to budgeted usage
¢ 2013 Baseline Savings: Compares the current billing period's use to the
corresponding period in 2013, and is compliant with the CA Governor's executive
order. Requires historical billing data from 2013 onward.
e Total Agency Savings: View the cumulative water savings in your agency over
time in Acre Feet

3420 Bristol St #502, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 | (888) 838-6318 | www.omniearth.net
© Copyright 2015 OmniEarth, Inc. All Rights Reserved. OmniEarth Confidential Information.
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Omnikarth

e [nefficient Parcel identification layer: A mapped data layer that identifies
inefficient users by percent & gallons over budget (if water meter data is provided
by participating agency)

Water meter data analysis requires that you provide the meter data for your agency.
The water meter data should include the following information:

Billed consumption monthly total (and measuring units)

Billing date

Field that links to the parcel data (either APN or locid)

Customer ID in parcel or water meter data (if you want the data to be searchable
by customer)

¢ Data dictionary that explains acronyms, code numbers, etc.

Please provide the raw export format from your billing system. Acceptable file formats
may include:
e .xIs (spreadsheet format used by Microsoft Excel)
e .csv (database file format that can be opened in text editors, spreadsheet editors,
or database tools like Mlcrosoft Access)
e _.dbf (database file format used by ESRI ArcGIS, and can be opened in scme
spreadsheet editors)

Want Even More?
OmniEarth provides a suite of premium solutions that enable custom data functionality,
integration, and perspectives. We can provide access to updated imagery, lidar data,
and a number of other data types. Please inquire for a separate quote to deliver
enhanced value for your agency or wholesale region.

3420 Bristol St #502, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 | (888) 838-6318 | www.omniearth.net
Copyright 2015 OmniEarth, Inc. All Rights Reserved. OmniEarth Confidential Information.
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’ Yucaipa Valley Water District Director Memorandum 16-101
W
Date: October 18, 2016

Prepared By: Sara Onate, Administrative Clerk IV

Subject: Renewal of the Yucaipa Valley Water District Workers’ Compensation
Insurance Coverage

Recommendation:  That the Board Contract with Edgewood Partners Insurance Center for
Furnishing Worker's Compensation Insurance for 2016-2017 with
Redwood Fire Insurance Company - Berkshire Hathaway Homestead
Companies.

The Yucaipa Valley Water District's workers’ compensation insurance expires on October 31,
2016. The District’s current insurance provider is Oak River Insurance Company - Berkshire
Hathaway Homestead Companies (BHHC).

The District’s broker, Edgewood Partners Insurance Center (EPIC) requested quotes from several
insurance carriers (see page 3 of 20). An analysis of the results found Redwood Fire Insurance
Company - Berkshire Hathaway Homestead Companies (BHHC) to be the lowest quote at
$148,244 (excluding taxes and fees). The annual workers’ compensation premium quoted last
year was $166,615.

The proposed premium includes classification rates set by the California Department of Insurance
and the Workers’ Compensation Insurance Rating Bureau and a constant experience modification
rate of 0.61 (same as last year).
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HEIE

Workers’ Compensation Insurance
Proposal

Yucaipa Valley Water District

Effective 10/31/2016 to 10/31/2017

Presented by:

David McNeil, ARM
Principal
909.919.7508
david.mcneil@epicbrokers.com

Deb Bailey
Senior Account Manager
949.417.9105
deb.bailey@epicbrokers.com

License OB29370

19000 macarthur blvd., suite 900, Irvine, ca 92612
telephone 949.263.0606 ~ Facsimile 949.263.0906 ~ www.epicbrokers.com
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Insurance Summary
Carriers Approached

Carrier Best's Rating Result

Redwood Fire Ins. Co. (BHHC) A++XIII Quote - $148,244

State Compensation Ins. Fund NR Quote - $164,218

JPRIMA - Zenith Ins. Co. AX Pending

AlG Ins. Co. A XV Declined

AmTrust Ins. Co. AlX Ineligible Class Code 7580

Republic Underwriters A Ineligible Class Code 7520 and 7580

Comp West Ins. Co. A-X Ineligible Class Codes 7520 and 7580

Crum & Forster Ins. Co. AXII Ineligible Due to Location

Employers Ins. Co. AX Ineligible Class Code 7580

Everest Ins. Co. A Ineligible Class Codes 7520 and 7580

Ins. Co. of the West (ICW) A-XV Ineligible Class Code 7580

Liberty Mutual Ins. Co. A XV Does Not Write Mono-Line WC

Travelers Ins. Co. A+XV Does Not Write Mono-Line WC

Starstone Ins. Co. A-X1 Does Not Meet $200,000 Minimum Premium
Alaska National Ins. AlX Does Not Meet $400,000 Minimum Premium
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ﬁ%ﬁ”“"m‘a’ Workers' Compensation Experience Rating Form
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT Bureau Number 2-54-21-55-R rage 1 OF 1
P.O. BOX 730 Effecive Date 10/31/2016
99
YUCAIPA CA 923 oo Dt ook
*7520 WATER COMPANIES Experience Modification 61%
*7580 SANITARY/SANITATION DISTRICTS OPERATION Insurer REDWOOD FIRE AND CASUALTY INS
*8742 SALESPERSONS-OUTSIDE Insurer Group BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY #1
*8810 CLERICAL OFFICE EMPLOYEES Policy Number YUWCB00313
Issuing Office SAN FRANCISCO
Experience Period 01/31/2012 to 01/31/2015

Summary of Payroll and Expected Losses

Summary of Claims and Actual Losses

Class Expected [ gynected | Expected | Expecied Wjury Tovens| Actual | Actal | Actual
Payroll |Loss Rate Primanr Excess Claim Number |T J'# Prima Excess

Code or 3100 payrol  -055¢8  [Ratio Loates ype 4[Closed| Losses Yy |

Insurer: 318 Policy Period : 10/31/2014 to 10.‘31!‘3015

7520 2,141, 13 29,5 6,50 23,052| |UNDER $2,001 2 2,317 2,377

7580 931,73 1. 13,9 2, 3? 1,

8742 493,07 0.18) 8 71

8810 872,73 0.17 1, 1.1

Totals | 4,439,179 45,902 [ zl 36,520| [Totals 2 2,377 2,377 of
Insurer: 905 Policy Perlod : 10/31/2013 to 10/31/2014

7520 2,411,62 1.3 33,280| 0. 7,32 25,958) [UNDER $2,001 2 819 819]

7580 922,88 1.50 13,843] 0.1 2,35 11,4

8742 341,71 0.1 615| 0.2 1 4

8810 987,640 0.17 1,679| 0 3 1,31

Totals | 4,663,867 49417 | 10,167 39,250/ [Totals 2 819} 819 0|
Insurer: 420 Policy Period : 10/31/2012 to 10/31/2013

7520 | 2,370,07 138]  32,707] o. ? 19 25,511

7580 779,961 1.50 11,699 0.1 9.71

8810 1,221, 0.17 2,077| 0 1,

Totals |  4,371,696] 46483 | 36,841| [Totals 0 0 o] 0

%ﬂmﬂ Eiuuﬂu Ackm) Actusl Actual
Lossss Ln:ll!‘.? m # of Claims Lomses Lossas m
Experlence Period Totals I* 141.soz| |= 29,191 Ic ﬂz.ml I 4 | I a,ﬂaslﬂ a.wle ol
Credible Primary Loss Credible Excess Loss
Cradl Total Total Actual i
[(Tmllmrgjmx bty )+( ota m{al;nmyxn-cmm)] [( lr?;emx Crediblity )+( Toﬁlmfmnn‘ﬁg::w )]. Total Adjusted | TnuEIpot:n;d
F o[ 104 [F 25,191 [_o.00 [ o [0z [ 112,611 [__074 [ ses28 [_141,802

Loss-Free Rating: 58% - Experienca
* Not Physically Inspected;# If Any; F = Federal

5) Sul Jolnt Claim; Partialty Fraudu if an
CN#RS5S428857 Workers' Comp Rating B! ofca[h‘alﬁne 07/01/2016
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gl Berkshire Hathaway Ty oy Lot e

P.O. Box 881236, San Francisco, CA 94188
HOMESTATE COMPANIES Phone: 83-406-8040

QUOTE PROPOSAL FOR WORKERS COMPENSATION COVERAGE
Yucaipa Valley Water District

FEIN 95-2742131

Quote ID YUWCT700637

Renewal of YUWCB00313 for 10/31/2016 to 10/31/2017

10/11/2016 09:33
Underwriter: Lucas Cocking
E-mail; Icocking@bhhc.com
Eggm PARTNERS INSURANCE CENTER Phone Number: 888-495-8949
Ontario, CA Fax Number: 866-228-4613
Phone Number: 909-292-0340

Faxi#: 908-292-0347

We are pleased to offer this quote for Workers Compensation coverage to your client. Based on payroll, classification, experience
modification, and other information provided by you, our terms are as follows:

Carrier: Redwood Fire And Casualty Insurance
Payment Method: Direct Bill
Coverage Type: Guaranteed Cost

Total Estimated Cost: $152,800.00

Payment Terms: 15% down payment (including taxes and fees) of $26,707.60 and 9 Monthly installment(s) of
$14,010.27

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: This quote expires at 12:01 AM on 10/31/2016. The premium is an estimate and final premium will
be determined from payroll and classification information collected at final audit and/or during the policy year. This is a rate
indication and premium is subject to change.

THIS IS NOT A BINDER OF INSURANCE: Company must receive a written request to bind no later than 12:01 AM on the effective
date of the coverage for which this quote was created. No back dating is allowed. Requests to bind made telephonically are not
valid for binding.

UNDERWRITER COMMENTS & QUOTE CONTINGENCIES

USL&H coverage is not included.
* Coverage for volunteers s not included.
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. Berkshire Hathaway Homestate Companies
[ify Berkshire Hathaway PO Box 81236, San Francico, A 64155
HOMESTATE COMPANIES Phone: 888-495-8949
Yucaipa Valley Water District
FEIN 95-2742131
Quote ID YUWCT00837
Renewal of YUWC600313 for 10/31/2016 to 10/31/2017
10/11/2016 09:33
California
Classification Code Payroll Base Rate/ Premium Net
Factor Rate
Effective: 10/31/2016-10/31/2017
Waterworks 7520 2,366,715 8.13 192,414 418
Sanitary/Sanitation Districts 7580 929,600 9.08 84,408 467
Salespersons-oulside 8742 IF ANY 111 0 0.57
Clerical Office Employees N.O.C. 8810 1,294,835 .90 11,654 046
Experience Modification 9898 610 -112,506
Risk Adjustment ~ 22,955
Tot Est Standard Premium 10/31/2016-10/31/2017 153,015
Premium Discount 0063 3.118 4771
Minimum Premium $2,824
Tot Est Standard Premium for California 148244
Policy Totals
Total Estimated Premium for California 148,244
Expense Constant 100
Total Estimated Annual Premium 148,344
CA CA Workers Compensation Administration Revolving Fund 10/31/2016-10/31/2017 0.3433% 509
CA CA Workers Compensation Fraud Account Assessment 10/31/2016-10/31/2017 0.1741% 258
CA CIGA Surcharge 10/31/2016-10/31/2017 2.0000% 2,987
CA CA Subsequent Injuries Benefits Trust Fund Assessment 10/31/2016-10/31/2017 0.1191% 177
CA CA Uninsured Employers Benefits Trust Fund Assessment 10/31/2016-10/31/2017 0.0532% 79
CA CA Occupational Safety and Health Fund Assessment 10/31/2016-10/31/2017 0.1925% 286
CA CA Labor Enforcement and Compliance Fund 10/31/2016-10/31/2017 0.1215% 180
Total Estimated Cost for YUWC700637 ' 152,800
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Berkshire Hathaway SerahisHathavay Homestae Companis
C HOMESTATE COMPANIES Phone: 88849

Policyholder Disclosure
Notice of Terrorism
Insurance Coverage

Coverage for acts of terrorism is included in your policy. You are hereby notified that under the Terrorism
Risk Insurance Program Reauthorization Act (TRIPRA), as amended in 2015, the definition of act of
terrorism has changed. The term ‘“act of terrorism® means any act that cerified by the Secretary of
Treasury, in consultation with the Secretary of Homeland Security and the Attorney General of the United
States as meeting all of the following requirements: the act is an act of terrorism; the act is violent or
dangerous to human life, property or infrastructure; the act resulted in damage within the United States, or
outside the United States in the case of the premises of United States missions or certain air carriers or
vessels; and the act has been committed by an individual or individuals as part of an effort to coerce the
civilian population of the United States or to influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States
Government by coercion. TRIPRA limits our liability to you under this policy by capping annual losses for
certified acts of terrorism, as defined above, at $100,000,000,000 and partially reimbursing such losses up
to $100,000,000,000. The amount of the aggregate industry insured losses determines the reimbursement
percentage from the United States Government. The charge for this mandatory coverage for acts of terrorism
has been applied to your annual premium and does not include any charges for the portion of losses covered
by the United States Government under the Act.

Prepared: 10/11/2018
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Berkshire Hathaway
5@ HOMESTATE COMPANIES

CALIFORNIA DISCLOSURES AND NOTICES

Berkshire Hathaway Homestate Companies

P.O. Box 881236, San Francisco, CA 94188
Phone: B88-495-8949

MEDICAL PROVIDER NOTICE: We require that all clients use facilities from within their selected MPN networks. In the event this quote is

bound, your client will receive an MPN enroliment packet which will need to be distributed to the insured's employees. Additional detailed
MPN information will also be provided.

CALIFORNIA SHORT RATE CALCULATION AND PENALTY SCHEDULE

In accordance with AB 1425, effective January 1, 2012, the following is the explanation of our short rate calculation and the associated

penalties.

If you cancel this policy or if we cancel due to non-paym
will be multiplied by the quotient of the number of days for which the policy was written divided
force to produce the full policy premium. Second, the extended number of d

ent of premium. First, the premium computed in accordance with Section 1, Rule 2,
by the number of days the policy remained in
ays will be determined by dividing the number of days the policy

was in force by the number of days for which the policy was written and multiplying the quotient by 365 days. (When the Policy written for a

one-year period, the extended number of days will equal the number of d
corresponding to the extended number of days will be obtained from the

equal to the product of the full policy premium times the short rate
Short Rate Premium. In no event will the final earned premium be

ays the policy remained in force.) Third, the short rate percentage
short rate cancellation table. Fourth, the short rate premium will be

percentage. The Short Rate Table below will be used in computing the

less than the policy minimum premium.

DaysinForce | Factor | DaysinForce | Factor | DaysinForce | Factor | DaysinForce | Factor | Daysin Force | Factor 1
1 2l oos|] s saf o2s| 121] 12a| 4] 19| 196| o0e3| 279] 282 om2
3 4] oo7] ss| s8] o26] 125| 127 oas| 197] 200] oeal 83| 287 0.83
5 6] oo08] sof 6] o027] 128] 13| o046] 201] 205] os5| 288] 21 0.84]
7 8| 009| 3] 65| o28] 13| 13| o047l 206] 209] o066 292] 296 0.85)
o 10 o 6] 69| o029] 136] 138 048] 210] 215| o0e7| 207] 301] o6l
1] 12 o011 70 73] o030 130 142] oas| 215] 218 oe8| s02] 305] o087
13) 14| o1 7af 76| 031] 143] 146] o5o| 210 223| 09| 30| 30| 0.88]
5| 16| ol 77| sl o032 1a7] 14| osi| 224] 228] o70] 3] 314 0.89]
17| 18] o014 8| 83| oa3s| 1so| 1ss|  os2| 229 23| 07| 35| 319 0.50]
9] 20| o01s| 84 7] o034] 56| 156| 053] 233] o3| o72| 30 323 oo
21] 22| o016 s8] a1 o3s] 157| 160] osa| 238] 2e1| 073 324] 328] om2
23] 25| o017] 92| 94f o036 161] 164] o0ss| 242] 246] 07a] 329] 33| o
26| 29| o[ o] o8] 037 165| 167 ose| 247 2s0] owsl 333 zw 0.94{
0f 32| o019 99] 102] o038 18] 17| osz| a2sa| 2ss| o076] 338 342] oo
33| 36| o020 103 a0s] o039] 172] 75| oss| 256] 260] o077] 243 36 0.96}
371 40l o2f 106| 209) o40] 76| 78| oso| 2ea| 26| o78] 3a7] 351 o097
4| a3] o022] 10| 13 oa| 17| 1s2| os0] 265] 268] o079 3s2| 355 0.98)
a4 471 o023] 14| 16l o042 183 1s7] 0] 270] 273 o080 356 360 0.99]
28 51| o024 17| 120 oas| 18] 1oa| o62| 74| 278] o081 3e1] 365]  1.00f
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This document does not provide insurance

Applicant Copy

§I§I.Eu Quote ID: 800460248-1
FU|:~| 6 THIS IS NOT A BILL
Quote Date:  10/11/2016
Broker: 00504118 Applicant:
EDGEWOOD PARTNERS INS CENTER Yucaipa Valley Water District
19000 MACARTHUR BLVD PH FLOOR 12770 2nd St
IRVINE, CA 92612 Yucaipa, CA 92399
Phone: (714) 937-4251 Phone: (908) 797-3309
Contact: Debra Bailey Contact: Sara Onate-Sanchez
WCIRB Number: 2542155
Proposed Coverage period: 10/31/2016 - 10/31/2017
Employer’s Liability Limit: $1,000,000.00
Estimated Premium Summary
Base Premium $259,207.00
Experience Modification 61%
Estimated Standard Premium $158,116.00
Estimated Modified Premium $184,502.00
Total Estimated Annual Premium $164,218.00
Minimum Premium $930.00
Mandatory Surcharges
WCA Surcharge $564.00
WCFA Surcharge $286.00
UEBT Surcharge $87.00
SIBT Surcharge $196.00
OSHF Surcharge $316.00
LEC Surcharge $200.00
CIGA Surcharge $3,284.00
Initial Premium Deposit $16,422.00
Total Deposit $21,355.00

State Fund Representative:
Phone: (925) 523-5635

William Holmes

Page 10f 5
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STATE

COMPENSATION

INSURANCE

FUND

This document does not provide insurance Applicant Copy

Quote ID: 800460248-1

THIS IS NOT A BILL

Quote Date:

10/11/2016

Class Code and Rate Summary

Class Code & Rate Summary
Coverage Period
10/31/2016 - 10/31/2017

ClassCode Base

Rate

7520-1 7.30

7580-1 8.17

8810-1 0.81
Page 2 of 5

Interim
Billing Rate**

7.58
8.49
0.84
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This document does not provide insurance

STATE areleentCon
COMPENSATION Quote ID: 800460248-1
INSURANCE
FUND THIS IS NOT A BILL
Quote Date:  10/11/2016
Coverage Period: 10/31/2016-10/31/2017
Base Premium $259,207.00
Experience Modification 61%
Estimated Standard Premium $158,116.00
Rating Plan Modifier 1.16688
Estimated Modified Premium $184,502.00
Estimated Premium Discount Credit Factor* 0.89006
Interim Billing Factor ** 1.03859
Mandatory Surcharges
WCA Surcharge 0.34330% $564.00
WCFA Surcharge 0.17410% $286.00
UEBT Surcharge 0.05320% $87.00
SIBT Surcharge 0.11910% $196.00
OSHF Surcharge 0.19250% $316.00
LEC Surcharge 0.12150% $200.00
CIGA Surcharge 2.00000% $3,284.00

*Premium Discount: Modified Premium is discounted according to the following schedule:

First $5,000 - 0.0%
Above $5,000 — 11.3%

Page 3 of 5

Yucaipa Valley Water District - October 18, 2016 - Page 191 of 209



Workshop Memorandum No. 16-101 Page 13 of 20

This document does not provide insurance Applicant Copy
STATE

COMPENSATION

Quote ID:  800460248-1

INSURAMNCE

FUND THIS IS NOT A BILL

Quote Date:  10/11/2016

This quote is based on information provided to State Fund. Your experience modification will apply to these interim-
billing rates.

** Interim billing rates shown in this quote will be used on payroll reports. They take into account rating plan credits (or
debits), which will apply at final billing and an estimate of your premium discount as detailed above. The actual
discount applied at final billing will be based on the actual payroll reported on your policy and subject to audit.

Page 4 of 5
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ST T E This document does not provide insurance Applicant Copy
COMPENSATION Quote ID: 800460248-1
INSURANCE

i e THIS IS NOT A BILL

FUND

Quote Date:  10/11/2016

Classification Exposure Detail

Location Numberof Class Description Base Estimated Estimated
‘Number Employees Code Rate Payroll Premium

7520-1 WATER COMPANIES

Coverage Period: 10-31-2016 - 10-31-2017

1 12 7580-1 SANITATION DISTRICTS 8.17 $929,600.00 $75,948.00
OPTS.
2 66 8810-1 CLERICAL OFFICE 0.81 $1,294,835.00 $10,488.00
EMPLOYEES
2 37 7520-1 WATER COMPANIES 7.30 $2,366,715.00 $172,770.00
Page 50of 5
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Independent Contractor vs. Employee
What is Your Workers' Comp Liability?

The question of whether a worker is an independent contractor or an employee is not easily answered. Merely
agreeing with someone on independent contractor status does not make it so. Also, California workers'
compensation laws relating to employee versus contractor status are different from the laws applied to this status
question by other state and federal agencies.

Contrary to what you might think, the mere existence of a written employment contract or a lease will not
establish an independent contractor relationship. For example, suppose you are a contractor. You hire a
subcontractor with employees for a specific task. The subcontractor or one of the employees is injured on the job.
Are you liable for workers' compensation insurance? Yes, if your subcontractor is unlicensed. The courts have
held that a subcontractor can only be considered an independent contractor if licensed, as required by
Chapter 9 of Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code. If a subcontractor is unlicensed and
performing license required work, the subcontractor is an employee of the contractor. in addition, you
could be held liable for workers' compensation benefits if the employee of any uninsured subcontractor
is injured while working on a project for you.

Not all occupations have licenses like the construction industries. California courts and state agencies have
typically used a number of tests to determine whether an individual is an employee or an independent contractor.
No single test is the sole determining factor. However, a crucial factor in determining employment status is
the right to direct and control. If you have the right, whether or not that right is exercised, the courts have
routinely decided that the “independent contractor” is actually your employee (even if the person is licensed).

Some of the other tests used are:

- Whether the person performing the service has independently chosen the burdens and benefits of
self-employment.

- Whether the person performing the service is engaged in a distinct occupation or business.

- The skill required in the particular occupation.

- Whether the employer or the person performing the service supplies the instrumentalities, tools,
and place of work.

- Whether the person performing the service has the right to hire and terminate others.

- The right to terminate the relationship at will.

Remember, this list is not exhaustive, and the answer to any single test is not the determining factor.

So, protect yourself! If certain jobs require a license, insist on seeing the license and retain a copy for your
records. Contact the Contractor's State License Board to verify that the license is valid for the type of work you
are contracting and the person presenting it is listed on the license records. Obtain original Certificates of
Workers' Compensation Insurance addressed to you from all contractors and subcontractors who have
employees or who, in turn, subcontract any portion of their work.

If the occupation doesn't require a license, or if you are unsure of the status of a worker for any reason,
contact your local State Fund office and speak to a representative. By working together, we can avoid any

surprises from an audit. If proper documentation is not maintained and presented to our auditors, we are
obligated to charge premium for any liability that may exist under your workers' compensation insurance policy.

€10210 (Rev. 08-09)
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STATE

COMPENSATION

INSURANCE

UND

If a policyholder cancels a policy mid-term, a short rate penalty may apply. In accordance with AB 1425, and
in compliance with Insurance Code §481(c), the following is an explanation of how the short rate premium
and associated penalties would be calculated.

Cancellation by the Policyholder: First, the premium computed in accordance with Section |, Rule 2, above,
will be multiplied by the quotient of the number of days for which the policy was written divided by the
number of days the policy remained in force to produce the full policy premium. Second, the extended
number of days will be determined by dividing the number of days the policy was in force by the number of
days for which the policy was written and multiplying the quotient by 365 days. (When the policy was written
for a one-year period, the extended number of days will equal the number of days the policy remained in
force.) Third, the short rate percentage corresponding to the extended number of days will be obtained from
the short rate cancellation table. Fourth, the short rate premium will be equal to the product of the full policy
premium times the short rate percentage.

The Short Rate Premium shall be computed using the Short Rate Cancellation Table shown below.

Final premium based on the table below will not be less than the minimum premium for this policy.

Extended % of Extended % of Extended % of Extended % of
Full Full Full Full
Number of Policy Number of Policy Number of Policy Number of Policy
Days Premium Days Premium Days Premium Days Premium
1 5% 66-69 29% 154-156 53% 256-260 77%
2 6% 70-73 30% 157-160 54% 261-264 78%
34 7% 74-76 31% 161-164 55% 265-269 79%
5-6 8% 77-80 32% 165-167 56% 270-273 80%
7-8 9% 81-83 33% 168-171 57% 274-278 81%
9-10 10% 84-87 34% 172-175 58% 279-282 82%
11-12 1% 88-91 35% 176-178 59% 283-287 83%
13-14 12% 92-94 36% 179-182 60% 288-291 84%
15-16 13% 95-98 37% 183-187 81% 292-296 85%
17-18 14% 99-102 38% 188-191 62% 297-301 86%
19-20 15% 103-105 39% 192-196 63% 302-305 87%
21-22 16% 106-109 40% 197-200 64% 306-310 88%
23-25 17% 110-113 41% 201-205 65% 311-314 89%
26-29 18% 114-116 42% 206-209 66% 315-319 90%
30-32 19% 117-120 43% 210-214 67% 320-323 91%
33-36 20% 121-124 44% 215-218 68% 324-328 92%
37-40 21% 125-127 45% 219-223 69% 329-332 93%
41-43 22% 128-131 46% 224-228 70% 333-337 94%
4447 23% 132-135 47% 229.232 71% 338-342 95%
48-51 24% 136-138 48% 233-237 72% 343-346 96%
52-54 25% 1398-142 49% 238-241 73% 347-351 97%
55-58 26% 143-146 50% 242-246 74% 352-355 98%
59-62 27% 147-149 51% 247-250 75% 356-360 99%
63-65 28% 150-153 52% 251-255 76% 361-365 100%
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Your EPIC Account Team &

Contact Information

David McNeil, ARM \
Principal
david.mcneil@epicbrokers.com
909.919.7508
Overall Account Management

J Deb Bailey ( Dan Ryan i
Senior Account Manager Managing Principal
deb.bailey@epicbrokers.com dan.ryan@epicbrokers.com
949.417.9105 909-919-7517
Daily Account Management Overall Management

- / - /

Marie Engstrom
f Claims Consultant
Property & Casualty
marie.engstrom@epicbrokers.com
949.417.9118

/

General Contact Information

ﬁnain Number ..................949.263.0606\

Main Toll Free ................ 800.345.7242
Facsimile .........ccceueecneeens 949.263.0906
Certificates ..................... 949.263.0906
Claims Toll Free ............. 877.342.2526
Private Client .................. 866.722.2526

\_ Employee Benefits ......... 877.225.2648 |
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EPIC’s Service Commitment

EPIC will provide you with the following services:

Return all telephone calls within 24 hours.

* Issue Certificates of Insurance on a 24-hour turnaround or same day if received before 3:00 PM (as needed).
¢ Process requests for insurance program changes promptly.

e Track the status of all open claims.

* Review estimated payrolls and receipts.

e Review coverages with you as needed or at least.

¢ Present renewal insurance program in a timely manner.

e Keep you up-to-date about important insurance industry developments throughout the year.
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When to Notify EPIC

Itis very important that we are informed whenever a significant change in your operation takes place.

We should be notified promptly of any change, such as:

. Additional locations, new construction/projects
° Change in property values
° Change of ownership

o Sudden changes in sales/income/payroll
. Change in hazards (increase or decrease)
° Change in security or protection

. Change in product line

. New contractual obligations

° Change of vehicles/drivers

® Change of operation

. Change in shipment

° Leased, rented and borrowed equipment

The above are listed as examples of situations we should be made aware of; there are many others as well. If
any questions arise, please call us.
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EPIC’s Claims Advocacy

Claim reporting is simple!

Choose the most convenient method fo report your claim:

. Telephone: Call our toll free number 800.282.2526
. Fax: Complete your paperwork and fax it to us at 949-263-0906

e Internet: Workers' Compensation Claims and questions
Email EPIC or Carrier directly for assistance

. Internet: Property & Casualty Claims and questions
Email Marie Engstrom - mengstrom@edgewoodins.com

Your EPIC Claims Team...second to none.

We have highly effective Claims Advocacy and Specialists with extensive depth and breadth. They have held
positions with insurance carriers, insurance brokers and managing general agents representing reinsurance
carriers. This experience provides our clients with broad-based claims expertise in multiple areas of insurance.

Because of this diversity they are successful in communicating with all parties including claims adjusters,
attorneys and you.

Our dedicated team responds to all of your Commercial Insurance claims needs including:
) Assisting you with reporting of Property & Casualty claims
° Providing you with Workers’ Compensation claims reviews & advocacy
. Acting as liaison between you and the insurance carrier

. Reviewing summons and complaints prior to insurance carrier submission
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FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles)
Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet)

Number of Employees: 5 elected board members
62 full time employees

Operating Budget:  Water Division - $13,397,500
Sewer Division - $11,820,000
Recycled Water Division - $537,250
Total Annual Budget - $25,754,750

Number of Services: 12,434 water connections serving 17,179 units
13,559 sewer connections serving 20,519 units
64 recycled water connections

Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines
27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity
18 pressure zones
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons)
Two water filtration facilities:
- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility

Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd
205 miles of sewer mainlines
5 sewer lift stations
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons)

Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines
5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons)

Brine Disposal: 2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant
1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity
0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County
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State Water Contractors: San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency

-

Sustainability Plan: A Strategic Plan for a Sustainable Future: The Integration and
Preservation of Resources, adopted on August 20, 2008.

Yucaipa Yalley Regional
Water Filtration Facility

Wochholz Regional
Water Recycling
Facility

‘Yucaipa Valley Brineling
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THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY

One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).
This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day.

One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.
This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day.

One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.
This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year.

One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.
This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century.

One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts.
This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years.

One part per quadrillion (ppg) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.
This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5
billion years).
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GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS

Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language
of the group. Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields
use different terms for the same phenomena.

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions. If there is any
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.

Activated Sludge Process — A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater.

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality,
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water. Itis
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow. When water passes through a water meter into a
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical
means in achieving an objective. Often used in the context of water conservation.

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) — The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes
decomposition by microorganisms. Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water.

Biosolids — Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment
process. This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant
growth.

Catch Basin — A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge
into a storm sewer.

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) — Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets. Also
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities.

Collector Sewer — The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer.

Coliform Bacteria — A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.

Combined Sewer Overflow — The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions.

Combined Sewer System— Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant.
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Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the
yield of the overall water resource. Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use. Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years.

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply.

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies. Different disinfectants produce different
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.

Dry Weather Flow — Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration.

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer. Can be a naturally occurring process or
artificially enhanced.

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of
precipitation (rain or snow). This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground,
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.

Infiltration — Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes. Infiltration does not include inflow. See Inflow.

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage. Inflow does not include infiltration. See Infiltration.

Inflow / Infiltration (I/1) — The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration.

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District
to a service connection.

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the
levels of water in the aquifer.

Peak Flow — The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously).
Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids. See Mains, Distribution and Mains,
Transmission.
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Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public
Health.

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water
pressure exceeds desirable levels.

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher
elevation or different location.

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or
emergencies such as fire suppression. Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or
steel reservoirs. The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be
water storage reservoirs.

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity. It includes water
running in streams as well as over land.

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic,
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources. See Combined Sewer System.

Sanitary Sewer Overflow — Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds
the capacity of the system. See Combined Sewer Overflow.

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line — A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by
Orange County Sanitation District.

Secondary Treatment — Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater.

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water
delivery.

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.

Sludge — Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage.

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.
Total Suspended Solids (TSS) — The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage.
Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.

Trickling Filter — A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over
them.

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).
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Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans.

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing
various passageways.

Wastewater — Any water that enters the sanitary sewer.

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a
third party. Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see
Hydrologic cycle.

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver
water to the tap.

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water
system. Typically the water service line is a 1" to 1%" diameter pipe for residential properties.

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on
a stream or river.

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools
or swamps.

Wet Weather Flow — Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system,
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system.
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AQMD
BOD
CARB
CCTV
CWA
EIR
EPA
FOG
GPD
MGD
0O&M
OSHA
POTW
PPM
RWQCB
SARI
SAWPA
SBVMWD
SCADA
SSMP
SSO
SWRCB
TDS
TMDL
TSS
WDR
YVWD

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS

Air Quality Management District

Biochemical Oxygen Demand

California Air Resources Board

Closed Circuit Television

Clean Water Act

Environmental Impact Report

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Fats, Oils, and Grease

Gallons per day

Million gallons per day

Operations and Maintenance

Occupational Safety and Health Administration
Publicly Owned Treatment Works

Parts per million

Regional Water Quality Control Board

Santa Ana River Inceptor

Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority

San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District
Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system
Sanitary Sewer Management Plan

Sanitary Sewer Overflow

State Water Resources Control Board

Total Dissolved Solids

Total Maximum Daily Load

Total Suspended Solids

Waste Discharge Requirements

Yucaipa Valley Water District
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